
 

 
 

 
 

         20 March 2017 
 
 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Monday, 27 March 2017 

beginning at 
7:00 pm 

in the 
Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF 

 
 
TO: Councillor Daniel Clarke (Chairman) 
 Councillor Bruce Tennent (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Margaret Allingham Councillor Janice Asman 
Councillor Louise Bloom Councillor Carol Boulton 
Councillor Cynthia Garton Councillor Ian Corben 
Councillor Jerry Hall Councillor Keith House 
Councillor Rupert Kyrle Councillor Angel Myerscough 
Councillor Derek Pretty  

 
 
Staff Contacts: Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 023 8068 8112; 

Email: cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Julia Birt, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 8437;  
Email: julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
GAETANA WISEMAN 

Performance and Governance Manager 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 

as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 
other languages, upon request. 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above. 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA 
 

1. Public Participation     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 6)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 6 March 2017. 
  
3. Apologies     
 
4. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

  
5. Local Area Committee report    (Verbal Report) 
 
6. Funding for Local Projects    (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
7. Presentation on Planning Guidelines     
 
8. Planning Application - Crows Nest Lane, Botley    (Pages 11 - 56)  

 Outline application: residential development of up to 50no. Dwellings with green 
infrastructure, hard and soft landscape and associated infrastructure, including 
internal access roads, footpaths/cycle routes, play space and relocation of gas 
governor and creation of new access on to Maddoxford Lane (Ref: O/16/78389) 

  
9. Planning Application - Land South of Maddoxford Lane, Boorley Green Botley    

(Pages 57 - 94)  

 Outline application for demolition of existing residential dwelling and associated 
farm buildings, development of up to 50 dwellings with access from Maddoxford 
Lane, site infrastructure, open space and associated landscaping. (Ref: 
O/16/79600) 

  
10. Planning Application - Land to the north and east of Boorley Green, Winchester 

Road, Botley    (Pages 95 - 132)  

 Reserved matters application (pursuant to outline planning permission O/12/71514 
which was subject to an environmental impact assessment) for the erection of 
889no. Dwellings, community building, multi-use games area, land for use as 
allotments, open space, road infrastructure, pedestrian and cycle links, foul and 
surface water drainage networks, associated landscaping, car parking, changes to 
levels, boundary treatments and diversion of Botley footpath number 2. (Ref: 
R/16/79470) 

  
11. Planning Appeals      

 The Legal Services Manager to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeal has been allowed:- 
 



36 Tickner Close, Botley – Appeal against the Council’s refusal of 
permission for a proposed extension to rear of main building replacing the 
current lean-to (Ref: F/16/78811). 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

 
(b) that the following appeal has been dismissed:- 
 

South Botley House, West End Road, West End – Appeal against the 
Council’s refusal of permission to fell a beech tree protected by Tree 
Preservation Order 331 (Ref: T16/79801). 

  
 

PROPOSED DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 22 May 2017 at 7:00 pm 

in the Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's 
Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF 

To be confirmed 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 6 March 2017  (7:00 pm – 7:14 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Clarke (Chairman); Councillors Tennent, Asman, Bloom, 
Boulton, Garton, Corben, House, Kyrle and Pretty 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Hall and 
Myerscough 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Margaret Billard, a resident of Foord Road, raised a query regarding the 
on-going development behind her property. She was of the understanding 
that a retaining wall would be erected by the developer behind the carport. 
This had not taken place and she was now concerned that her property, 
and that of her neighbour, would be affected by subsidence.  
 
In response, Councillor Garton, the local ward Councillor, advised that she 
would follow up on Mrs Billard’s concerns. 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 January 2017 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

4. LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
The Chairman reported the following: 
 
Boorley Green Working Group 
 
The Group comprised representatives of Botley Parish Council, Eastleigh 
Borough Council and the Developers’ Consortium had met twice since the 
last Local Area Committee meeting. Consultation on the design of the 
community centre and also the Pavilion had been on-going. The Parish 
Council had now presented options to the Consortium for their 
consideration. 

1

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
The Council’s Planning Officer was awaiting amendments and final 
comment on the remaining dwellings and reserved matters, the plans for 
the local enterprise centre, and the extension to the hotel. The primary 
school application was being submitted by Hampshire County Council.  
 
A public art steering group was going to be established and 
representatives from the Parish and the Borough Council would join this 
group along with the new Neighbourhood Development Worker who would 
be appointed within the next three months.  
 
Responses to residents’ and Councillors’ requests 
 
During the past few months the following works had been funded by this 
Committee: 
 

 Two litter bins were installed near Ambleside and Sovereign Drive 
in Botley 

 

 A bus shelter in King’s Copse Avenue was repaired 
 

 A major culvert in Barbe Baker Avenue was cleared by the 
Council’s Direct Services team 

 

 Safety measures including signage for the boardwalk at the back of 
Berrywood School had also been authorised 

 
Eastleigh Sport and Physical Activity Alliance (SPAA) Awards 
 
On 13 February 2017, the seventh Eastleigh SPAA awards evening was 
staged at the Hilton at the Ageas Bowl, West End. Compered by BBC 
Radio Solent’s Kevan James, the evening celebrated the achievements of 
local people who were mainly participants, coaches, officials and 
volunteers. The Ageas Bowl provided the perfect venue to recognise the 
sporting talent within the Borough.  
 
Townhill Farm and Carpathia Close Play Areas 
 
On 16 February 2017, the Chairman was joined by children from Townhill 
Junior School and Noah’s Ark Pre-School to celebrate the official opening 
of the play areas at Townhill Farm and Carpathia Close. Residents had 
commented that the play areas are very busy with children enjoying the 
new equipment and he was therefore delighted that this Committee, and 
West End Parish Council, supported the upgrading of these two important 
community facilities.  

2



3 
 

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS OF HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY 

YOUTH COUNCIL FOR YOUTH GRANTS 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Area Manager in partnership 
with Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) Youth Council (Agenda 
item 6) that invited Members to endorse the recommendations of this 
year’s Youth Grants Panel and to extend their thanks to the volunteers 
who had participated in the decision making process. It was recommended 
that £4,000 from the Committee’s Youth Initiatives budget be reserved so 
that the Youth Grants Panel, with the support of the Hedge End Town 
Council’s youth work staff, be reconvened in 2018. 
 
Appendix 1 to the report contained the recommendations of the Youth 
Grants Panel.   
 
The HEWEB Youth Council had made specific efforts to ensure that 
equality and diversity implications were taken into account throughout its 
deliberations. Grant decisions had been made taking into account the key 
guidance of ‘Every Child Matters’ and the Children’s Act 2004.   
 
RESOLVED -  

(1) That the recommendations of the Hedge End, West End and 
Botley (HEWEB) Youth Council for HEWEB youth grants as 
shown in Appendix 1 be endorsed; 

(2) That thanks be extended to members of the Youth Grants 
Panel; and 

(3) That £4,000 be allocated to enable local youth grants to be 
awarded in 2018. 

 
(NOTE: Donna Love, Hedge End Town Council Youth Team Leader, and 
Joshua Buckle, Chair of the Youth Council reported on this item.) 
 

6. PLANNING APPEALS 
 
The Legal Services Manager reported:- 
 
(a) that the following appeals had been lodged:- 
 

63 Upper Northam Road, Hedge End, Southampton SO30 4EA – 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for the 
change of use of garage to 1no. one-bed dwelling with associated 
parking, garden, and bay window to front and alterations to 
fenestration. (Ref: F/16/79348.) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision. 
 

3



4 
 

41 Lower St. Helens Road, Hedge End, Southampton. SO30 0LX. – 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission to fell 
1no. ash tree. (Ref: T/16/79319.) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision. 
 
Christian Meeting Room, Granada Road, Hedge End. SO30 4AL – 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for the 
erection of 2-bed dwelling, following demolition of existing hall (Ref: 
F/16/78479.) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision. 
 
36 Tickner Close, Botley SO30 2SW – Appeal against the Council’s 
refusal of planning permission for the Part Retrospective Retention 
of single storey rear extension (Ref: F/16/78811.) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision. 
 

(b) that the following appeals had been allowed:- 
 

22 Upper Northam Close, Hedge End – Appeal against the 
Council’s refusal of planning permission for a two storey rear 
extension with a pitched roof at 22 Upper Northam Close, Hedge 
End (Ref: F/16/78527.) 

  
This was a Delegated Decision 
 
Midlands Estate, West End – Appeal against the Council’s refusal 
of planning permission for the construction of two x three bedroom 
bungalows with associated landscaping, car parking, refuse and 
recyclables and cycle storage facilities (Ref: F/16/78096.) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision. 

  
(c) that the following appeals had been dismissed:- 
  

7 Maddoxford Lane, Boorley Green, Botley – Appeal against the 
Council’s refusal of planning permission for the provision of a new 
roof with increased eaves height and front and rear dormers, two 
storey front extension to include excavation works to provide 
basement. (Ref: F/16/78533) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision 
 
34 Orchards Way, West End – Appeal against the Council’s refusal 
of planning permission for the provision of a garden shed. (Ref: 
F/16/78542) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision 

 

4



5 
 

13 Waters Edge, Hedge End – Appeal against the Council’s refusal 
of planning permission for a two storey side extension with integral 
garage (Ref F/16/78797). 
 
This was a Delegated Decision 

 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
M5582 
 
 

5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 27 March 2017 

FUNDING FOR LOCAL PROJECTS  

Report of the Area Manager in consultation with the Tree Services 
Manager, Countryside Manager and the Sports Development 
Manager 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that this Committee:  

1. approves funding of £7,000 from reserves for safety tree works at Itchen 
Valley Country Park; 

2. notes that further woodland management will be required at Itchen Valley 
Country Park and 

3. approves the renewal of the service level agreement for Friday Night Football 
at Botley Recreation Ground for a further 24 months with funding of £2,000 
per year. 

 
 

Summary 
 
The recommended funding will support projects which will meet identified local needs. The 
projects will also contribute to the achievement of corporate priorities. 
 
Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 Localism Act 2011 

 

 Itchen Valley Country Park – Safety tree works 

1. During the recent Storm “Doris”, a branch from a Corsican pine fell onto the 
nearby play area at Itchen Valley Country Park. Luckily no-one was in the 
vicinity at the time as the results would have been catastrophic according to 
the Countryside’s Duty Manager.  

2. As a result, an urgent inspection of the woodlands in the most popular areas 
of the country park i.e., around the play trail, car parks, bridle route and Little 
Owls, was carried out on 1 March by the Council’s Tree Officers and 

7

Agenda Item 6



 

Countryside staff. This inspection identified 2 Corsican pine trees that needed 
to be felled immediately. 

3.  The Tree Services Manager recommended that 30+ twin stem Corsican pines 
need felling within the next 6-8 months before the next winter season.  

4. A full survey of the entire tree stock within the Park is due to be carried out in 
July 2017. This may highlight more urgent priorities so members are asked to 
approve initial expenditure of £7,000 from reserves for urgent tree works as 
directed by the Tree Services Manager. 

5. Officers also noted Red Band Needle Blight (fungus) on multiple pines which 
will lead to their decline, and ash die back compromising ash trees. By not 
controlling trees showing these symptoms, it will spread further within the park 
and be more costly to control in the long term. 

 
6.  The Itchen Valley Woodland Management Plan states a 40% thin of Corsican 

pines will be carried out in 2017/18 and a thin to 25% of the best stems will be 
carried out next to the Forest Trail. However, given the issues above officers 
are recommending a 100% removal of Corsican pines subject to approval of a 
revised Management Plan and felling licence with the Forestry Commission. 
Increased yield should result in greater interest from forestry contractors; it 
addresses health and safety concerns; it will help limit the spread of red band 
needle blight safeguarding other susceptible species within the Park and it will 
allow the development of a flourishing and healthy natural broadleaved 
woodland. 

7.  The Countryside Manager is seeking quotations for this work. It is hoped that 
this will be cost neutral with the sale of timber equal to the cost of the works. 

 
8. Members are also requested to note that further woodland thinning will be 

carried out subject to Forestry Commission approval. Members will be 
updated once the Countryside Team has concluded their research into 
costings.  
  

Friday Night Football in Botley 

9.  Friday Night Football in Botley continues to be an excellent project as it 
engages young people through sport, giving them an alternative activity to 
participate in on a Friday evening. 
 

10. A meeting of the clerk at Botley Parish Council, the Sportworks Development 
Officer and the Area Manager was held to review the current project and the 
two year service level agreement which is due to expire in March 2017. 

11. The Council’s Sportworks Development Officer had produced an annual 
report from September 2015 – August 2016. This highlighted an average 
attendance of 50 youngsters per week with 2,303 attendances across the 
year. This is exceptional and is more than the combined attendances at the 
Friday Night Football sessions at Fleming Park and The Hub. 

8



 

12.  This Committee has traditionally allocated £2,000 each year towards this 
project to help cover expenditure such as coaching and equipment costs. The 
income which is estimated at £1,000 is paid into this Committee’s accounts. 

 
13. The Council’s Sportworks Development Officer will approach the HEWEB 

Youth Partnership to apply for repeat grant funding of £300. It is also hoped 
that local removals company, White & Co. will repeat their funding of £500. 

14. The Borough Council has also received sponsorship from Tescos totalling 
£1,000 which will be spread across the 3 Friday Night Football projects. 

15. Botley Parish Council has already agreed to continue its in-kind contribution 
for 3 hours free facility hire.   

16.  It is recommended therefore that this Committee continues to allocate £2,000 
per year based on the same service level agreement as in previous years with 
an extension from April 2017 – March 2019. 

Financial Implications 

17. There is sufficient funding within HEWEB’s revenue budgets and reserves for 
to afford the proposed projects.   

18. The attendances and income from Friday Night Football are closely monitored 
by the Sports Development Manager.  

19. Members will be updated regarding the additional tree works and asked to 
approve any further expenditure if required. 

Risk Assessment 

20. Tree works need to be carried out in order for the Council to fulfil its health 
and safety responsibilities. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

21. The Council has a General duty under the Equality Act 2010 of ‘eliminating 
discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, and fostering good relations 
between different people’. Funding allocations for projects in this report do not 
directly relate (either positively or negatively) to specific groups with ‘protected 
characteristics’ but will benefit all parts of the community. Therefore an 
Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out. 

Conclusion 

22. The identified projects will benefit the community within the HEWEB area and 
therefore the proposed funding is recommended for approval. 

 

9



 

JULIA BIRT 
Area Manager – Hedge End, West End & Botley 

 
 

Date: 3 March 2017 
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 023 8068 8437 
e-mail: Julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: None 
Report No: AC925JB 
 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information: 

None 

10



 

 

 
 
APPLICATIONS RECOMMENDED FOR DECISION 
 
HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY Monday 27 March 2017 Case Officer Liz Harrison 

 
 
SITE: Crows Nest Lane, Botley, Southampton, SO32 2DD 
 
Ref. O/16/78389 Received: 19/04/2016     (31/03/2017) 
 
 
APPLICANT: Welbeck Strategic Land LLP 
PROPOSAL: Outline Application: Residential development of up to 

50no. dwellings with green infrastructure, hard and 
soft landscape and associated infrastructure, 
including internal access roads, footpaths/cycle 
routes, play space and relocation of gas governor and 
creation of new access on to Maddoxford Lane. 

  
AMENDMENTS: 30.09.2016, 08.11.2016, 19.12.2016 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Subject to the completion of the S106 legal agreement delegate to Head 
of Development Management, in conjunction with the Chair, Vice-Chair 
and Local Ward Members of HEWEB Local Area Committee then 
 
GRANT OUTLINE PERMISSION 
 
 

 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
(1)  The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in general 
accordance with the following plans numbered: 01001A_SV01 revision D2 
and ITB10283-GA-014.    
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
  
(2)  The development hereby permitted shall begin either: a) No later than 
the expiration of two years from the date of this permission; OR b) No later 
than the expiration of one year from the date of approval of the last of the 
reserved matters to be approved.  
 
Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 
  

11

Agenda Item 8



 

 

(3)  No development shall start until details of the: a) layout of the site; b) 
scale of the buildings; c) external appearance of the buildings; and, d) 
landscaping of the site  [hereafter called "the reserved matters"], have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Application for the approval of the reserved matters shall be made within two 
years of the date of this permission. The development shall accord with the 
approved details.   
 
Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 
  
(4)  The details to be submitted as part of the reserved matters application 
shall be in general accordance with the Illustrative Landscape Masterplan 
[Produced by Scarp and dated Feb 16]; the Parameter Plan : Land Use and 
Green Infrastructure [Drawing No. 01001A_PP01 rev P1]; the Parameter 
Plan: Movement and Access [Drawing No. 01001A_PP02 Revision P4] and 
the set out in Chapters 5-8 of the Design & Access Statement [as amended 
September and November 2016] and no building shall be more than 2 storeys 
in height.   
 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interests of the 
amenities of the area. 
  
(5)  No development shall start until details and samples of the materials to 
be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development 
hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details.  
 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the 
amenities of the area. 
  
(6) No construction or demolition work shall start until a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan has been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Demolition and construction work 
shall only take place in accordance with the approved method statement 
which shall include:   
a) a programme and phasing of the demolition and construction work, 
including roads, landscaping and open space;   
b) location of temporary site buildings, compounds, construction material and 
plant storage areas used during demolition and construction;    
c) proposed safeguards to preserve water quality and flows leaving the site 
during construction, including safeguards for any fuel and chemical storage 
and use; and diagrammatic and written details of construction drainage 
containing three forms of temporary filtration;   
d) safeguards to protect on-site waterways from pollution impacts; 
e) the arrangements for the routing/ turning of lorries and details for 
construction traffic acces to the site;   

12



 

 

f) the arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction works, 
loading/ unloading of plant & materials and  restoration of any damage to the 
highway [including vehicle crossovers and grass verges]. 
g) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;    
h) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt generated by demolition 
and construction;   
i) a scheme for controlling noise and vibration from demolition and 
construction activities [to include piling];   
j) provision for storage, collection, and disposal of rubbish from the 
development during construction period;   
k) measures to prevent mud and dust on the highway during demolition and 
construction;   
l) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate;    
m) temporary lighting;   
n) protection of pedestrian routes during construction;   
 
Reason: To limit the impact the development has on the amenity of the 
locality and to ensure no impact on the Solent Complex from pollution within 
the construction process. 
  
(7)  No development shall start until the following details have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:   
 
a) plans including cross sections to show proposed ground levels and their 
relationship to existing levels both within the site and on immediately adjoining 
land; 
b) the width, alignment, gradient, sight lines and type of construction proposed 
for any roads, footpaths and accesses; and 
c) the provision to be made for street lighting and/or external lighting. Lighting 
shall be designed and located to minimise light spillage and avoid impacting 
on flight corridors used by bats. 
 
The development shall not be occupied until the approved details have been 
fully implemented. 
 
Reason: To limit the impact the development has on the local area and 
ecology and to ensure the roads are built to an adoptable standard. 
  
(8)  No development shall start until details for the disposal of foul sewage 
from the development hereby permitted, and a timetable for its 
implementation, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall then accord with the approved 
details.  
 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory provision of foul drainage. 
  
(9)  Prior to the submission of the first reserved matters application on site 
a detailed sustainable drainage system (SUDs), in accordance with the 
principles set out in Opus's Supplemental Briefing Note on Drainage, dated 

13



 

 

13.12.16,  shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The submitted details shall include the SUDs layout; source control 
measures to limit pollutants leaving the site,which should include 3 forms of 
naturalised filtration; a timetable for its implemenation and a 
management/maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development [including 
the arrangements for adoption by any public body or statutory undertaker, or 
any other arrangements to secure the effective operation of the sustainable 
drainage system and to maintain operational water quality and surface water 
flows from the site into the tributary of the River Hamble are maintained at 
current levels].  The approved system shall be implemented and thereafter 
managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage from the development and to ensure 
no impact on the Solent Complex from pollution or changes in flow within the 
operational phase. 
  
(10) No development shall take place until details of the measures to be used 
to protect the public sewers must be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason:  To protect the public sewer. 
  
(11) No development shall take place until details of any proposed pumping 
stations, including siting, appearance and an implementation timetable, have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The installation of the pumping station shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of visual and residential amenity. 
  
(12) Prior to the submission of the first reserved matters application a site 
wide green infrastructure strategy should be submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The strategy should detail the extent 
and nature of the natural habitat, open space and corridors within the network 
and the network should incorporate all open space within the development 
and extend into the urban area via wildlife corridors and other enhancements.  
The strategy should be overarching, referencing all the species specific 
strategies and providing details relating to overall habitat connectivity within 
the network and any requirements above that provided for mitigation. The final 
green infrastructure should be multifunctional and provide gains for wildlife 
and the human population in line with national policy. Reason: To ensure 
provision of a fully connected, multifunctional green infrastructure. 
  
(13) Prior to the commencement of development a landscaping scheme shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
scheme shall cover all hard and soft landscaping [including trees and 
boundary treatments] and provide details of timings for all landscaping and 
any future maintenance.  The works shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details and to the appropriate British Standard. For a period of 
no less than 5 years after planting, any trees or plants which are removed, die 

14



 

 

or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced as soon as is 
reasonably practicable with others of the same species, size and number as 
originally approved in the landscaping scheme.  
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality, biodiversity and 
to safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
  
(14) No development shall start until a landscape management plan and 
maintenance schedule has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The landscaping shall thereafter be managed in 
accordance with the approved details.  
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 
  
(15) No development related works shall take place on site until a revised 
Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan (B.S.5837:2012 
Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction) is submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority Tree Officer. The 
approved Method Statement submitted in support of the application shall be 
adhered to in full in accordance with the approved plans and may only be 
modified subject to written agreement from the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which form an important part 
of the amenity of the locality. 
  
(16) No development shall commence until a site meeting has taken place 
with the site manager, the retained consulting arboriculturalist and a 
representative from the Local Planning Authority for each phase of the 
development.  Work cannot commence until the Local Planning Authority 
officer has inspected and approved the proposed tree protection. Once 
approved no access by vehicles or placement of goods, chemicals, fuels, soil 
or other materials shall take place within fenced area.  The fencing shall be 
retained in its approved form for the duration of the work.  All other aspects of 
the Arboricultural Implications Assessment and Method Statement will be 
addressed at this meeting. This tree condition may only be fully discharged on 
completion of the development subject to satisfactory written evidence of 
monthly monitoring and compliance by the pre-appointed tree specialist 
during construction.  
 
Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which form an important part 
of the amenity of the locality. 
  
(17) No development shall commence until a stream restoration and 
management plan has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The plan shall include details of:  
a) The methodology to be used to desilt the stream; 
b) Safeguards to ensure no egress of silt into the Hamble during the works; 
c)  Enhancements such as meanders, rills, other in channel and bankside 
works to ensure the highest biodiversity and water quality gains; 
d) Details of landscaping if appropriate; 

15



 

 

e) Short, medium and long term management; and 
f) Monitoring of the flora, fauna, water quality and flows within the stream to 
indicate whether the works have achieved their aims and management is 
appropriate. 
 
Reason: To ensure no impact on the water quality within the Hamble and 
provide opportunities for biodiversity and water quality improvement. 
  
(18) Prior to the submission of the first reserved matters application a detailed 
otter mitigation strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The submission should include the following: 
a) A strategy detailing measures to deter visitor and dog disturbance on the 
otter population;  
b) Safeguards such as dispersal corridors to ensure that the third derogation 
test laid out in the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as 
amended) can be met and there will be no significant impact on the otter 
population present within the locality; and 
c) Management of the corridors in the short, medium and long term. 
 
Reason:  To ensure the locality continues to support a thriving otter 
population. 
  
(19) A detailed bat mitigation strategy shall be submitted with the first 
reserved matters application to provide the following: 
a) A hedgerow plan incorporating the location and extent of mitigation for 
fragmentation and habitat loss and additional hedgerow habitat within the 
residential area; 
b) A plan of the locations of bat boxes for mitigation and enhancement; 
c) The extent and location of dark corridors across the site to provide prime 
bat foraging habitat; and 
d) A lighting plan with the aim of light spill not exceeding 1 lux in foraging 
corridors used by bat species and along woodland edges and riparian 
corridors. 
 
Reason: To protect and enhance bat foraging corridors within the site. 
  
(20) No development shall commence until a detailed ventilation scheme has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Where acceptable internal noise levels cannot be met with open windows, 
alternative ventilation, will be required and should be detailed in the submitted 
scheme.  All works that form part of the scheme approved by the Local 
Planning Authority must be completed before any of the permitted dwellings 
are occupied (unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority). The 
scheme must be fully implemented, unless varied with written permission of 
the Local Planning Authority in advance of implementation.  
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the future occupiers. 
  
(21) Prior to construction traffic using Maddoxford Lane, Oatlands Road and 
Crows Nest Lane a condition survey of the highway and grass verges on 

16



 

 

these roads, including photographic evidence, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Within one month of the 
cessation of construction traffic using those roads a further condition survey of 
the highway and grass verges, including photographic evidence, together with 
a schedule of works to repair any damage and a timetable for their 
implementation shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for 
approval. The repairs to the highway and grass verges shall be carried out in 
accordance with the agreed scheme and timetable. 
 
Reason: To ensure no permanent damage to local roads from construction 
traffic. 
  
(22) No development shall take place untill details of the relocation of the gas 
governor, including siting, appearance and an implementation timetable, have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The gas governor shall be relocated in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and visual amenity. 
  
(23) Prior to the occupation of any building within each individual phase of the 
development [or, in accordance with a timetable to be agreed in writing with 
the Local Planning Authority], as built stage SAP data and as built stage water 
calculations confirming energy efficiency and the predicted internal mains 
water consumption to achieve the following shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
 
- In respect of energy efficiency, a standard of a 19% improvement of dwelling 
emission rate over the target emission rate as set in 2013 Part L of the 
Building Regulations, to be measured as an average and applied across each 
phase of the development. 
- In respect of water consumption, a maximum predicted internal mains water 
consumption of 105 litres/person/day. 
 
The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with 
the approved details. 
 
Reason: To support a comprehensive approach to high quality design across 
the site; in line with the guidance set out in the Government's Ministerial 
Statement of 25 March 2015 which states that Local Planning Authorities 
should, from the date of its publication, take into account the government's 
intentions in the statement [and not set conditions with requirements above a 
Code level 4 equivalent]. 
  
(24) The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until 
visibility splays of 2.4 metres by 43 metres have been provided at the junction 
of the access and the public highway.  Nothing over 0.6m in height above the 
level of the carriageway shall be placed or permitted to remain within the 
visibility splay.  
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

17



 

 

  
(25) No construction, demolition, ground and earth works, or deliveries to the 
site shall take place during the construction period except between the hours 
of 0800 to 1800 Mondays to Fridays or 0800 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at 
all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.  
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings. 
  
(26) No burning of materials obtained by site clearance or any other source 
shall take place on-site during the demolition, construction and fitting out 
process.  
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties. 
  
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive 
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, 
whenever possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt 
with in a timely manner. 
  
Note to Applicant: In preparing the Construction Environmental Management 
Plan to be submitted in relation to condition 6 due regard should be had to the 
advice and guidance contained in Best Practice Guidance - The Control of 
Dust and Emissions from Construction and Demolition, 2006 (27) and 
Guidance on the Assessment of Dust from Demolition and Construction, 2014 
(Institute of Air Quality Management). 
  
Note to Applicant: The exact position of the public surface water sewer within 
the site should be determined before the layout of the development is 
finalised. No development or tree planting should be located within 3.5 metres 
either side of the centreline of the public sewer and all existing infrastructure 
should be protected during the course of construction works. No new 
soakaways should be located within 5 metres of a public sewer.  
 
The applicant/developer should enter into a formal agreement with Southern 
Water to provide the necessary sewerage infrastructure required to service 
this development. A formal application for connection to the water supply will 
also be required. Please contact Southern Water, Sparrowgrove House, 
Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire SO21 2SW [Tel: 0330 303 0119] or 
www.southernwater.co.uk 
  
Note to Applicant: the permission does not authorise the undertaking of any 
works involving excavations in the carriageway, footway or verge. A road 
opening permit must be obtained from Hampshire Highways [contact number 
0845 603 5633]. 
 

 
  
 

18



 

 

Report: 
 
1. This application has been referred to Committee because it is a Major 

development which is contrary to the Development Plan and is 
considered to be controversial.         

 
The site and its surroundings 
 
2. The application site comprises a rectangular parcel of land that extends 

to an area of approximately 3.1 hectares. The site is bound by 
Maddoxford Lane to the north and Crows Nest Lane to the west, with 
the latter demarcating the extent of the existing built-up area. The site, 
therefore, lies within designated countryside in the Council’s adopted 
Local Plan and also forms part of the Local Gap between Boorley 
Green and the settlement of Botley which lies further to the south. The 
adjoining land to the immediate east of the site is also the subject of an 
outline application for residential development (O/16/79600) which is 
also before Members for consideration at this committee. To the north, 
on the opposite side of Maddoxford Lane, is the Boorley Park 
development which has outline permission for 1,400 dwellings and a 
range of associated infrastructure and facilities (O/12/71514).  
 

3. The site is currently agricultural land that forms part of Oakridge Farm, 
with the associated farm house and buildings located to the east, 
outside the application site. The majority of the site, therefore, is 
undeveloped except for a small brick-built gas governor to the north-
western corner which is proposed to be relocated elsewhere along the 
Maddoxdford Lane frontage as part of the development. In addition, the 
southern-most section of the site, which borders Boorley Green Farm, 
is presently utilised for the purposes of caravan storage. 
  

4. The site is generally flat, with a relatively gentle rise in a northerly 
direction. The western boundary with Crows Nest Lane is marked by a 
mature tree belt that makes a significant contribution to the prevailing 
character of the road. There are further mature trees as well as 
hedging along the eastern perimeter of the site, with a cluster of trees 
to the south. The Maddoxford Lane frontage consists of an established 
hedgerow. There are gas and fuel pipelines nearby, running parallel to 
the site’s eastern and western boundaries respectively. The route of 
the approved Botley Trunk Sewer also runs through the eastern edge 
of the site in a north-south direction.  

 
Description of application 
 
5. The application seeks outline planning permission for the construction 

of up to 50 dwellings, with access from Maddoxford Lane and hard and 
soft landscaping and associated infrastructure, including the provision 
of internal roads, footpaths/cycle routes, and play space. The 
proposals also include the relocation of the existing brick-built gas 

19



 

 

governor which lies to the north-western corner of the site adjacent to 
Maddoxford Lane.  

 
6. As well as considering the principle of development on this site, the 

application also seeks approval for the proposed access. All other 
matters of detail which include the appearance, scale, layout, and the 
exact landscaping provisions, would be considered at reserved matters 
stage should outline planning permission be granted.  

 
7. Access to serve the development is proposed from Maddoxford Lane in 

the form of a T-junction on the northern boundary of the site, to the 
east of which is a proposed pedestrian footway / cycleway access with 
a crossing point and pedestrian refuge on Maddoxford Lane to link the 
site into the wider Boorley Green development to the north. In addition, 
the illustrative masterplan submitted in support of the application shows 
potential pedestrian / cycleway access points onto Crows Nest Lane to 
the west, as well as a potential footpath and a separate vehicle link 
along the eastern boundary of the site to allow for future access and 
movement between the development and that currently proposed on 
the adjacent land (under planning application O/16/79600) should this 
be approved. 

 
8. The proposed development would incorporate a mixture of 1, 2, 3 and 

4-bedroom homes and based on a net developable area of 1.63h 
would represent a net density of 31 dwellings per hectare. An area of 
open space is shown within the southern section of the site, together 
with the proposed attenuation basin for the sustainable drainage 
system.  The existing tree belts and hedgerows along the eastern and 
western boundaries and the wooded area to the south are to be largely 
retained and reinforced. Additional trees and landscaping and other 
green infrastructure are also proposed internally within the site.  

 
9. The application is accompanied by the following reports and technical 

assessments which have been updated as necessary throughout the 
course of the application: 

 

 Planning Statement 

 Affordable Housing Statement 

 Public Art Statement 

 Sustainability Statement  

 Design and Access Statement (Incorporating Statement of 
Community Involvement) 

 Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment and Landscape 
Management Plan 

 Transport Statement 

 Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy 

 Ecological Assessment and Surveys 

 Land Quality Risk Assessment 

 Arboricultural Assessment 

20



 

 

 Services and Utilities Statement 

 Noise Assessment 
 
10. The Secretary of State has issued a screening direction under 5(7) of 

the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations 2011 (as amended) in respect of the matter of whether or 
not the development of a wider site for up to 200 dwellings that 
included this site would constitute ‘EIA development’ for the purposes 
of these regulations.  

 
11. The Secretary of State has determined that the development falls 

within the description of paragraph 10b of Schedule 2 of the 2011 
Regulations; however, having taken into account the selection criteria 
in Schedule 3, does not consider that the proposal is likely to have 
significant effects on the environment. Accordingly, the Secretary of 
State has directed that the proposed development is not ‘EIA 
development’ and an Environmental Statement is not therefore 
required.  

 
12. Screening was also undertaken to establish whether a Habitats 

Regulations Assessment is required. It was concluded that, with the 
mitigation proposed and conditions to control impacts, no significant 
likely impacts on any European Designated sites would occur as a 
result of the development and a full HRA is not required. 

 
 
Relevant planning history 
 
13. There is no planning history relevant to the existing use of the land. As 

noted above, the route of the Botley Trunk Sewer runs through the 
application site and was approved under the following applications: 

 

 F/15/76235: Construction of a 5km trunk sewer and associated 
works including new pumping station and pipe bridge. This 
application is subject to an Environmental Impact Assessment. 
PERMITTED – 20/07/2015 
 

 X/16/79327: Variation of planning application F/15/76235 to 
include amendments to pipeline alignment to allow directional 
drilling, changes to permanent structures for operation and 
maintenance, changes to construction easements, compounds, 
access locations and sizes, removal of pipe bridge and 
consequential amendments to conditions. PERMITTED – 
28/02/2017 

 
14. Also of relevance to the development proposals is the following current 

application on the adjoining land to the east of the site, which is also on 
this agenda: 

 

21



 

 

 O/16/79600: Outline Application for demolition of existing 
residential dwelling and associated farm buildings, development 
of up to 50 dwellings with access from Maddoxford Lane, site 
infrastructure, open space and associated landscaping (Land 
South of Maddoxford Lane, Boorley Green). 

 
Representations received 
 
15. A total of 49 letters of representation have been received in relation to 

the proposals. Of these, 41 are in objection, 7 are in support, and 1 
makes an observation regarding the length of the determination period 
for the application.  

 
The following objections have been raised: 
 
Principle of development 

 Contrary to the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan, the Council’s emerging 
Local Plan and the emerging Botley Neighbourhood Plan.  

 The application is being considered in isolation and not as part of a 
Local Plan. The impacts of development should be considered as part 
of the Local Plan process. 

 Further development is not needed in the area.  

 There are more appropriate areas to develop near to town centres and 
on brownfield land. Other sites such as Allington Lane would be more 
suitable for development.  

 The development would create access onto land in the same 
ownership, indicating that further applications will come forward on the 
adjacent site.  

 
Impact on character of the surrounding area and the Local Gap 

 Intrusion into the local gap between Boorley Green, Botley and 
Curdridge, risking the coalescence of these settlements.  

 Overdevelopment in the Boorley Green and Botley area and 
cumulative impacts with other approved and proposed developments 
(including Boorley Fields, Land North of Hedge End, Woodhouse Lane 
and in Botley Village). 

 Excessive development in a semi-rural location and urbanisation of the 
countryside and loss of green field which are a diminishing resource.  

 The hamlet of Boorley Green currently has 210 homes and current 
development will already increase this by 800%. 

 Will completely destroy the rural setting of Boorley Green.  

 Out of character with the detached houses on Crows Nest Lane.   
 
Flooding and drainage 

 Area is subject to flooding and current drainage system is inadequate 
and this would exacerbate existing problems. 

 Southern Water has advised that the new sewer only has capacity for 
the 1,400 homes proposed. 

22



 

 

 The application includes no solution to sewerage problems and should 
not be approved until proper infrastructure is in place.  

 
Transport and access 

 The existing road network is inadequate and struggles to cope with 
current levels of traffic.  

 Additional traffic will cause congestion and endanger highway safety.  

 Cumulative impact of additional traffic with other developments in the 
area which is not taken into account in submitted traffic documents.  

 The full impact of the Boorley Fields development should be 
understood before any further development is allowed. 

 Transport documents are inaccurate.  

 The access onto Maddoxford Lane is dangerous and will cause 
congestion due to it being opposite the Boorley Fields access.  

 Adverse impact on highway safety for residents of Maddoxford Lane 
trying to access their properties.  

 Adverse impact of construction traffic and inadequate parking.  

 Journeys will need to be made by car with no jobs in the area or shops 
within walking distance. 

 No mention of any footpath provision for children to walk to the new 
secondary school at Horton Heath.  

 
Amenity (including air quality, noise, pollution and impact on local residents) 

 Increase in air and noise pollution with the Botley Air Quality 
Management Area, with levels already exceeding EU permitted 
standards. 

 Construction traffic will cause pollution, noise and mud on Maddoxford 
Lane.  

 Visual intrusion, overlooking, loss of view, loss of privacy and the right 
to enjoy a quiet and safe environment.  

 
Infrastructure and facilities 

 Insufficient capacity at Botley and Hedge End surgeries.  

 Current full time GPs having patient lists twice the national average.  

 Will put additional pressure on emergency departments and NHS trust 
providers as people feel the need to access these services as an 
alternative.  

 Should not be allowed to proceed until local health providers confirm 
they can support any expansion of the population. 

 Schooling and dental facilities are at breaking point in the area and 
there is inadequate provision for additional facilities.  

 Gas and electricity supplies will be compromised.  

 The number of affordable homes may not meet current guidelines and 
no confirmation is given of when such homes would be built.  

 
Biodiversity and other environmental impacts 

 The decision for no EIA is flawed and the Secretary of State has not 
been provided with the full facts of the sites surrounding the 
development to make his decision.  

23



 

 

 Destruction of natural habitat for wildlife.   

 The oak trees along Crows Nest Lane are part of its beauty and should 
not be affected by the development.  

 
Other 

 Lack of consultation with local residents.  

 Loss of top-grade agricultural land. 

 Concern at the proximity of the development to the railway and the 
danger of Botley suffering another landslip along the railway.  

 Any addition to the houses already approved in the area will 
exacerbate an already undemocratic and disastrous situation.  

 Dismayed at the Council’s failure to produce a sound local plan. 

 Residents were assured that the land east of Crows Nest Lane would 
never be built upon.  

 
The following comments have been raised in support: 
 

 Would bring much needed housing and improvement to the area. 

 Council does not have a five year housing supply or an up to date 
development plan. Housing policies are considered out of date and 
irrelevant in the context of this application.  

 Application should be considered in the context of the NPPF’s 
presumption in favour of sustainable development.  

 Proposal is a natural extension to the site to the north of Maddoxford 
Lane. 

 Site is in a sustainable location directly adjacent to the settlement 
boundary, with the Boorley Green development to the north and the 
proposal (O/16/79600) on the land to the east. The site will therefore 
be enclosed by development to the north, east and west. 

 Will provide a robust settlement edge and would not reduce the 
separation to Botley.   

 The site, along with the neighbouring land, will provide medium scale 
housing opportunities deliverable within the next 5 years. 

 This application and O/16/79600 should be determined together as 
their suitability is inherently linked. This will also allow for a 
comprehensive landscape approach that will provide a true edge of 
settlement context.  

 Through the development of both sites, the linkages between Boorley 
Green and the new Boorley Park development will be improved upon to 
the benefit of existing and new residents.  

 The proposals comprise sustainable development with substantial 
benefits, most notably the contribution towards housing land supply. 
These are not outweighed by the adverse impacts.  

 
Consultation responses 
 
 Regeneration & Planning Policy  
 
16. Policy 

24



 

 

The site is within the countryside and Local Gap between Boorley Green and 
Botley.  The proposal does not meet criteria i)-iii) of policy 1.CO and would 
have the effect of physically diminishing the gap between Boorley Green and 
Botley. It is therefore contrary to policies 1.CO and 3.CO. 
 
17. The site was assessed as part of a larger site through the Strategic 

Land Availability Assessment (SLAA) 2015 (Land south of Maddoxford 
Lane and east of Crows Nest Lane, Boorley Green). The SLAA 
concluded that the site is well-related to an existing settlement (Boorley 
Green) and offers the potential for lower density residential 
development. It was assessed that the mature landscape helps with 
containment and screens views to the open countryside. 

 
18. The illustrative masterplan layout contains higher dwelling densities 

than the existing neighbouring land uses. Careful consideration of the 
impact on Crows Nest Lane will be required.  The applicant’s visual 
impact assessment (LVIA) indicates that the proposed site would not 
visually intrude on perceptions of Boorley Green as a distinct entity as 
the gentle rising topography together with existing vegetation cover 
means that the site is screened from publically accessible views, even 
in winter. 

 
19. The further urbanisation of land between Boorley Green and Botley, 

the loss of countryside and access to local services by sustainable 
transport modes, should be weighed against the benefits of 
development, in terms of paragraph 14 of the NPPF (the presumption 
in favour of sustainable development). 

 
20. The Council are currently unable to demonstrate a five year housing 

land supply, therefore the potential benefits of this proposal to help 
meet this requirement are significant material considerations. 
Paragraph 49 of the NPPF says relevant policies for the supply of 
housing are not up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot 
demonstrate a 5-year housing land supply, as such saved policy 1.CO, 
insofar as it restricts housing development, is considered to be out-of-
date.  It is considered that Policy 3.CO is not out-of-date as it is not a 
policy constraining the supply of new housing. 

 
 NB: Please note this consultation response was written before recent 
case law related to the interpretation of what are considered to be policies 
relevant for the supply of housing. These are discussed in more detail in the 
Assessment of the Proposal section below. 
 
21. The Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-29 is not a 

significant material consideration. Within this plan, the site was not 
proposed to be allocated for development and policy S9 “Countryside 
and Countryside Gap” applied to the site. The Revised Submission 
Proposals Map illustrates that the implementation of nearby allocated 
strategic sites would leave a countryside gap between Botley and 
Boorley Green which includes the application site. The impact of the 

25



 

 

proposed development site therefore on the function of this remaining 
gap needs consideration, in light of the emerging site allocations and 
recent permissions, as well as being judged on its own merits. Policy 
S8 is also applicable as the western edge of the proposed 
development site is bounded by a strategic 
footpath/cycleway/bridleway sought to connect Boorley Green to 
Hedge End railway station. 
 

22. The proposal is contrary to policies 1.CO and 3.CO of the Local Plan; 
however there is a need for housing and the Council cannot 
demonstrate a 5 year supply. The proposal should be considered in 
terms of the NPPF’s presumption in favour of sustainable development 
and the key test is therefore whether the adverse impacts of 
development outweigh the benefits (paragraph 14 of the NPPF). 

 
 Landscape  
23. The Design & Access Statement is generally well considered and sets 

a reasonable design approach for this tightly constrained site if policy 
designations and relatively high density in context of adjoining existing 
development are set aside.  The site appears to be well contained by 
topography and existing vegetation from the south and east, but would 
be highly visible from Maddoxford Lane to the north and Crows Nest 
Lane to the west.  However, proposed structural landscaping would 
significantly reduce the visibility of the development from Crows Nest 
Lane and Maddoxford Lane in summer at year 10 after planting.  The 
softening and screening would be less effective during winter months.  
The impact from the railway track is not likely to be significant.  The 
existing landscape structure appears to lend itself reasonably well to 
accommodating the level of development proposed in this location but 
it would be unrealistic to think that the mitigation proposed could 
screen the development completely. 

 
24. Although I anticipate that effect of development on the gap would be 

greatly reduced in comparison with the wider development anticipated 
in the submission to the local plan process, the development would 
clearly physically diminish the gap between Botley and Boorley Green.  
The perception of leaving one settlement before entering another when 
travelling between Boorley Green and Botley via Crows Nest Lane 
would be diminished with further development on the eastern side of 
the lane.  The cumulative effect of the proposals together with 
anticipated development of land south of the railway and at 
Woodhouse Lane on the gap between settlements also needs to be 
taken into account, which is likely to be further exacerbated if the 
Botley By-Pass is constructed. 

 
25. Design – Design & Access Statement very well considered, responding 

well to constraints and opportunities and referencing the Quality Places 
SPD. 
 

26



 

 

26. Sustainability – the Council’s current requirements are for all new 
residential properties to meet the equivalent of the level 4 standards for 
water and energy in the now revoked Code for Sustainable Homes. 
This means that predicted carbon emissions should be at least 19% 
lower than those allowed by building regulations and that predicted 
internal mains water consumption should be no more than 105 
litres/person/day. 

 
27. Biodiversity – No objection subject to conditions to require the 

submission of a stream restoration and management plan, a 
construction environment management plan, SuDS strategy, otter and 
bat mitigation strategies, and a site wide green infrastructure strategy. 
A financial contribution is required towards the Solent Disturbance 
Mitigation Strategy.  

 
28. Trees – No objection subject to conditions. 
 
29. Transportation & Engineering – No objection subject to conditions 

and a financial contribution towards transport measures.  The site 
access is acceptable. Indicative pedestrian/cycle accesses onto Crows 
Nest Lane remain a concern but it is understood that this would be 
dealt with at reserved matters stage if outline permission granted. 
There could be an opportunity for a new footway/cycle path to be 
created from Maddoxford Lane southwards within the site, linking to 
Crows Nest Lane. 

 
30. Development cannot be classified as having anything like a severe 

impact on the local highway network, which is onwards required to 
justify a transport reason for refusal. Suggest before and after highway 
conditions survey so that construction traffic damage can be rectified 
as public roads leading to this site are not built to modern standards 
and could sustain damage. SuDS scheme should make provision for 
reinstatement of the ditch course along Maddoxford Lane frontage and 
culverting of ditch at access point. 

 
31. Environmental Health – No objection subject to conditions re: need 

for a ventilation scheme, a construction management plan, restriction 
of on-site burning and hours of work.  
 

32. Housing Services – No objection subject to provision of 35% 
affordable housing on site (18 dwellings).  Affordable dwellings will 
need to be built to Lifetime Homes Standards with a 65%/35% split 
between rented units and shared ownership, clusters of no more than 
10-15 units and if developed in phases, each phase to deliver 35% 
affordable.  Some changes to the proposed housing mix required. 

   
33. HCC Children’s Services – No objection subject to financial 

contributions towards primary and secondary education. 
 

27



 

 

34. HCC Highways – Support provision of improved pedestrian and 
connectivity in this vicinity.  Plan showing provision of refuge is suitable 
for indicative purposes and demonstrates works are deliverable, but 
amendments may be required at formal design checking stage.  

 
35. HCC Flood & Water Management – The general principles for the 

surface water drainage proposals are acceptable, recommend further 
information on the proposals be submitted as part of a more detailed 
design phase. 

 
36. Southern Water – Southern Water cannot accommodate the needs of 

this application without the development providing additional local 
infrastructure.  The proposed development would increase flows into 
the wastewater sewerage system and as a result increase the risk of 
flooding in and around the existing area, contrary to paragraph 109 of 
the NPPF.  Section 98 of the Water Industry Act 1991 provides a legal 
mechanism through which the appropriate infrastructure can be 
requested by the developer to accommodate the development.  
Southern Water can provide a water supply to the site. Due to the 
vibration, noise and potential odour generated by sewage pumping 
stations, no habitable rooms should be located closer than 15 metres 
to the boundary of a proposed pumping station site. Conditions and 
informatives are requested to be attached to any permission granted in 
relation to foul and surface water drainage details. 

 
37. Natural England – No objection. The application is in close proximity 

to the Solent and Southampton Water Special Protection Area (SPA), 
Solent and Southampton Water Ramsar site and Solent Maritime 
Special Area of Conservation (SAC), which are European sites.  The 
sites are also listed as Solent and Southampton Water Ramsar site 
and notified at a national level as the Upper Hamble Estuary and Wood 
Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).  As the site is within 5.6km of 
Solent and Southampton Water SPA and will lead to an increase in 
residential accommodation the applicant should comply with the 
Council’s policy to mitigate against the adverse effects from 
recreational disturbance on the integrity of the European site.  

 
38. NHS (West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Group) – The 

increase in the local population will inevitably seek registration with a 
local GP surgery and place additional pressure on NHS services.  

 
39. Our estimate of the level of additional demand that will be placed on 

NHS primary care does not, in our view, warrant the commissioning of 
an additional GP surgery. The increased demand will be 
accommodated by the existing GP surgeries open to new registration 
requests from people living in the area of the proposed development. 
However, additional capacity within these premises will be required. 
The CCG considers that that the application should make an 
appropriate financial contribution to the capital investment that the NHS 
will make in this regard.  

28



 

 

 

40. Health and Safety Executive (via PADHI+) – HSE does not advise, 
on safety grounds, against the granting of planning permission. As the 
proposed development is within the Consultation Distance of a major 
hazard pipeline you should consider contacting the pipeline operator 
before deciding the case as they may have a legal interest in the 
vicinity of the pipeline and there may be a need for the operator to 
modify the pipeline, or its operation, if the development proceeds.  

 

41. Fisher German on Behalf of Esso Petroleum Co Ltd – No objection 
provided specified special requirements for safe working in close 
proximity to high pressure pipelines and the covenants in the Deed of 
Grant are adhered to.  

 
42. Southern Gas Networks – no comments received.  
 
43. Southampton Airport – No objection. 
 
44. Botley Parish Council – Objection on the following grounds: 

 The site is unsuitable for housing development. 
 Sewerage and potable water  

 The Botley Trunk Sewer is only for disposal of waste from the 
Boorley Park development and there is no capacity in the 
existing infrastructure.  No information is provided as to 
proposals for the disposal of sewerage from the development 
site. Would like comments from Southern Water re: water 
supply. 

   Transport 

 A single access point will be restrictive and inconvenient for 
residents and access and turning appears tight for public service 
vehicles within the site.  

 There are inaccuracies in transport documents.  

 HCC should comment on applicant’s description of local roads in 
light of anticipated traffic flows from Boorley Park development 
and application for 680 dwellings to west of Winchester Road; as 
well as upon impact of proposed traffic management measures 
proposed in relation to Boorley Park development on traffic from 
this site. 

 Wangfield Lane is unsuitable for an increased volume of traffic.  

 Safe pedestrian access to Boorley Park development and its 
facilities not identified.   

 Highways drainage is very poor along Maddoxford Lane.  If 
buses run internally within Boorley Park it will adversely affect 
claim re: ease of access to public transport. 

   Surface Water drainage  

 Local residents say attenuation pond is at the wrong end of the 
site for effective, natural drainage due to topography.   

 No information provided re: provision and costs for maintaining 
SuDS. 

    

29



 

 

Community facilities 

 There are no shops or facilities in Boorley Green.  The 
documents refer to public facilities being provided at Boorley 
Park but there are no published dates for construction.   

 On-site play and open space is inadequate for a residential 
development of this size. 

   Environmental Issues  

 Local residents have said that during past 70 years there have 
been up to 10 outbreaks of bovine infection resulting in burial of 
animals on the site.   

 Bats have been reported roosting in nearby houses and may 
also roost on the site. Evidence of dormouse habitation in 
roadside hedgerows along northern boundary of Maddoxford 
Lane.  This site should be similarly investigated. 

   EIA Secretary of State Screening Direction  

 Surprised EIA is not required, and question whether Secretary of 
State had information re: 1400 houses at Boorley Park and 680 
to west of Winchester Road.  Penultimate paragraph of decision 
notice says it is important to note that cumulative effects will 
need to be re-considered with any further incremental 
development proposals in this area and the need for EIA may 
change depending on the circumstances of each case. 

   Botley Neighbourhood Plan – 

 Residential development is contrary to the emerging Botley 
Neighbourhood Plan. 

 
45. Curdridge Parish Council – Object on the grounds of further over 

development and encroachment into the countryside, which will 
adversely affect the gap between Boorley Green and Curdridge. The 
development will add to the excessive traffic flow onto Wangfield Lane 
and Maddoxford Lane and up to the already dangerous junction with 
the B3035. 

 
46. Botley Parish Action Group – Object for the following reasons: 

 Excessive development and urbanisation of semi-rural area. 

 Incursion into the Local Gap between Boorley Green, Botley and 
Curdridge.  

 Not consistent with the emerging Botley Neighbourhood Plan. 

 Increased traffic on unsuitable roads with the studies not taking 
into account the cumulative effect of this proposal and those 
expected from the Boorley Fields development and the 
Winchester Road site. Roads already inadequate for current 
traffic levels.  

 The existing drainage system is already at capacity and the new 
sewage pipe to be built across the site by Southern Water is 
only intended to serve the 1400 house development at Botley 
Fields. No permission should be given without positive 
proposals for foul drainage in place. 

30



 

 

 GP services are already inadequate with practices in the area at 
capacity. Amazed to note that West Hampshire CCG are saying 
new residents can be accommodated by local practices. 
Expanding surgeries, albeit with developer contributions, will not 
address the problem of lack of staff.  

 Concern that the Secretary of State’s decision that an EIA is not 
required does not take into account the cumulative impact of 
other developments in the area. The decision states that the 
Environment Agency is not aware of any foul water or 
contamination issues. However, there have been frequent 
issues over many years in Boorley Green. Southern Water have 
been informed regularly but now say they have no record of this.  

 Assume the usual environmental studies will be carried out and 
would draw attention to: presence of bats roosting in properties 
adjoining the site and potential roosts on the site also; presence 
of a family of owls on site; dormice nesting in the hedgerow 
opposite the fields; and, animal carcasses buried underneath 
the site following outbreaks of bovine infection.  

 Inaccuracies in the documents do not give confidence that other 
data is necessarily correct.  

 The applicants are presenting the proposal as a small, stand 
alone and self-contained extension to Boorley Green, whereas it 
is intrinsically linked to other developments around the hamlet 
and will add problems due to over development.  

 
Policy context:  designation applicable to site 
 

 Countryside 

 Local Gap 

 Solent Mitigation and Disturbance Zone 

 Mineral Consultation Area (River Terrace Deposits – Superficial 
Sand / Gravel) 

 Partially Within HSE Outer Consultation Zone for Hazardous 
Pipelines 

 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
48. The National Planning Policy (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states 

that (as required by statute) applications for planning permission must 
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. Paragraph 14 sets out a 
general presumption in favour of sustainable development and states 
that (unless material considerations indicate otherwise) development 
proposals which accord with the development plan should be approved 
without delay. Where the development plan is absent, silent, or 
relevant policies are out-of-date planning permission (again, unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise) should be granted unless 
the adverse impacts of the development would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits; or specific policies in the 

31



 

 

Framework indicate development should be restricted (paragraph 14). 
Local plan policies that do not accord with the NPPF are now deemed 
to be “out-of-date”. The NPPF requires that due weight should be given 
to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of 
consistency with the NPPF. In other words the closer the policies in the 
plan accord to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight 
that may be given. 

 
49. The three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 7 are to be 

sought jointly: economic (supporting economy and ensuring land 
availability); social (providing housing, creating high quality 
environment with accessible local services); and environmental 
(contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, built and historic 
environment), whilst paragraph 10 advises that plans and decisions 
need to take local circumstances into account, so that they respond to 
the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in 
different areas. 

 
50. Paragraph 17 sets out 12 core planning principles that should underpin 

decision-taking. These include that planning should: 
 

 Proactively drive and support sustainable economic 
development to deliver the homes, infrastructure and thriving 
local places that the country needs. Every effort should be made 
to identify and then meet the housing, business and other 
development needs of an area; 

 Ensuring that the local plan meets the full, objectively assessed 
needs for market and affordable housing in the housing market 
area, including key sites which are critical to the delivery of the 
housing strategy over the plan period. 

 Housing applications should be considered in the context of the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

 Always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard 
of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and 
buildings; 

 Take account of the different roles and characters of different 
area; recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the 
countryside;  

 Contribute to conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
and reducing pollution; 

 Promote mixed use development and encourage multiple 
benefits from use of land in urban and rural areas, recognising 
that some open land can perform many functions. 

 Actively manage patterns of growth to make the fullest possible 
use of public transport, walking and cycling, and focus significant 
development in locations which are or can be made sustainable; 

 Take account of and support local strategies to improve health, 
social and cultural wellbeing for all, and deliver sufficient 
community and cultural facilities and services to meet local 
needs.  

32



 

 

 
51. Paragraphs 32-36 advise that sustainable transport options are needed 

and development should only be refused on transport grounds where 
the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe. 

 
52. Paragraph 47 requires local authorities to meet local needs for 

affordable and market housing, and identify a supply of specific 
deliverable sites to provide a 5-year supply of housing. 

 
53. Paragraph 49 states that housing applications should be considered in 

the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
Relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be considered 
up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-year 
supply of deliverable housing sites. 

 
54. Paragraph 50 – mixed and balanced communities should normally 

include affordable housing on site. 
 
55. Paragraphs 56 to 61 give importance to good design as part of 

sustainable built development.  
 
56. Paragraphs 100 to 103 direct development away from areas at risk of 

flooding and seek to ensure flood risk is not increased elsewhere. 
 
57. Paragraphs 109 to 118 protect biodiversity and seek net gains where 

possible. 
 
58. Paragraphs 120 to 125 seek to avoid unacceptable risks from pollution 

and contamination, and to limit the impacts of noise and light pollution 
on health and amenity. 

 
59. Paragraphs 126 to 135 address the protection of heritage assets. 
 
60. Paragraphs 142 to 146 address mineral resources.  
 
61. Paragraph 152 – local planning authorities should seek opportunities to 

achieve each of the economic, social and environmental dimensions of 
sustainable development, and net gains across all three.  Significant 
adverse impacts on any of these dimensions should be avoided, and 
wherever possible, alternative options which reduce or eliminate such 
impacts should be pursued.  Where adverse impacts are unavoidable, 
measures to mitigate the impact should be considered.  Where 
adequate mitigation measures are not possible, compensatory 
measures may be appropriate. 

 
62. Paragraph 173 advises on development viability. 
 
63. Paragraph 196 indicates that planning law requires that planning 

applications are dealt with in accordance with the development plan 

33



 

 

unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF is such a 
material consideration. 

 
64. Paragraph 197 – in assessing and determining development proposals, 

local planning authorities should apply the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development. 

 
65. Paragraph 203 – Local Planning Authorities should consider whether 

otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable 
through the use of conditions or planning obligations. 

 
66. Paragraph 204 – planning obligations should only be sought where 

they are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning 
terms; directly related to the development; and, fairly and reasonably 
related in scale and kind to the development.  

 
67. Paragraph 211 – saved policies in existing plans are not out-of-date 

simply because they pre-date the NPPF. 
 
68. Paragraph 215 – due weight should be given to relevant policies in 

existing plans according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF, 
the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the NPPF, the 
greater the weight that may be given. 

 
69. Paragraph 216 - decision-takers can give weight to relevant policies in 

emerging plans according to the stage of preparation, the extent to 
which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies and the 
degree of consistency to the relevant policies in the emerging plan to 
the policies in the NPPF.  

 
Planning Practice Guidance  
 
70. Where material, this guidance on air quality, the historic environment, 

good design, material considerations, flood risk, contamination, 
minerals, natural environment, noise, open space, recreational 
facilities, planning obligations, travel plans, transport assessments, 
water supply and wastewater provision should be afforded weight in 
the consideration of planning applications.  

 
The Development Plan 
 
71. At the current time the Development Plan for the borough comprises 

the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) and the 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (October 2013). 

 
Saved Policies of the Adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 
(EBLP 2001-2011)  
 
72. The key policies of the adopted Local Plan are: 
 

34



 

 

 1.CO - Development in the countryside 

 3.CO – Local Gap 

 18.CO – Impact on Landscape Character 

 23.NC – Protection of Sites of Importance for Nature 
Conservation  

 25.NC – Promotion of biodiversity 

 26.NC – Promotion of measures to enhance features and 
habitats of nature conservation importance 

 30.ES – Protection of noise-sensitive development 

 31.ES – Noise exposure for residential development 

 32.ES – Control of air, land and water pollution 

 33.ES – Requirement for air quality assessment 

 34.ES – Reduction in greenhouse gases 

 35.ES – Contaminated land 

 37.ES – Energy efficiency, water consumption, waste, 
renewable energy and adaptability 

 42.ES – Development within catchment of watercourse or 
affecting wetlands 

 43.ES – Protection from flooding 

 45.ES – Sustainable drainage requirements 

 59.BE - High quality design  

 72.H – Density 

 73.H – Appropriate mix of dwellings 

 74.H – Affordable housing 

 92.T – Local Transport Plan proposals 

 100.T – Sustainable transport opportunities 

 101.T - Contributions towards sustainable transport 

 102.T – Safe accesses 

 147.OS – Provision of public open space 

 190.IN –  Infrastructure provision 

 191.IN – Developer contributions 
 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013  
 
73. The application site lies partially within a Minerals Safeguarding Area, 

to which Policy 15 “Safeguarding – mineral resources” applies. 
 
Submission Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 
 
74. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for 

examination in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient 
housing was being provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound. 

 
75. The Submitted Local Plan has not been formally withdrawn and 

therefore remains a material planning consideration.  However the 
weight that can be attributed to the draft policies of the Submitted 
Eastleigh Local Plan 2011-2029 is extremely limited.  The Council 
consulted on the Issues and Options Document (December 2015) from 

35



 

 

23 December 2015 until 17 February 2016.  Following the completion 
of the consultation the Council are now undertaking the additional 
technical work required to inform the next formal stage in the plan-
making process.   

 
76. The most relevant draft policies of the Submitted Eastleigh Borough 

Local Plan 2011-2029 are: 

 S1 – Sustainable development 

 S2 – New development 

 S3 – Location of new housing 

 S5 – Green Infrastructure  

 S8 – Strategic footpath, cycleway and bridleway links 

 S9 – Countryside and countryside gaps     

 S11 – Nature conservation  

 S12 – Heritage assets  

 DM1 – General criteria for new development  

 DM2 – Environmentally sustainable development 

 DM4 – Flood Risk 

 DM5 – Sustainable surface water management and 
watercourse management 

 DM7 – Pollution 

 DM9 – Nature Conservation  

 DM23 – General development criteria - transport 

 DM28 – Affordable housing  

 DM29 – Internal space standards for residential development 

 DM32 – Provision of recreation and open space facilities with 
new development 

 DM33 – New and enhanced recreation and open space 
facilities 

 DM35 – Community, leisure and cultural facilities 

 DM37 – Funding infrastructure 
 

Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 
77. The following supplementary planning guidance is relevant: 
 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 
2011) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Environmentally 
Sustainable Development (March 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document : Biodiversity (December 
2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking 
Standards (January 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations (July 
2008, updated 2010) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Affordable Housing (July 
2009) 

 

36



 

 

Other relevant documents 
 

 Internal Space Standards (January 2012) 

 The Landscape Character Assessment for Eastleigh Borough 
2011 

  
Assessment of proposal:  
 
Development plan and / or legislative background 
 
78. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 

38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a 
local planning authority determining an application to do so in 
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 

 
79. The Development Plan in this case comprises the saved policies of the 

Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 and the Hampshire 
Minerals and Waste Plan (adopted 2013). 

 
80. In terms of emerging policy the Submitted Eastleigh Local Plan 2011-

2029 (comprising the Revised Pre-Submission Eastleigh Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029, published February 2014; and the Schedule of 
Proposed Minor Changes) was submitted to the Secretary of State in 
July 2014 and following examination hearings in November 2014, the 
Inspector issued his final report on 11 February 2015.  The final report 
recommended non-adoption on the basis of the plan being unsound, 
largely due to its inadequate provision for new housing.  It can 
therefore be considered to have extremely limited weight in the 
determination of this application.  The emerging work on the new Local 
Plan to 2036 is also a material consideration of limited weight. 

 
81. In terms of other material planning considerations, the National 

Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance constitute 
material considerations of significant weight. 

 
The Principle of Development 
 
82. The application seeks outline approval for up to 50 dwellings, together 

with access from Maddoxford Lane and associated landscaping and 
infrastructure. The 3.1 hectare site is located outside of the built-up 
area and within both designated countryside and a defined local gap. 
As such, Saved Policies 1.CO and 3.CO of the adopted Local Plan are 
relevant. The Submitted Local Plan also shows the site to be within the 
countryside and countryside gap, to which Draft Policy S9 applies. 
Large-scale developments such as that proposed are not supported by 
these policies and the proposals would physically diminish the gap 
between Boorley Green and Botley. Therefore the principle of 
development is contrary to the development plan and the emerging 
plan.  If permission were to be granted for the proposed development, 

37



 

 

there would have to be other material planning considerations that 
provide support for the scheme. 

 
The NPPF and five year housing supply 
 
83. The NPPF is a material consideration of significant weight.  Paragraph 

14 sets out an overarching presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. At paragraph 49, it goes on to state that: 

  
“Housing applications should be considered in the context of the presumption 
in favour of sustainable development. Relevant policies for the supply of 
housing should not be considered up-to-date if the Local Planning Authority 
cannot demonstrate a 5 year supply of deliverable housing sites.” 
 
84. It is accepted that the Council cannot currently demonstrate a five year 

housing supply of deliverable housing sites, with the latest housing 
supply figures (December 2016) demonstrating 4.23 years supply at 
present.  In light of this and in accordance with paragraph 49 of the 
NPPF, ‘relevant policies for the supply of housing’ are deemed to be 
out-of-date.  Following recent case law and appeal decisions, the 
Council accepts that Saved Policies 1.CO and 3.CO do affect the 
supply of housing; and therefore are relevant policies for the supply of 
housing for the purposes of paragraph 49.  They are therefore out-of-
date by virtue of a lack of five-year housing land supply.  This does not, 
however, mean that they are dis-applied, and they can, as a matter of 
planning judgement, still be attributed significant, and indeed 
determinative, weight by a decision-maker in accordance with their 
consistency with the NPPF.  
 

85. As Saved Policies 1.CO and 3.CO are, however, accepted to be out-of-
date at this current time and in the context of the nature of the 
particular development proposed, it is necessary to consider whether 
the proposals are sustainable development and to apply the NPPF’s 
overall presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out in 
paragraph 14. This is discussed in more detail below. 

 
 
Sustainable Development 
 
86. In paragraphs 7, 8 and 14, the NPPF sets out a presumption in favour 

of sustainable development, indicating that it has an economic, a social 
and an environmental role. These roles should not be undertaken in 
isolation as they are mutually dependent and, therefore, the application 
is assessed against all three headings.  It also states that when 
determining applications, those that accord with the development plan 
should be approved without delay (unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise).  Where the development plan is absent, silent or 
the relevant policies are out-of-date, permission should (unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise) be granted unless any 
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 

38



 

 

outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF 
as a whole; or where specific policies in the NPPF indicate 
development should be restricted. 

 
Economic Sustainability 
 
87. One of the core planning principles of the NPPF is to proactively drive 

and support sustainable economic development to deliver amongst 
other things, the homes and thriving local places that the country needs 
(Paragraph 17). The Framework also reiterates the Government’s 
commitment to securing economic growth in order to create jobs and 
prosperity.  

 
88. The proposals would provide some notable economic benefits. These 

include employment opportunities that would be created during the 
construction phase of the development, which will in turn result in 
increased spending within the local economy, for example on 
materials, goods and other services. In addition, the future occupiers of 
the residential properties would be likely to support local services and 
facilities, and a New Homes Bonus would also be paid. Further, the 
proposals would result in financial contributions being secured to offset 
certain impacts of the development, and result in the enhancement of 
local infrastructure and facilities. 

 
89. Provided that they are appropriately secured, these elements are 

benefits of the development that would be considered in the planning 
balance and overall it is considered that the development would be 
economically sustainable. However, it should be noted that these 
benefits are not unique to this scheme and could be accrued from a 
development of this size in a different location.   

 
Social Sustainability 
 
90. The proposals would provide for up to 50 residential units that would be 

a mix of dwelling types and incorporate 35% affordable housing (18 
units), in accordance with Saved Policies 73.H and 74.H and the 
NPPF’s aspiration to “deliver a wide choice of high quality homes in 
inclusive and mixed communities to meet the needs of different 
people”.  These dwellings would support social wellbeing through the 
provision of a mixed and balanced community.  It is considered that the 
delivery of both market and affordable housing on the site would 
therefore be a positive social benefit in support of the scheme in the 
context of the Council’s 5-year housing land supply position.   

 
91. The proposal also includes the provision of public open space and a 

LEAP (Local Equipped Area of Play), as well as contributions towards 
local educational and health facilities, which could also benefit other 
local residents.  

 

39



 

 

92. Provided that they are appropriately secured these elements are 
benefits of the development that would be considered in the planning 
balance and overall it is considered that the development would be 
socially sustainable.  As with the economic benefits which are set out 
above, it should be noted that these could also be accrued from a 
development of this size in a different location.  

 
Environmental Sustainability 
 
93. The size and location of the application site is such that it has potential 

to impact on a number of environmental factors, including: 
 

 Impact on the countryside, local gap and surrounding area 

 Form, layout and design of the development 

 Nature conservation interests 

 Trees 

 Noise and Contaminated land 

 Minerals 

 Drainage and flood risk 

 Transport matters and highway safety 

 Sustainability measures 
 
These are discussed in detail below.  
 
Impact on the Countryside, Local Gap and surrounding area 
 
94. As set out above, the application site is located within the countryside 

and local gap separating Boorley Green and Botley. Saved Policies 
1.CO and 3.CO therefore apply.  In addition the Submitted Local Plan 
shows the site to be within the countryside and countryside gap as set 
out in Draft Policy S9.  These policies seek to protect the countryside 
from inappropriate development and protect the individual identity of 
settlements. As set out above, large scale developments such as that 
proposed are not supported by these policies and the proposals would 
physically diminish the gap. In addition, Saved Policy 18.CO seeks to 
protect valued landscapes. The site lies within Landscape Character 
Area 9: Horton Heath Undulating Farmland (as identified within the 
Council’s ‘Landscape Character Assessment for the Borough of 
Eastleigh’) although it is not covered by, nor does it contain, any 
statutory landscape protection designations.  
 

95. The development of the application site would invariably bring a 
notable change to its character, with it altering from predominantly 
open land and agricultural uses to one where built form and associated 
infrastructure are dominant. The proposals would also serve to extend 
the settlement boundary of Boorley Green as defined in the adopted 
Local Plan and would physically diminish the local gap between this 
settlement and Botley. These impacts, however, must be considered in 
context and in light of the resulting effects upon the surrounding 

40



 

 

countryside and landscape, as well as the functionality of the local gap 
and its aim to prevent the coalescence of settlements in this location.  

 
96. The site is well contained from the south and east due to the local 

topography and the screening provided by the intervening vegetation, 
and the mature boundary trees and hedgerow.  This limits the 
perception of openness and the visibility of the site, including from the 
nearby railway line which runs parallel to the southern boundary and 
from Winchester Road to the south-west.  

 
97. Clear views of the site are, however, gained from Maddoxford Lane to 

the north when immediately adjacent to the site, and from Botley 
Footpath No.2 that runs through the Boorley Park site, over the 
boundary hedgerow.  The vegetation along the boundary of Crows 
Nest Lane does provide greater screening, but views can still be 
gained where the vegetation is thinner, particularly towards the 
southern end of the site. 

 
98. When considering the impact of development on the local gap it is 

important to assess it against the function of the local gap in protecting 
against the coalescence of Botley and Boorley Green.  This is 
assessed both in terms of the level of intervisibility between these 
settlements and with regard to the perception of leaving one settlement 
and arriving at the other.  

 
99. At present, when travelling north-west along Winchester Road from 

Botley, the sense of arriving into Boorley Green is considered to occur 
when crossing over the railway bridge moving towards its junction with 
Crows Nest Lane.  Whilst acknowledging that the development would 
extend the settlement boundary of Boorley Green to the south-east, as 
a result of the tree screening and the elevated position of the railway 
bridge, the perception of this point of arrival would not be materially 
altered.  
 

100. When moving along Crows Nest Lane itself, it is acknowledged that 
more development would be present to the eastern side of this road. 
The Council’s Landscape Officer has therefore highlighted that this 
may have the effect of serving to diminish the perception of travelling 
between settlements. Whilst acknowledging these comments, having 
assessed this in context, it is not considered that this would be such as 
to undermine the functionality of the local gap.  
 

101. It is of particular note that when entering Crows Nest Lane from 
Winchester Road, as set out above, the sense of having arrived into 
the settlement of Boorley Green will have already occurred and, at this 
point, when moving in a north-easterly direction along the Lane, its 
initial section is also bound by built-form on both sides of the road. 
Whilst a greater degree of development would certainly be apparent to 
the east of Crows Nest Lane moving further along its length therefore, 
this would not be an entirely unexpected feature in the landscape 

41



 

 

having already passed built-form to this side of the road. It is not 
considered therefore that an increase in the extent of the developed 
area visible from this viewpoint would significantly reduce the 
separation of the settlements of Botley and Boorley Green such as to 
lead to their coalescence. The retention of the mature tree belt on the 
eastern side of Crows Nest Lane will also serve to soften the visual 
impact of the development as seen from this road.  

 
102. It is acknowledged that the development would be more apparent when 

viewed from Maddoxford Lane to the north.  Whilst the development 
would certainly not be screened completely, the addition of structural 
planting would, over the longer term, significantly reduce its visibility 
from this view.  

 
103. The Council’s Landscape Officer has reviewed the information 

submitted in the context of the proposals and considers that the 
landscape structure lends itself reasonably well to accommodating the 
level of development proposed in this location. A factor in this 
assessment, as well as when considering the impact of the 
development on the character of the countryside in general, is the 
proximity of the application site to the existing settlement to the west 
and the Boorley Park development to the north.  This is also a notable 
material consideration when determining the impact of the proposals 
on the functionality of the local gap, particularly in regards to leaving 
and arriving at the settlement of Boorley Green along Maddoxford 
Lane. 

 
104. The application site lies immediately opposite the approved Boorley 

Park scheme for 1,400 dwellings which is situated to the northern side 
Maddoxford Lane (O/12/71514), with the built-form associated with this 
larger-scale development extending further east along Maddoxford 
Lane than the corresponding boundary of the application site.  This 
built-form will also be visually apparent along this route and, it is 
considered, will mark the point at which the sense of leaving Boorley 
Green to travel towards Curdridge will occur when moving eastwards 
and, vice-versa, when arriving into the settlement travelling west.  The 
development proposed as part of this application will not materially 
alter this perception and, indeed, owing to the presence of the mature 
tree belt and additional structural planting along its eastern perimeter 
will not be significantly visually apparent when arriving from the east 
until in closer proximity to the site.  

 
105. Taking account of the above factors, it is not considered that the 

proposed development would adversely affect the sense of separation 
between Boorley Green and Botley, or Boorley Green and Curdridge, 
nor would it lead to the coalescence of any of these settlements.  As 
the aim of the Local Gap is to prevent the coalescence of settlements, 
development of the site would, therefore, not affect the function of the 
gap in this location.  

 

42



 

 

Form, layout and design 
 
106. Whilst development of the site may not affect the function of the gap it 

is still important that any proposed development is of an appropriate 
size, scale and layout. The application is submitted in outline form with 
access as the only detailed matter for consideration.  

 
107. The application is supported by an illustrative masterplan that shows a 

primary access road running parallel to the eastern boundary of the site 
which stems from the main entrance from Maddoxford Lane. The 
development is then served by a series of secondary roads and 
‘homezone’ type streets, with the internal street network being 
generally orientated around perimeter blocks of development. The 
developed area is offset from the site boundaries in order to take 
account of the root protection areas for the existing mature trees and 
the easement for the Botley Trunk Sewer and to allow for additional 
structural tree planting to be provided. An area of open space, 
approximately 0.31ha in size will be situated at the southern end of the 
site, incorporating a LEAP (Local Equipped Area of Play).  In addition a 
drainage basin that would form part of the SUDs scheme for the 
development is shown located further south. 

 
108. The illustrative masterplan shows larger houses site on the outside of 

perimeter blocks with smaller houses within, thus providing natural 
surveillance over the public realm.  Potential future pedestrian and 
cycle links onto Maddoxford Lane, Crows Nest Lane and the adjacent 
site to the east (O/16/79600), and a potential vehicular link to the 
adjacent site to the east are also shown on the Movement & Access 
Parameter Plan. The scheme proposes to incorporate a mixture of 1, 2, 
3 and 4-bedroom dwellings that are shown on the illustrative 
masterplan to be terraced, semi-detached or detached properties.  

 
109. The development will represent a net density of up to 31 dwellings per 

hectare which is considered to be suitable in this instance in light of the 
site constraints and is not considered to be detrimental to the character 
of the area. In this regard, it is considered that the development would 
accord with Saved Policy 72.H and the requirements of Paragraph 58 
of the NPPF, which encourages the achieving of an appropriate 
balance between optimising the potential of a site to accommodate 
development (making the most efficient use of land) and respecting the 
surrounding character of the area.  

 
110. In summary, the development is considered to be acceptable in respect 

of its layout, design and density, with the proposals having the potential 
to create an attractive development which takes suitable account of its 
setting and locational context.  

 
Nature conservation interests 
  
Internationally designated interests: 

43



 

 

 
111. The site is within 5.6km of the Solent and Southampton Water Special 

Protection Area (SPA) and will lead to an increase in residential 
accommodation. It is considered, however, that the adverse effects 
from recreational disturbance on the Solent SPA can be suitably 
mitigated by financial contributions secured in accordance with the 
details agreed by the Solent Recreation Mitigation Partnership and the 
Borough Council’s policy. Both the Council’s Biodiversity Officer and 
Natural England have raised no objection in respect of recreational 
disturbance subject to provision being made for these contributions.  
 

112. The development has the potential to impact upon the Solent and 
Southampton SPA, Solent and Southampton Water Ramsar site, and 
Solent Maritime Special Area of Conservation (SAC), as well as the 
Newhouse Farm Woodland and Swamp SINC, without suitable 
mitigation to ensure good surface water quality and appropriate flow 
rates from the site. It is necessary therefore to ensure that the 
development has adequate operational and construction drainage 
provisions, which includes the necessary filtration and subsequent 
management and maintenance in order to prevent any risks of 
pollution.  

 
113. In this regard, the application is supported by a drainage strategy which 

shows three forms of naturalised filtration, with two swales and an 
attenuation basin, plus an interceptor. This strategy also proposes that 
the stream and ditches present on site are to be desilted, representing 
a significant ecological improvement.  

 
114. As further specific details in respect of the surface water drainage 

measures will be required at reserved matters stage, a condition will be 
imposed to require the submission of a SUDs strategy to incorporate a 
detailed layout with the required levels of naturalised filtration, as well 
as provisions for future management of the system. In addition, a 
further condition will be imposed to require a Construction Environment 
Management Plan be provided prior to commencement in order to 
protect water quality during the construction phase of the development.  

 
Protected species  
 
115. Where development affects European protected species (EPS), 

permission can be granted unless the development is likely to result in 
a breach of the EU Directive underpinning the Habitats Regulations 
and is unlikely to be granted an EPS licence from Natural England to 
allow the development to proceed under derogation from the law. An 
EPS licence can only be granted if the development proposal is able to 
meet the three derogation tests laid out in the Conservation of Habitats 
and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended): 

 
1. The consented operation must be for ‘preserving public health 

or public safety or other imperative reasons of overriding 

44



 

 

public interest including those of a social or economic nature 
and beneficial consequences of primary importance for the 
environment’; (Regulation 53(2)(e); 

 
2. There must be ‘no satisfactory alternative’ (Regulation 

53(9)(a)); and 
 

3. The action authorised ‘will not be detrimental to the 
maintenance of the population of the species concerned at a 
favourable conservation status on their natural range’ 
(Regulation 53(9)(b)). 

 
116. The application would provide for additional housing within the Borough 

at a time when the Council does not have a 5 year housing land supply 
and as such, if developed, the proposals would bring about social and 
economic benefits. A number of additional greenfield sites will be 
needed in order to meet the Council’s 5 year housing land supply and 
development of this site is considered to be more suitable, in principle, 
than other sites in the area. It is considered therefore that the 
proposals would meet the first 2 derogation tests. 

  
117. With regards to the third test, the Council is satisfied that based on the 

information provided and subject to the necessary safeguards being 
secured by way of condition, the proposals will not be detrimental to 
the maintenance of the population of any protected species at a 
favourable conservation status in their natural range.  

 
118. The application submission is supported by an Ecological Appraisal 

(Extended Phase I Survey), with additional otter, bat and reptile 
surveys having been undertaken during the course of the application 
process. In respect of otter, the surveys showed no signs of presence. 
As the otter population is, however, thought to be significant in 
Eastleigh and the River Itchen SAC is designated for its otter 
population, the EA advises that a 20m buffer should be provided along 
waterways in Eastleigh. This enhancement can be incorporated into 
the landscaping scheme for the development. An otter mitigation 
strategy, incorporating safeguards and corridor management, should 
be conditioned. 

 
119. In respect of bats, the activity surveys demonstrate that levels of usage 

are low with common species using the site. The Council’s Biodiversity 
Officer has therefore raised no objection subject to the provision of 
dark corridors across the site, mirroring areas used for foraging 
presently. A condition is, as such, recommended to require a bat 
mitigation strategy to be provided at reserved matters stage which will 
incorporate provision for these corridors and other mitigation and 
enhancement measures.  

 
120. The surveys undertaken did not identify the presence of reptiles and 

therefore no bespoke mitigation is necessary in this instance. It is 

45



 

 

recommended by the Council’s Biodiversity Officer, however, that 
rough grassland and wildflower habitat be provided to endeavour to 
extend the range of the slow worms found within the adjacent site. 
Again, this is something that can be incorporated into the overall 
landscaping scheme for the development.  

 
Trees 
 
121. The application is supported by an Arboricultural Assessment Report.  

There are trees and hedgerows of varying species and maturity 
present along the boundaries of the site, these include a number of 
Category A (trees of high quality) and B (trees of moderate quality) 
Oaks along the western and, in particular, the eastern perimeters. 
Whilst these trees are not subject to Tree Preservation Orders, they 
are considered to make a particularly positive contribution to both the 
character and the amenity of the area. The submitted Arboricultural 
Assessment Report sets out that the vast majority of the trees present 
are to be retained, with the exception of the following: 

 a Conifer hedgerow (H18 – Category C) in the southern 
section of the site (to provide space for the attenuation pond) 

 a group of trees (Poplar, willow – Category C) situated along 
the central section of the eastern boundary (to enable a 
potential vehicular link to be provided to the adjacent site to 
the east 

 a single Category C Oak (T7) on the western boundary 
(proposed to be pollarded due to major storm damage and to 
secure the long term retention of the tree)  

 
122. The Council’s Tree Officer has reviewed the submitted information in 

the context of the development proposed and has raised no objection 
to the application on arboricultural grounds subject to conditions being 
attached to any permission being granted.   With the imposition of 
these conditions, there is considered to be no conflict with the 
requirements of Saved Policy 59.BE (i) of the adopted Local Plan.  
 

Noise & Contaminated Land 
 
123. The site lies approximately 100m from the railway line to the south and 

is bounded by both Maddoxford Lane and Crows Nest Lane. It 
therefore has the potential to be impacted by noise from road and rail 
traffic. The application is supported by a Noise Assessment that sets 
out that appropriate internal noise levels can be achieved with standard 
double glazing, however acoustically treated ventilation is required in 
habitable rooms. Outdoor noise levels, including within garden areas 
closest to both Maddoxford Lane and the railway line, are also shown 
to be within acceptable levels.  

 
124. Environmental Health has raised no objections subject to a condition 

requiring the submission and approval of a detailed ventilation scheme.  
With the imposition of this condition, there is considered to be no 

46



 

 

conflict with the requirements of Saved Policy 30.ES of the adopted 
Local Plan.  

 
125. The application site is located on an operational farm and within 

approximately 10m of the ESSO fuel pipeline. It, therefore, has the 
potential to be impacted by contaminants associated with these uses. 
As such, a Preliminary Land Quality Risk Assessment which 
demonstrates that the site has remained as undeveloped agricultural 
land since at least 1868 and classifies it as having moderate 
environmental sensitivity and no further investigations are required. 

 
126. Environmental Health agreed with the conclusions reached.  The 

application therefore complies with the requirements of Saved Policy 
35.ES of the adopted Local Plan and the paragraphs 109 and 121 of 
the NPPF.  

 

127. It is noted that Botley Parish Council and the Botley Parish Action 
Group have both commented that following outbreaks of bovine 
infection slaughtered animals were buried on the site.  This was 
previously raised in relation to the Boorley Park development to the 
north and it was concluded that there is no threat to human health as a 
result of this previous activity in the local area. 

 
Drainage and flood risk 
 
128. The site is located within Flood Zone 1, which is defined as having low 

probability of flooding and an area in which residential development is 
appropriate in principle. Hampshire County Council’s (HCC) Flood and 
Water Management Team have been consulted on the application, with 
no objections being raised in relation to the general principles of the 
proposed measures for the management of surface water. Further 
details of the exact SUDs scheme proposed and arrangements for its 
future management and maintenance can be required through the use 
of appropriate planning conditions.   

 
129. With regards to the matter of foul drainage/sewerage, Southern Water 

has been consulted on the application. They have confirmed that, 
following initial investigations, they cannot currently accommodate the 
needs of the development without additional local infrastructure being 
provided. This being due to any increase in flows into the existing 
system having the resulting effect of increasing the risk of flooding in 
and around the existing area.  

 
130. It is noted that the matter of sewerage capacity and the associated 

risks of flooding has been raised within the third party representations 
received and it is evidently a point of concern for local residents. Whilst 
acknowledging this concern, it is not considered that the application 
could reasonably be refused on the basis of a lack of capacity within 
the local foul sewerage network. There are mechanisms and separate 
legislative provisions (Section 98 of the Water Industry Act 1991) for 

47



 

 

the requesting of appropriate drainage infrastructure which are 
available to the developer such as to provide the required capacity to 
accommodate the development. These fall outside of the planning 
process and it would be for the developer to enter into the relevant 
agreement with Southern Water, as the sewerage undertaker, in order 
to secure this.  

 
131. Conditions will, however, be imposed to require the submission of 

details of the foul drainage arrangements proposed to serve the 
development, with this to include an implementation timetable as 
specified by Southern Water within their consultation response. 
Informatives will also be included on the decision notice to advise the 
developer of the restrictions on development and tree planting within 
3.5 metres, and the provision of any soakaways within 5 metres, of the 
centreline of the public sewer running through the site, as well as to 
advise of the need for an application to made to Southern Water in 
respect of the provision of a water supply to the development and the 
connection into the foul drainage network.  

 
132. For the reasons given, there is considered to be no conflict with the 

requirements of Saved Policy 45.ES of the adopted Local Plan. 
 
Transport matters and highway safety 

 
133. The application is supported by a Transport Assessment which 

considers the impact that the development would have upon the local 
highway network, both in itself as well as in combination with other 
permitted/proposed developments in the surrounding area. This 
Assessment sets out that, based upon the TRICS (Trip Rate 
Information Computer System) database, it is anticipated that the 
development would generate an additional 28 vehicle movements in 
the AM peak period and 29 in the PM peak period.  Transportation and 
Engineering have reviewed this information and confirmed that they are 
satisfied that this increase in trips, either alone or in combination with 
other developments, will not have an unacceptable impact on the local 
highway network.  Given the size of the proposed development HCC 
Highways only commented on the suitability of the proposed pedestrian 
crossing with refuge, with Transportation & Engineering providing 
comments on transport matters and highway safety. 

 
134. The proposed development would be accessed via a new T-junction on 

Maddoxford Lane along the northern boundary of the site. Following 
the receipt of additional tracking information this access has been 
confirmed to be acceptable and of an appropriate layout to serve the 
development. It is also deemed to be situated a sufficient distance from 
the main localised access junction into the development site to the 
north (1,400 dwellings) as to not endanger highway safety.  

 
135. The submitted masterplan indicates, leading from the proposed 

vehicular junction with Maddoxford Lane, a primary ‘local access street’ 

48



 

 

which runs parallel with the site’s eastern boundary and from which 
stems a secondary ‘minor access street’ that provides a looped return 
to the entrance to the development. Between these access routes are 
shown to be ‘homezone type streets’, with the street network being 
generally orientated around perimeter blocks of development as set out 
above.  

 
136. In terms of pedestrian movement, the proposals include a 3m wide 

footway/cycleway to the north leading out onto Maddoxford Lane where 
a crossing point, which includes a pedestrian refuge, would be 
provided to increase connectivity to the facilities that are to be provided 
as part of the larger Boorley Green development of 1,400 homes. In 
addition, the movement and access parameter plan submitted shows 
the potential for further pedestrian / cycle links to be provided to the 
adjacent land to the east which is the subject of planning application 
O/16/79600, as well as out onto Crows Nest Lane to the west, in order 
to further enhance the permeability of the development. The latter 
would be subject to these links being confirmed to be appropriate in 
highway safety terms at the detailed reserved matters stage.  

 
137. The exact internal layout of the scheme and its arrangements for 

parking provision would also be considered at this later stage. The 
submitted Design and Access Statement, however, confirms that the 
level of parking would conform to the Council’s standards and would be 
provided through a mixture of garages, car ports and driveways, with 
this being complemented with on-street or courtyard parking where 
appropriate. This statement also confirms that cycle parking and 
storage would be provided throughout the development. 

 
138. It is considered that the proposed development would be sited in a 

location that could be made sustainable with off-site highway 
improvements and financial contributions towards connectivity and 
sustainable transport opportunities. 

 
139. Overall, the development is considered to be acceptable and to comply 

with the provisions of Saved Policies 100.T, 101.T, 102.T and 104.T of 
the adopted Local Plan, as well as Paragraphs 32 and 35 of the NPPF, 
in respect of its access, and transport and highway safety impacts.  

 
Sustainability measures 
                                   
140. The NPPF (paragraphs 95-99) and Saved Policies 34.ES and 37.ES of 

the adopted Local Plan, require development to be sustainable in terms 
of resource use, climate change and energy use. In March 2015, a 
Ministerial Statement announced that the Code for Sustainable Homes 
would cease to be applied to new development, although the 
requirement to achieve the Code’s levels for energy efficiency and 
water consumption remains. If permission were to be granted any 
future reserved matters application would have to meet the energy and 
water standards.  

49



 

 

 
Conclusions on environmental sustainability 
 
141. For the reasons as set out above, it is considered that, whilst the 

development would have an impact upon the countryside, it would not 
undermine the function of the local gap in protecting the separation of 
settlements in this location. 
 

142. With the necessary safeguards and mitigation, the proposals would be 
reasonably sustainably located and suitably accessible, and would also 
be acceptable in regards to their noise impacts and land contamination 
effects, foul and surface drainage arrangements, and arboricultural and 
ecological impacts.  
 

143. It is, therefore, considered that on balance the development is 
environmentally sustainable.  

 
Residential amenity 
 
144. It is considered that on a site of this size sufficient separation distance 

could be created between the existing and proposed dwellings, and 
within the development itself, to prevent any significantly detrimental 
loss of amenity in terms of overlooking, overbearing impact and 
overshadowing.  There is a separation distance of between 20m and 
30m from the edge of the built-up part of the site to the nearest 
dwellings on Crows Nest Lane and greater separation from those 
proposed on Boorley Park and the adjoining site to the east 
(O/16/79600).  It is also considered that the size of the site is such that 
there is suitable potential for the relevant development standards to be 
met, thus providing future occupiers with an appropriate level of 
amenity. 

 
145. It is accepted that the proposed development would alter the outlook 

from some neighbouring properties, but this would be filtered by the 
existing boundary vegetation along Crows Nest Lane.  In any event the 
loss of a view is not a material planning consideration. 

 
146. In terms of the demolition and construction phase of the development, 

impacts upon the amenity of existing residents in the locality can be 
suitably controlled through the use of conditions. These include 
restrictions on hours of working, the prevention of on-site burning, and 
a requirement for the submission and approval of a construction 
management plan setting out measures for dealing with matters such 
as dust and noise generated by the development.  

 
147. For the reasons given, there is considered to be no conflict with the 

requirements of Saved Policy 59.BE (vii.) of the adopted Local Plan or 
Paragraph 17 of the NPPF in respect of the matter of residential 
amenity.  

 

50



 

 

Deliverability 
 
148. The development would provide for up to 50 additional dwellings and it 

is considered that a site of this size could be delivered within the five 
year period and, thus, contribute to the Council’s housing land supply. 
In order to encourage its early delivery, the standard time frame for the 
submission of reserved matters and the commencement of 
development could be reduced by one year.  

 
Other matters 
 
149. The Parish Council have recently written to the Secretary of State for 

Communities and Local Government asking the Secretary of State to 
give a direction restricting the grant of planning permission for this 
application on the grounds that the Parish Council is preparing a 
Neighbourhood Plan, which when “made” will become part of the 
statutory Development Plan and that they are wanting all such sites to 
be promoted through the Neighbourhood Plan process so that all sites 
can be impartially and objectively assessed by the Parish Council, 
rather than by pre-emptive planning applications. 

 
150. This request does not prevent the Local Area Committee considering 

this application at this committee.  The Secretary of State may give 
directions requiring applications to be referred to him instead of being 
dealt with by the local planning authority.  No such direction has been 
received from the Secretary of State at the time of writing.  Before 
determining an application referred to him, the Secretary of State gives 
the applicant or local authority the opportunity of appearing before, and 
being heard by, a person appointed by the Secretary of State for that 
purpose.  In such circumstances it would be appropriate to know how 
Members would have resolved to determine the application, had the 
application not been referred to the Secretary of State, therefore it is 
recommended that Members continue to consider this application. 

 

151. It should be noted that while the Parish of Botley has been designated 
as a Neighbourhood Area for which a Neighbourhood Plan can be 
prepared a draft Neighbourhood Plan has not yet been published for 
consultation.  While it is understood that the draft is to be published 
very shortly it is considered that at present the weight that can be given 
to the proposed Botley Neighbourhood Plan is extremely limited. 

 
Planning obligation /considerations 
 
152. In accordance with the guidance contained within the NPPF, Saved 

Policies 74.H, 101.T, 147.OS and 191.IN of the adopted Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011), Policies DM32 and DM37 of 
the Submission Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, the Council’s 
‘Planning Obligations’ SPD and the requirements of Regulation 122 of 
the Community Infrastructure Regulations, there is a requirement for 
developers’ contributions to ensure on and off-site provision for 

51



 

 

facilities and infrastructure made necessary by the development, and to 
mitigate against any increased need/pressure on existing facilities. This 
is in addition to the requisite on-site provision of affordable housing.  

 
153. Contributions / Obligations towards the provision of the following 

infrastructure have been agreed and would need to be secured via a 
Section 106 agreement if permission is to be granted, with these to be 
index linked in line with the Council’s Planning Obligations SPD and 
HCC requirements:  

 
a. Provision of 35% affordable housing on site 
b. Provision of on-site public open space and play area, plus future 

management and maintenance responsibilities, including 
commuted sums for maintenance if adopted by the Council. 

c. Provision of off-site highway works 
d. Restriction preventing unallocated parking spaces being sold off 

to individual householders 
e. Lorry routing 
f. Financial contributions towards: 

i. Primary and secondary education 
ii. The Solent Disturbance Mitigation Project 
iii. Sustainable transport measures and improvements 
iv. Health provision 
v. Community infrastructure 
vi. Off-site public open space provision/improvements 
vii. Street-tree maintenance 
viii. Traffic Regulation Order 

 
154. The projects and measures identified for contribution expenditure will 

comply with the 3 tests set out in Regulation 122 of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy 2010, in that the monies would be necessary to 
make the development acceptable in planning terms, would go towards 
the projects that are directly related to the development, and are fairly 
and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed development. 
The contributions would be index-linked to ensure the contributions rise 
in line with the costs of providing the identified projects/measures. The 
obligations sought are necessary to make the development acceptable 
in planning terms and to meet the needs generated by the new 
residents and the potential impact on existing services and facilities. 

 
 
Other materials considerations 
 
155. Also of relevance is the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 

- 2029, July 2014.  The Submitted Local Plan has not been formally 
withdrawn and therefore remains a material planning consideration.  
Whilst the weight that can be attributed to the draft policies of the 
Submitted Eastleigh Local Plan 2011-2029 is extremely limited, 
nevertheless it represents the most recent statement of the Council’s 
development strategy for the borough.  With regards to this application, 

52



 

 

the new policies essentially echo those of the current plan and are not 
considered to affect the recommendation put forward. 

 
Conclusion 
 
156. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 

38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a 
local planning authority determining an application to do so in 
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. The National Planning Policy Framework is a 
significant material consideration. 

  
157. The site lies within designated countryside and local gap as set out 

within the adopted Local Plan, where Saved Policies 1.CO (protection 
of the countryside) and 3.CO (local gaps) apply. Large scale 
developments such as that proposed are not supported by these 
policies and the proposals would physically diminish the gap.  

 
158. The Council recognises, however, that it cannot currently demonstrate 

a 5 year supply of deliverable housing sites and in light of this and in 
accordance with paragraph 49 of the NPPF, ‘relevant policies for the 
supply of housing’ are deemed to be out-of-date. The Council accepts 
that Saved Policies 1.CO and 3.CO do affect the supply of housing; 
and therefore are relevant policies for the supply of housing for the 
purposes of paragraph 49. Whilst they are not dis-applied and can still 
be attributed weight, they are therefore acknowledged to be out-of-date 
by virtue of a lack of five-year housing land supply. 

 
159. In such circumstances, paragraph 14 of the NPPF advises that 

permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so 
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when 
assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole; or 
where specific policies in the Framework indicate that development 
should be restricted (the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development). This test requires an assessment of the social, 
economic and environmental impacts of the proposals.  

 
160. It is noted that the development would give rise to social benefits. This 

includes the provision of additional open space, contributions towards 
improvements to local health care and education facilities and, notably, 
housing provision, which would incorporate a proportion of affordable 
housing. In addition, there would be economic benefits resulting from 
the construction phase of the development, an increase in local 
population, payment of a New Homes Bonus, and financial 
contributions secured via a S106 planning obligation. 

 
161. In assessing harm, whilst the development is located within countryside 

and local gap, it would not undermine the function of the gap in this 
location in protecting the individual identify of settlements. Although the 
character of the site itself would invariably be changed, subject to 

53



 

 

appropriate design, scale and landscaping, which would be controlled 
as part of a subsequent reserved matters application, the proposals 
would not result in what would be unacceptable harm to the character 
and appearance of the area. The development is therefore, on balance, 
considered to be environmentally sustainable.  

 
162. Taking account of these factors, it is considered that the benefits of the 

development would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the harm 
and, as such, the proposals would constitute sustainable development 
for which the Framework establishes a presumption in favour. There 
are no specific policies within the Framework that indicate that 
development should be restricted. Subject to the developer entering 
into a Section 106 Agreement to secure the required planning 
obligations, therefore, it is recommended that outline permission be 
granted subject to conditions.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



 

 

 

55



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY Monday 27 March 2017 Case Officer Liz Harrison 

 
 
SITE: Land South of Maddoxford Lane, Boorley Green, Botley, 

Southampton, SO32 2DB 
 
Ref. O/16/79600 Received: 30/11/2016     (07/03/2017) 
 
 
APPLICANT: Southern & Regional Developments Ltd 
PROPOSAL: Outline Application for demolition of existing residential 

dwelling and associated farm buildings, development of 
up to 50 dwellings with access from Maddoxford Lane, 
site infrastructure, open space and associated 
landscaping. 

  
AMENDMENTS: 26.01.17 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Subject to i) The receipt of satisfactory protected species surveys; (ii) Any 
further condition amendments or additions in relation to these matters; and, 
(iii.) The applicants entering into a Section 106 Agreement then delegate to the 
Head of Development Management in consultation with the Chair, Vice-Chair 
and Local Ward Members of HEWEB Local Area Committee to 
 
GRANT OUTLINE PERMISSION 

 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
(1)  The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the 

following plans numbered: CLR005-1 Revision 01, HA5001M-001 Revision A.  
 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
  
(2)  The development hereby permitted shall begin either: a) No later than the 

expiration of two years from the date of this permission; OR b) No later than the 
expiration of one year from the date of approval of the last of the reserved 
matters to be approved.  

 
Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

  
(3)  No development shall start until details of the: a) layout of the site; b) scale of the 

buildings; c) external appearance of the buildings; and, d) landscaping of the site  
[hereafter called "the reserved matters"], have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Application for the approval of the 
reserved matters shall be made within two years of the date of this permission. 
The development shall accord with the approved details.  

 

57

Agenda Item 9



 

 

Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
  
(4)  The details to be submitted as part of the reserved matters application shall be in 

general accordance with the Illustrative Masterplan and Land Use Budget 
[Drawing No. PL04] and Parameters Plan [Drawing No. SK05 Revision C] and 
the Design and Masterplanning Principles set out in the Design and Access 
Statement.  No building shall be more than 2 storeys in height.  

 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interests of the 
amenities of the area. 

  
(5)  No development shall start until details and samples of the materials to be used 

in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby permitted 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the 
amenities of the area. 

  
(6)  No construction or demolition work shall start until a Construction Environmental 

Management Plan has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. Demolition and construction work shall only take place in 
accordance with the approved method statement which shall include:   
a) a programme and phasing of the demolition and construction work, including 
roads, landscaping and open space;   
b) location of temporary site buildings, compounds, construction material and 
plant storage areas used during demolition and construction;    
c) proposed safeguards to preserve water quality and flows leaving the site 
during construction, including safeguards for any fuel and chemical storage and 
use; and diagrammatic and written details of construction drainage containing 
three forms of temporary filtration;   
d) safeguards to protect on-site waterways from pollution impacts; 
e) the arrangements for the routing/ turning of lorries and details for construction 
traffic acces to the site;   
f) the arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction works, loading/ 
unloading of plant & materials and  restoration of any damage to the highway 
[including vehicle crossovers and grass verges]. 
g) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;    
h) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt generated by demolition and 
construction;   
i) a scheme for controlling noise and vibration from demolition and construction 
activities [to include piling];   
j) provision for storage, collection, and disposal of rubbish from the development 
during construction period;   
k) measures to prevent mud and dust on the highway during demolition and 
construction;   
l) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate;    
m) temporary lighting;   
n) protection of pedestrian routes during construction;   

 

58



 

 

Reason: To limit the impact the development has on the amenity of the locality 
and to ensure no impact on the Solent Complex from pollution within the 
construction process. 

  
(7)  No development shall start until the following details have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:   
a) plans including cross sections to show proposed ground levels and their 
relationship to existing levels both within the site and on immediately adjoining 
land; 
b) the width, alignment, gradient, sight lines and type of construction proposed 
for any roads, footpaths and accesses; and 
c) the provision to be made for street lighting and/or external lighting. Lighting 
shall be designed and located to minimise light spillage and avoid impacting on 
flight corridors used by bats. 

 
The development shall not be occupied until the approved details have been fully 
implemented. 

 
Reason: To limit the impact the development has on the locality and to ensure 
the roads are built to an adoptable standard. 

  
(8)  No development shall start until details for the disposal of foul sewage from the 

development hereby permitted, and a timetable for its implementation, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall then accord with the approved details.  

 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory provision of foul drainage. 

  
(9)  Notwithstanding the information submitted to date, prior to the submission of the 

first reserved matters application on site a detailed sustainable drainage system 
(SUDs) shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The submitted details shall include the SUDs layout; source control 
measures to limit pollutants leaving the site,which should include 3 forms of 
naturalised filtration; a timetable for its implemenation and a 
management/maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development [including the 
arrangements for adoption by any public body or statutory undertaker, or any 
other arrangements to secure the effective operation of the sustainable drainage 
system and to maintain operational water quality and surface water flows from 
the site into the tributary of the River Hamble are maintained at current levels].  
The approved system shall be implemented and thereafter managed and 
maintained in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage from the development and to ensure no 
impact on the Solent Complex from pollution or changes in flow within the 
operational phase. 

  
(10) No development shall take place until details of the measures to be used to 

protect the public sewers must be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 

59



 

 

Reason:  To protect the public sewer. 
  
(11) No development shall take place until details of any proposed pumping stations, 

including siting, appearance and an implementation timetable, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
installation of the pumping station shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 

 
Reason:  In the interests of visual and residential amenity. 

  
(12) Prior to the submission of the first reserved matters application a site wide green 

infrastructure strategy should be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The strategy should detail the extent and nature of the 
natural habitat, open space and corridors within the network and the network 
should incorporate all open space within the development and extend into the 
urban area via wildlife corridors and other enhancements.  The strategy should 
be overarching, referencing all the species specific strategies and providing 
details relating to overall habitat connectivity within the network and any 
requirements above that provided for mitigation. The final green infrastructure 
should be multifunctional and provide gains for wildlife and the human population 
in line with national policy.  

 
Reason: To ensure provision of a fully connected, multifunctional green 
infrastructure. 

  
(13) Prior to the commencement of development a landscaping scheme shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme shall cover all hard and soft landscaping [including trees and boundary 
treatments] and provide details of timings for all landscaping and any future 
maintenance. The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details and to the appropriate British Standard. For a period of no less than 5 
years after planting, any trees or plants which are removed, die or become 
seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably 
practicable with others of the same species, size and number as originally 
approved in the landscaping scheme.  

 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality, biodiversity and to 
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents. 

  
(14) No development shall start until a landscape management plan and 

maintenance schedule has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The landscaping shall thereafter be managed in 
accordance with the approved details.  

 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 

  
(15) The development must accord with the submitted Arboricultural Development 

Statement [ADS] incorporating the Arboricultural Implications Assessment and 
Method Statement [Ref. CBA10686 v1 produced by Stefan Rose of CBA Trees 
and dated December 2016]. Tree protection must be installed in line with the 

60



 

 

Tree protection plan [ref. CBA10686.02 TPP] supplied with the ADS prior to the 
commencement of any excavation or development work, and shall thereafter be 
retained throughout the demolition and construction period. This tree condition 
may only be fully discharged on completion of the development subject to 
satisfactory written evidence of monitoring and compliance by the pre-appointed 
tree specialist during construction.  

 
Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which form an important part of 
the amenity of the locality. 

  
(16) No development shall commence until a site meeting has taken place with the 

site manager, the retained consulting arboriculturalist and a representative from 
the Local Planning Authority for each phase of the development.  Work cannot 
commence until the Local Planning Authority officer has inspected and approved 
the proposed tree protection. Once approved no access by vehicles or 
placement of goods, chemicals, fuels, soil or other materials shall take place 
within fenced area.  The fencing shall be retained in its approved form for the 
duration of the work.  All other aspects of the Arboricultural Implications 
Assessment and Method Statement will be addressed at this meeting. This tree 
condition may only be fully discharged on completion of the development subject 
to satisfactory written evidence of monthly monitoring and compliance by the pre-
appointed tree specialist during construction.  

 
Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which form an important part of 
the amenity of the locality. 

  
(17) Prior to construction traffic using Maddoxford Lane, Oatlands Road and Crows 

Nest Lane a condition survey of the highway and grass verges on these roads, 
including photographic evidence, shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Within one month of the cessation of 
construction traffic using those roads a further condition survey of the highway 
and grass verges, including photographic evidence, together with a schedule of 
works to repair any damage and a timetable for their implementation shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The repairs to the 
highway and grass verges shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed 
scheme and timetable. 

 
Reason: To ensure no permanent damage to local roads from construction 
traffic. 

  
(18) No work shall start on site until the following has been submitted to, and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:  
(a) A report of a site investigation documenting the ground conditions of the site 
and incorporating chemical and gas analysis identified as appropriate by the 
Preliminary Investigation in accordance with BS10175:2011+A1 2013 and 
BS8576:2013, and, unless otherwise agreed with the Local Planning Authority; 
(b) A detailed site specific scheme for remedial works and measures to be 
undertaken to avoid the risk from contaminants and/or gases when the site is 
developed and proposals for future maintenance and monitoring. Such a scheme 

61



 

 

shall include nomination of a competent person to oversee the implementation of 
the works.  

 
Reason: To minimise the risk from land contamination for public safety. 

  
(19) The development hereby approved shall not be occupied/brought into use until 

there has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority verification by the 
competent person approved under the provisions of the above condition 18(b) 
that any remediation scheme required and approved under the provisions of the 
above condition 18(b) has been implemented in full in accordance with the 
approved details (unless varied with the written permission of the Local Planning 
Authority in advance of implementation). 

 
Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, such 
verification shall comply with the guidance contained in CLR11 and EA guidance 
for the safe development of housing on land affected by contamination - R&D 
Publication 66:2008. Typically such a report would comprise: 

 
a) A description of the site and its background, and summary of relevant site 
information; 
b) A description of the remediation objectives and redial works carried out; 
c) Verification data including - sample locations/analytical results, as built 
drawings of the implemented scheme, photographs of the remediation work in 
progress, etc.; 
d) Certificates demonstrating that imported and/or material left in situ is free from 
contamination. 

 
Thereafter the scheme shall be monitored and maintained in accordance with the 
approved scheme under condition 18(b).  

 
Reason: To minimise the risk from land contamination for public safety. 

  
(20) Prior to the submission of the first reserved matters application, ground surveys 

to assess the contamination within the site shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any contamination identified shall be 
assessed in relation to the risk to the surface water quality and impacts on the 
Hamble River Solent Complex and mitigation shall be proposed where 
necessary. Any risk should be avoided with water passing into Bow Lake or the 
Itchen being free from contamination. The development shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the approved details.  

 
Reason: To provide protection of water quality within the River Itchen SAC. 

  
(21) Prior to the submission of the first reserved matters application a detailed otter 

mitigation strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The submission should include the following: 
a) A strategy detailing measures to deter visitor and dog disturbance on the otter 
population;  
b) Safeguards such as dispersal corridors to ensure that the third derogation test 
laid out in the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as 

62



 

 

amended) can be met and there will be no significant impact on the otter 
population present within the locality; and 
c) Management of the corridors in the short, medium and long term. 

 
Reason:  To ensure the locality continues to support a thriving otter population. 

  
(22) Prior to the occupation of any building within each individual phase of the 

development [or, in accordance with a timetable to be agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority], as built stage SAP data and as built stage water 
calculations confirming energy efficiency and the predicted internal mains water 
consumption to achieve the following shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority: 

 
- In respect of energy efficiency, a standard of a 19% improvement of dwelling 
emission rate over the target emission rate as set in 2013 Part L of the Building 
Regulations, to be measured as an average and applied across each phase of 
the development. 
- In respect of water consumption, a maximum predicted internal mains water 
consumption of 105 litres/person/day. 

 
The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
approved details. 

 
Reason: To support a comprehensive approach to high quality design across the 
site; in line with the guidance set out in the Government's Ministerial Statement 
of 25 March 2015 which states that Local Planning Authorities should, from the 
date of its publication, take into account the government's intentions in the 
statement [and not set conditions with requirements above a Code level 4 
equivalent]. 

  
(23) The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until visibility 

splays of 2.4 metres by 43 metres have been provided at the junction of the 
access and the public highway.  Nothing over 0.6m in height above the level of 
the carriageway shall be placed or permitted to remain within the visibility splay.  

 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

  
(24) No construction, demolition, ground and earth works, or deliveries to the site 

shall take place during the construction period except between the hours of 0800 
to 1800 Mondays to Fridays or 0800 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all on 
Sundays or Bank Holidays.  

 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings. 

  
(25) No burning of materials obtained by site clearance or any other source shall take 

place during the demolition, construction and fitting out process.  
 

Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties. 
  

63



 

 

Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive 
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever 
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely 
manner. 

  
Note to Applicant: In preparing the Construction Environmental Management 
Plan to be submitted in relation to condition 6 due regard should be had to the 
advice and guidance contained in Best Practice Guidance - The Control of Dust 
and Emissions from Construction and Demolition, 2006 (26) and Guidance on 
the Assessment of Dust from Demolition and Construction, 2014 (Institute of Air 
Quality Management). 

  
Note to Applicant: The applicant/developer should enter into a formal agreement 
with Southern Water to provide the necessary sewerage infrastructure required 
to service this development. A formal application for connection to the water 
supply will also be required. Please contact Southern Water, Sparrowgrove 
House, Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire SO21 2SW [Tel: 0330 303 0119] 
or www.southernwater.co.uk 

  
Note to Applicant: the permission does not authorise the undertaking of any 
works involving excavations in the carriageway, footway or verge. A road 
opening permit must be obtained from Hampshire Highways [contact number 
0845 603 5633]. 

  
  

 
 
 
Report: 
 
1. This application has been referred to Committee because it is a Major 

development which is contrary to the Development Plan and is considered to be 
controversial.         

 
The site and its surroundings 
 
2. The application site comprises a parcel of land situated to the southern side of 

Maddoxford Lane that extends to an area of approximately 3.45 hectares. The 
site lies within designated countryside and also forms part of the Local Gap 
between Boorley Green and the settlement of Botley which lies further to the 
south. The adjoining land to the immediate west, which separates the site from 
Crows Nest Lane and the existing built up area, is also the subject of an outline 
application for residential development (planning reference O/16/78389) which 
is also before Members for consideration at this committee. To the north, on the 
opposite side of Maddoxford Lane, is the Boorley Park development which has 
outline permission for 1,400 dwellings and a range of associated infrastructure 
and facilities (O/12/71514).  
 

64



 

 

3. The application site is currently agricultural land, with an existing farmhouse and 
a range of outbuildings in the south-eastern section. The majority of the site is 
undeveloped with the existing buildings and structures served by an access 
running along the eastern perimeter of the site from Maddoxford Lane.  The 
existing buildings and structures would be demolished in order to facilitate the 
development proposed.  

 

4. The site is relatively flat and level with a gentle change in gradient up to the 
north and east. The northern boundary is marked by an established hedgerow 
along the Maddoxford Lane frontage. The western boundary consists of a row 
of mature deciduous trees that spans the majority of its length, adjacent to 
which are underground gas and fuel pipelines that run through the site. There is 
an access point to these pipelines to the north-west which lies just outside the 
red line boundary. The site is also crossed by overhead powerlines, with pylons 
present on-site.  The eastern boundary is demarcated by a hedge running 
alongside the access track and with mature trees along the southern half of this 
boundary.  A post and wire fence runs along the southern boundary.   

 

Description of application 
 
5. The application seeks outline planning permission for the construction of up to 

50no. dwellings, with access from Maddoxford Lane, site infrastructure, open 
space and associated landscaping. The existing residential property and 
associated farm buildings currently present on the site would be demolished as 
part of the development.  
 

6. As well as considering the principles of development on this site, the application 
also seeks approval for the proposed. All other matters of detail which include 
the appearance, scale, layout, and the exact landscaping provisions would be 
considered at reserved matters stage should outline planning permission be 
granted.  

 

7. Access to serve the development is proposed from Maddoxford Lane at the 
northern end of the application site. This is in the form of a T-junction leading to 
a 5.5m wide internal carriageway, with this being bound by 2m wide footways 
linking from the site onto Maddoxford Lane where a pedestrian crossing point is 
proposed to link into the wider Boorley Green development to the north. In 
addition, the masterplan submitted in support of the application shows a 
potential footpath and separate further potential vehicular link along the western 
boundary of the site, to allow for future access and movement between the 
development and that proposed on the adjacent land (under planning reference 
O/16/78389) which is being considered concurrently with this application. 

 

8. The Parameters Plan and accompanying Design and Access Statement 
indicate that the residential development would comprise two-storey dwellings 
of varying sizes, at a net density of up to 25 dwellings per hectare. Green 
infrastructure and areas of open space are shown between the development 
and the boundaries of the site, with the existing tree belts and/or hedgerows 
along the east, west and northern perimeters to be largely retained and 

65



 

 

reinforced. Additional trees and landscaping are also proposed along the 
southern boundary and internally within the site.  

 

9. The application is accompanied by the following reports, technical assessments 
and drawings which have been updated as necessary throughout the course of 
the application: 

 

 Planning Statement 

 Design and Access Statement  

 Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment 

 Tree Survey and Arboricultural Development Statement 

 Transport Assessment 

 Flood Risk and Drainage Strategy 

 Preliminary Risk Assessment 

 Utilities Assessment Report 

 Noise Assessment 

 Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, Otter Survey and Bat Roost Assessment 

 Habitat Management Plan of Green Infrastructure and Mitigation and 
Ecological Enhancement Strategy 

 Sustainability Statement 
 
10. The Secretary of State has issued a screening direction under 5(7) of the Town 

and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 
(as amended) in respect of the matter of whether or not the development of a 
wider site for up to 200 units that included this site would constitute ‘EIA 
development’ for the purposes of these regulations.  
 

11. The Secretary of State has determined that the development falls within the 
description of paragraph 10b of Schedule 2 of the 2011 Regulations; however, 
having taken into account the selection criteria in Schedule 3, does not consider 
that the proposal is likely to have significant effects on the environment. 
Accordingly, the Secretary of State has directed that the proposed development 
is not ‘EIA development’ and an Environmental Statement is not therefore 
required.  

 

12. Screening was also undertaken to establish whether a Habitats Regulations 
Assessment is required. It was concluded that, with the mitigation proposed and 
conditions to control impacts, no significant likely impacts on any European 
Designated sites would occur as a result of the development and a full HRA is 
not required. 

 
 
Relevant planning history 
 
13. A number of applications for an agricultural workers dwelling on the site were 

submitted in the 1980s, but no further applications have been submitted. 
 

66



 

 

14. Also of relevance to the development proposals is the following current outline 
application on the adjoining land to the west of the site, which is also on this 
agenda: 

 

 O/16/78389: Outline Application: Residential development of up to 50no. 
dwellings with green infrastructure, hard and soft landscape and 
associated infrastructure, including internal access roads, footpaths/cycle 
routes, play space and relocation of gas governor and creation of new 
access on to Maddoxford Lane (Crows Nest Lane, Botley) 

 
Representations received 
 

15. A total of 15 letters of representation have been received in relation to this 
application. Of these, 9 are in objection to and 6 are in support of the proposals.  

 
16. The following objections have been raised: 
 

Principle of development 

 Contrary to the adopted and emerging Eastleigh Borough Local Plans and 
does not conform to the emerging Botley Neighbourhood Plan.  

 The space should be maintained as countryside. There are many 
brownfield sites in Eastleigh which could be developed instead.  

 The application is in an isolated field. If granted the development creates a 
virtual automatic further development for 50+ houses in the adjacent field 
which the Council would find hard to prevent.  

 There are similarities to the recent appeal dismissed for development at 
Hamble Lane. 

 Eastleigh has not identified that there will be further development in 
Boorley Green and the presumption should  be for refusal 

 
Impact on character of surrounding area and Local Gap 

 The site is within the local gap between Boorley Green, Botley and 
Curdridge which should be protected.  

 Excessive development and cumulative urbanisation of already eroded 
semi-rural area.  

 The character of Botley as a historic small market town is being destroyed.  
 

Flooding and drainage 

 Boorley Green is already susceptible to flooding which this and other 
development will exacerbate.  

 Wastewater infrastructure is already overloaded and new sewer serving 
the Boorley Green development has no extra capacity built into it, nor has 
plant at Peel Common Stubbington.  

 Properties in Crows Nest Lane already frequently suffer flooding and raw 
sewage backing up into the properties. The proposed development could 
also be affected by this surcharging at its northern end.  

 
Transport and access 

67



 

 

 Additional traffic onto the local road network (Maddoxford Lane, the M27, 
Oatlands Road, Crows Nest Lane, Wangfield Lane) will cause further 
congestion and endanger highway safety. 

 Oatlands Road, Crows Nest Lane and Maddoxford Lane are subject to a 
traffic calming consultation by HCC Highways as a result of the 1,400 
home development at Boorley Green. This could result in both Oatlands 
Road and Crows Nest Lane being shut at one end to prevent ‘Rat 
Running’.  

 Cumulative impacts with other approved developments (including the 
1,400 dwellings to the northern side of Maddoxford Lane) and correct level 
of own site impacts are not considered in the Transport Assessment.  

 Insufficient highway improvements 

 The Botley Bypass is only a likelihood with no published timetable. 

 The proposed pedestrian crossing does not lead to a pavement.  

 The development only has one access which is contrary to the NPPF.  
 

Amenity (including air quality, noise, pollution and impact on local residents) 

 The quality of life for Boorley Green residents should be protected by 
refusing proposals such as these.  

 Impacts on air quality from additional traffic rat-running through the Botley 
AQMA which is already below minimum EU standards. 

 Impact on residents of Crows Nest Lane with additional traffic, noise 
pollution and light pollution.  

 Proposal to use Maddoxford Lane for construction traffic will cause 
pollution, noise and mud deposits on the road and will detract from the 
quality of life for local residents.  

 
Infrastructure and facilities 

 Local healthcare provision in Botley already inadequate.  

 Local schools are at capacity, provision needed for new school places and 
footpath link to new secondary school at Horton Heath needed.  

 Gas and electricity supplies will be compromised.  

 The number of affordable homes proposed may not meet guidelines, nor 
is there any mention of when they would be built.  

 
Biodiversity and other environmental impacts 

 The decision for no EIA is flawed. The Secretary of State has not been 
provided with the full facts of the sites surrounding the development to 
make his decision. Both the Boorley Green Golf Course site and the 
Winchester Road site were subject to EIAs.  

 Concern regarding impacts on the feeder stream of the River Hamble and 
possible pollution.  

 Impacts on wildlife within the site and the local area.  
 

 
17. The following comments have been raised in support: 
 

 Very much needed development to provide affordable housing to meet the 
unmet housing need of the Borough.  

68



 

 

 Boorley Green needs more housing for young people and families.  

 The siting of the proposal is strategic, being a natural extension of the 
permitted land north of Maddoxford Lane and the site for 50 units to the west.  

 The application is in line with the NPPF and should be considered in the 
context of sustainable development.  

 The proposal makes provision for travel by sustainable means. 
 

Consultation responses 
 
Regeneration & Planning Policy 

18. Biodiversity Officer – No objection subject to the completion of the agreed 
ecological surveys, a financial contribution towards the Solent Disturbance 
Mitigation Strategy and conditions re: Construction Environment Management 
Plan, SUDs strategy, Green Infrastructure strategy and ecological mitigation. 

 
19. Trees – No objection subject to conditions. 
 
20. Transportation and Engineering – No objection subject to conditions and a 

financial contribution towards sustainable transport measures.  The site access 
is acceptable and the level of additional traffic flows identified does not 
represent a significant impact on the local highway network. 

 
21. Environmental Health – No objection subject to conditions re: contamination 

land, Construction Management Plan, hours of work and no on-site burning.  
 
22. Housing – No objection subject to the provision of 35% affordable housing on-

site (18 dwellings).  Affordable dwellings will need to be 65% affordable rent and 
35% shared ownership, with limited clusters and if developed in phases each 
phase should deliver 35% affordable.  The proposed mix is acceptable.  

 
23. HCC Children’s Services Department – No objection subject financial 

contribution towards primary and secondary education.  
 
24. HCC Flood and Water Management Team - Further information will be 

required at a more detailed stage and mechanisms for securing the long-term 
maintenance of the drainage system will also need to be considered and 
agreed. 

 

25. As the proposals are to drain into an existing watercourse, the developer should 
be satisfied that this watercourse is suitable and that the appropriate 
permissions from any owners are obtained. Any structure that is located within 
the channel of this watercourse may require consent from the Local Lead Flood 
Authority. This is a separate process and is required before any works 
commence.  

 
26. HCC Planning & Environment Department (Minerals and Waste) – No 

comments received. 
 
27. Southern Water Services – There is a public water main crossing the site, the 

exact position of this must be determined by the applicant before the layout of 

69



 

 

the proposed development is finalised and infrastructure protected during 
construction works and the easement adhered to. A condition is recommended 
re: measures to divert / protect the public water supply main.  

 

28. Southern Water cannot currently accommodate the needs of the application 
without the provision of additional local infrastructure. The proposed 
development would increase flows into the wastewater sewerage system and 
as a result increase the risk of flooding in and around the existing area. 
Alternatively, the developer can discharge foul flow no greater than existing 
levels if proven to be connected and it is ensured that there is no overall 
increase in flows into the foul system. Appropriate survey information will need 
to be provided to demonstrate this.  

 

29. Request conditions re: foul drainage strategy, SUDs strategy (including 
maintenance details) and informatives to advise the applicant of the need to 
enter into a formal agreement with Southern Water to provide the necessary 
sewerage infrastructure, water supply and surface water disposal.  

 

30. Initial investigations show that Southern Water can provide surface water 
disposal to service the proposed development and a water supply to the site. A 
formal application is required to be made in respect of both matters and 
informatives are requested to this effect. A further condition is requested in 
relation to surface water disposal measures for approval to the LPA in 
consultation with Southern Water, and it is advised that such details should 
include provision for the ensuring that arrangements exist for the long term 
maintenance of the SUDs facilities for the lifetime of the development. 

 
31. Natural England – No objection.  The application site is in close proximity to 

the Solent & Southampton Water Special Protection Area and Solent Maritime 
Special Area of Conservation, which are European sites.  The sites are also 
listed as Solent and Southampton Water Ramsar site and notified at a national 
level as Upper Hamble Estuary and Woods SSSI.  
 

32. Solent & Southampton Water SPA and Ramsar – As the development is within 
5.6km of the Solent & Southampton Water SPA and will lead to an increase in 
residential accommodation, the applicant should comply with the policy to 
mitigate against the adverse effects from recreational disturbance and the 
integrity of the European site.  

 

33. NHS West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Group –The increase in the 
local population will inevitably seek registration with a local GP surgery and 
place additional pressure on NHS services.  
 

34. Our estimate of the level of additional demand that will be placed on NHS 
primary care does not, in our view, warrant the commissioning of an additional 
GP surgery. The increased demand will be accommodated by the existing GP 
surgeries open to new registration requests from people living in the area of the 
proposed development. However, additional capacity within these premises will 
be required. The CCG considers that that the application should make an 

70



 

 

appropriate financial contribution to the capital investment that the NHS will 
make in this regard.  

 
35. Health and Safety Executive (via PADHI+) – HSE does not advise, on safety 

grounds, against the granting of planning permission. As the proposed 
development is within the Consultation Distance of a major hazard pipeline you 
should consider contacting the pipeline operator before deciding the case as 
they may have a legal interest in the vicinity of the pipeline and there may be a 
need for the operator to modify the pipeline, or its operation, if the development 
proceeds. 

 
36. Fisher German on Behalf of Esso Petroleum Co Ltd – No objections 

provided the specified special requirements for safe working in close proximity 
to high pressure pipelines and the covenants in the Deed of Grant are adhered 
to.  

 
37. SSE (Scottish and Southern Energy) – No comments received.  
 
38. Southampton Airport – No objection.  

 

39. Botley Parish Council – Objection on the following grounds: 
 

 Sewage disposal – no conclusive information is provided about 
arrangements for sewage disposal. The existing sewers serving Boorley 
Green are acknowledged by Southern Water to be operating at capacity 
already and the new Botley Trunk Sewer will not service any other housing 
in the Boorley Green area.  

 Highways – the development would increase traffic onto Maddoxford Lane 
which is a rural lane and the application offers no proposals to upgrade or 
modify the road to mitigate the impact of additional traffic.  

 EIA – Members expressed surprise at the DCLG decision that an  
EIA is not needed in view of the extensive housing development which is 
underway in close proximity to the site.  

 Botley Neighbourhood Plan – The proposal is contrary to the emerging 
Botley Neighbourhood Plan because it is not a site being considered for 
inclusion within the Plan and therefore constitutes overdevelopment in the 
Parish. The application for development on a green field site constitutes 
overdevelopment of Boorley Green and will be detrimental to the future 
amenity of the occupants of the new development to the north of 
Maddoxford Lane.  

 

40. Curdridge Parish Council – Objection on the following grounds:  

 Overdevelopment in Boorley Green; 

 Increase in the volume of traffic, particularly in Wangfield Lane, a 
dangerous road with dangerous junctions onto the B3035 and A334;  

 Environmental impact due to the proximity to the River Hamble; 

 The development will reduce the visual settlement gap by extending the 
built up area of Boorley Green to the East;  

 Lack of infrastructure and local facilities. 
 

71



 

 

41. Botley Parish Action Group – Objection on the following grounds: 
 

 Excessive development and urbanisation of a semi-rural area. 

 Incursion into the Local Gap between Boorley Green, Botley and 
Curdridge.  

 Not consistent with the emerging Botley Neighbourhood Plan and is 
therefore contrary to the NPPF. 

 Increased traffic movements on unsuitable roads with the studies not 
taking into account the cumulative effect of this proposal and those 
expected from the Boorley Park development site and the Winchester 
Road site. Will have adverse impact on highway, pedestrian and animal 
safety.  

 Inadequate provision for sewage removal with no solution to foul water 
drainage contained in the application, although a feed into the existing 
sewer in Maddoxford Lane is considered. The drainage system is already 
at capacity and the new sewage pipe to be built across the site by 
Southern Water is only intended to serve the 1400 house development at 
Botley Fields. No permission should be given without positive proposals 
for the foul water system being in place.  

 Insufficient details of SuDS. There does not appear to be confirmation of 
its adoption nor any arrangements for continuing maintenance. Such 
details should be available before any planning permission is given.  

 GP services are already inadequate with the practices in the area at 
capacity. Amazed to note that the West Hampshire CCG is saying new 
residents can be accommodated by local practices. Expanding surgeries, 
albeit with developer contributions, will not address the problem of lack of 
staff.  

 Studies of wildlife on the site have not been thoroughly carried out and are 
therefore inadequate. This site, like the area between it and Crow’s Nest 
Lane, is at the lowest point of Boorley Green and is therefore a natural 
drainage point. We are concerned that further land drainage of the site will 
take water from the adjacent developed areas where properties are 
already subject to subsidence because of the underlying clay.  

 
Policy context:  designation applicable to site 
 

 Countryside 

 Local Gap 

 Solent Protection Area (Solent Mitigation and Disturbance Zone) 

 Mineral Consultation Area (River Terrace Deposits – Superficial Sand / 
Gravel) 

 Partially Within HSE Outer Consultation Zone for Hazardous Pipelines 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
42. The National Planning Policy (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as 

required by statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. Paragraph 14 sets out a general presumption in favour of 

72



 

 

sustainable development and states that (unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise) development proposals which accord with the development 
plan should be approved without delay. Where the development plan is absent, 
silent, or relevant policies are out-of-date planning permission (again, unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise) should be granted unless the 
adverse impacts of the development would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits; or specific policies in the Framework indicate 
development should be restricted (paragraph 14). Local plan policies that do not 
accord with the NPPF are now deemed to be “out-of-date”. The NPPF requires 
that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according 
to their degree of consistency with the NPPF. In other words the closer the 
policies in the plan accord to the policies in the Framework, the greater the 
weight that may be given. 
 

43. The three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 7 are to be sought 
jointly: economic (supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social 
(providing housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local 
services); and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, 
built and historic environment), whilst paragraph 10 advises that plans and 
decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so that they respond to 
the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different 
areas. 

 

44. Paragraph 17 sets out 12 core planning principles that should underpin 
decision-taking. These include that planning should: 

 

 Proactively drive and support sustainable economic development to 
deliver the homes, infrastructure and thriving local places that the country 
needs. Every effort should be made to identify and then meet the housing, 
business and other development needs of an area; 

 Ensuring that the local plan meets the full, objectively assessed needs for 
market and affordable housing in the housing market area, including key 
sites which are critical to the delivery of the housing strategy over the plan 
period. 

 Housing applications should be considered in the context of the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

 Always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity 
for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings; 

 Take account of the different roles and characters of different areas, 
recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside; 

 Contribute to conserving and enhancing the natural environment and 
reducing pollution; 

 Actively manage patterns of growth the fullest possible use of public 
transport, walking and cycling, and focus significant development in 
locations which are or can be made sustainable; 

 Take account of and support local strategies to improve health, social and 
cultural wellbeing for all, and deliver sufficient community and cultural 
facilities and services to meet local needs.  

 

73



 

 

45. Paragraphs 32-36 advise that sustainable transport options are needed and 
development should only be refused on transport grounds where the residual 
cumulative impacts of development are severe. 

 

46. Paragraph 47 requires local authorities to meet local needs for affordable and 
market housing, and identify a supply of specific deliverable sites to provide a 5-
year supply of housing. 

 

47. Paragraph 49 states that housing applications should be considered in the 
context of the presumption in favour of sustainable development. Relevant 
policies for the supply of housing should not be considered up-to-date if the 
local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable 
housing sites. 

 

48. Paragraph 50 –mixed and balanced communities should normally include 
affordable housing on site. 

 

49. Paragraphs 56 to 61 give importance to good design as part of sustainable built 
development.  

 

50. Paragraphs 100 to 103 direct development away from areas at risk of flooding 
and seek to ensure flood risk is not increased elsewhere. 

 

51. Paragraphs 109 to 118 protect biodiversity and seek net gains where possible. 
 

52. Paragraphs 120 to 125 seek to avoid unacceptable risks from pollution and 
contamination, and to limit the impacts of noise and light pollution on health and 
amenity. 

 
53. Paragraphs 126 to 135 address the protection of heritage assets. 

 
54. Paragraphs 142 to 146 address mineral resources.  
 

55. Paragraph 152 – local planning authorities should seek opportunities to achieve 
each of the economic, social and environmental dimensions of sustainable 
development, and net gains across all three.  Significant adverse impacts on 
any of these dimensions should be avoided, and wherever possible, alternative 
options which reduce or eliminate such impacts should be pursued.  Where 
adverse impacts are unavoidable, measures to mitigate the impact should be 
considered.  Where adequate mitigation measures are not possible, 
compensatory measures may be appropriate. 

 

56. Paragraph 173 advises on development viability. 
 

57. Paragraph 196 indicates that planning law requires that planning applications 
are dealt with in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF is such a material consideration. 

 

74



 

 

58. Paragraph 197 – in assessing and determining development proposals, local 
planning authorities should apply the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. 

 

59. Paragraph 203 – Local Planning Authorities should consider whether otherwise 
unacceptable development could be made acceptable through the use of 
conditions or planning obligations. 

 

60. Paragraph 204 – planning obligations should only be sought where they are 
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; directly 
related to the development; and, fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind 
to the development.  

 

61. Paragraph 211 – saved policies in existing plans are not out-of-date simply 
because they pre-date the NPPF. 

 

62. Paragraph 215 – due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing 
plans according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF, the closer the 
policies in the plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight that may 
be given. 

 

63. Paragraph 216 - decision-takers can give weight to relevant policies in 
emerging plans according to the stage of preparation, the extent to which there 
are unresolved objections to relevant policies and the degree of consistency to 
the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF.  

 
Planning Practice Guidance  
 
64. Where material, this guidance on air quality, good design, material 

considerations, flood risk, contamination, noise, open space, recreational 
facilities, natural environment, planning obligations, travel plans, transport 
assessments, water supply and wastewater provision should be afforded weight 
in the consideration of planning applications.  
 

The Development Plan 
 
65. At the current time the Development Plan for the borough comprises the 

Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) and the Hampshire Minerals 
and Waste Plan (October 2013). 

 

Saved Policies of the Adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (EBLP 
2001-2011)  
 
66. The key policies of the adopted local plan are: 
 

 1.CO - Development in the countryside 

 3.CO – Local Gap 

 18.CO – Impact on Landscape Character 

 23.NC – Protection of Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation  

 25.NC – Promotion of biodiversity 

75



 

 

 26.NC – Promotion of measures to enhance features and habitats of 
nature conservation importance 

 30.ES – Protection of noise-sensitive development 

 31.ES – Noise exposure for residential development 

 32.ES – Control of air, land and water pollution 

 33.ES – Requirement for air quality assessment 

 34.ES – Reduction in greenhouse gases 

 35.ES – Contaminated land 

 37.ES – Energy efficiency, water consumption, waste, renewable 
energy and adaptability 

 42.ES – Development within catchment of watercourse or affecting 
wetlands 

 43.ES – Protection from flooding 

 45.ES – Sustainable drainage requirements 

 59.BE - High quality design  

 72.H – Density 

 73.H – Appropriate mix of dwellings 

 74.H – Affordable housing 

 92.T – Local Transport Plan proposals 

 100.T – Sustainable transport opportunities 

 101.T - Contributions towards sustainable transport 

 102.T – Safe accesses 

 147.OS – Provision of public open space 

 190.IN –  Infrastructure provision 

 191.IN – Developer contributions 
 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013  
 
67. The application site lies within a Minerals Safeguarding Area, to which Policy 15 

“Safeguarding – mineral resources” applies. 
 
Submission Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 
 
68. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for examination in 

July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient housing was being 
provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound. 
 

69. The Submitted Local Plan has not been formally withdrawn and therefore 
remains a material planning consideration.  The weight that can be attributed to 
the draft policies of the Submitted Eastleigh Local Plan 2011-2029 is however 
extremely limited. The Council consulted on the Issues and Options Document 
(December 2015) from 23 December 2015 until 17 February 2016.  Following 
the completion of the consultation the Council are now undertaking the 
additional technical work required to inform the next formal stage in the plan-
making process.   

 

70. The most relevant draft policies of the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
2011-2029 are: 
 

76



 

 

 S1 – Sustainable development 

 S2 – New development 

 S3 – Location of new housing 

 S5 – Green Infrastructure  

 S8 – Strategic footpath/cycleway and bridleway links 

 S9 – Countryside and countryside gaps     

 S11 – Nature conservation  

 S12 – Heritage assets  

 DM1 – General criteria for new development  

 DM2 – Environmentally sustainable development 

 DM4 – Flood Risk 

 DM5 – Sustainable surface water management and watercourse 
management 

 DM7 – Pollution 

 DM9 – Nature Conservation  

 DM23 – General development criteria - transport 

 DM28 – Affordable housing  

 DM29 – Internal space standards for residential development 

 DM32 – Provision of recreation and open space facilities with new 
development 

 DM33 – New and enhanced recreation and open space facilities 

 DM35 – Community, leisure and cultural facilities 

 DM37 – Funding infrastructure 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 

The following supplementary planning guidance is relevant: 
 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 2011) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Environmentally Sustainable 
Development (March 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning document : Biodiversity (December 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 
(January 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations (July 2008, 
updated 2010) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Affordable Housing (July 2009) 
 
Other relevant documents 
 

 Internal Space Standards (January 2012) 

 The Landscape Character Assessment for Eastleigh Borough 2011 

 Public Art Strategy (2015) 
 
Assessment of proposal:  
 
Development plan and / or legislative background 
 

77



 

 

71. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 38(6) of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a local planning 
authority determining an application to do so in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

72. The Development Plan in this case comprises the saved policies of the 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 and the Hampshire Minerals 
and Waste Plan (adopted 2013). 

 

73. In terms of emerging policy the Submitted Eastleigh Local Plan 2011-2029 
(comprising the Revised Pre-Submission Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-
2029, published February 2014; and the Schedule of Proposed Minor Changes) 
was submitted to the Secretary of State in July 2014 and following examination 
hearings in November 2014, the Inspector issued his final report on 11 February 
2015.  The final report recommended non-adoption on the basis of the plan 
being unsound, largely due to its inadequate provision for new housing.  It can 
therefore be considered to have extremely limited weight in the determination of 
this application.  The emerging work on the new Local Plan to 2036 is also a 
material consideration of limited weight. 

 

74. In terms of other material planning considerations, the National Planning Policy 
Framework and Planning Practice Guidance constitute material considerations 
of significant weight. 

 
The Principle of Development 
 
The development plan 
 
75. The application seeks outline approval for up to 50 dwellings, together with 

access from Maddoxford Lane, and associated site infrastructure and open 
space. The 3.45ha site is located outside of the built-up area and within both 
designated countryside and a defined local gap.  As such Saved Policies 1.CO 
and 3.CO of the adopted Local Plan are relevant. The submitted local plan also 
shows the site to be within the countryside and countryside gap, to which Draft 
Policy S9 applies. Large-scale developments such as that proposed are not 
supported by these policies and the proposals would physically diminish the gap 
between Boorley Green and Botley. Therefore the principle of development is 
contrary to the development plan and the emerging plan.  If permission were to 
be granted for the proposed development, there would have to be other material 
planning considerations that provide support for the scheme.  
 

76. The NPPF and five year housing supply 
 
The NPPF is a material consideration of significant weight. Paragraph 14 sets 
out an overarching presumption in favour of sustainable development. At 
paragraph 49, it goes on to state that: 
 
“Housing applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development. Relevant policies for the supply of housing 

78



 

 

should not be considered up-to-date if the Local Planning Authority cannot 
demonstrate a 5 year supply of deliverable housing sites.” 

 
77. It is accepted that the Council cannot currently demonstrate a five year housing 

supply of deliverable housing sites with the latest housing supply figures 
(December 2016) demonstrating 4.23 years supply at present.  In light of this 
and in accordance with paragraph 49 of the NPPF, ‘relevant policies for the 
supply of housing’ are deemed to be out-of-date. Following recent case law and 
appeal decisions, the Council accepts that Saved Policies 1.CO and 3.CO do 
affect the supply of housing; and therefore are relevant policies for the supply of 
housing for the purposes of paragraph 49. They are therefore out-of-date by 
virtue of a lack of five-year housing land supply. This does not, however, mean 
that they are dis-applied, and they can, as a matter of planning judgement, still 
be attributed significant, and indeed determinative, weight by a decision-maker 
in accordance with their consistent with the NPPF.  

 
78. As Saved Policies 1.CO and 3.CO are, however, accepted to be out-of-date at 

this current time and in the context of the nature of the particular development 
proposed, it is necessary to consider whether the proposals are sustainable 
development and to apply the NPPF’s overall presumption in favour of 
sustainable development, as set out in paragraph 14. This is discussed in more 
detail below. 

 

Sustainable Development 
 
79. In paragraphs 7, 8 and 14, the NPPF sets out a presumption in favour of 

sustainable development, indicating that it has an economic, a social and an 
environmental role.  These roles should not be undertaken in isolation as they 
are mutually dependent and, therefore, the application is assessed against all 
three headings.  It also states that when determining applications, those that 
accord with the development plan should be approved without delay (unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise).  Where the development plan is 
absent, silent or the relevant policies are out-of-date, permission should (unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise) be granted unless any adverse 
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 
when assessed against the policies in the NPPF as a whole; or where specific 
policies in the NPPF indicate development should be restricted. 

 
Economic Sustainability 
 
80. One of the core planning principles of the NPPF is to proactively drive and 

support sustainable economic development to deliver amongst other things, the 
homes and thriving local places that the country needs (Paragraph 17). The 
Framework also reiterates the Government’s commitment to securing economic 
growth in order to create jobs and prosperity. 
  

81. The proposals would provide some notable economic benefits. These include 
employment opportunities that would be created during the construction phase 
of the development, which will in turn result in increased spending within the 

79



 

 

local economy, for example on materials, goods and other services. In addition, 
the future occupiers of the residential properties would be likely to support local 
services and facilities, and a New Homes Bonus would also be paid. Further, 
the proposals would result in financial contributions being secured to offset 
certain impacts of the development, and result in the enhancement of local 
infrastructure and facilities. 

 

82. Provided that they are appropriately secured, these elements are benefits of the 
development which would be considered to be benefits in the planning balance 
and overall it is considered that the development would be economically 
sustainable. However, it should be noted that these benefits are not unique to 
this scheme and could be accrued from a development of this size in a different 
location.   

 
Social Sustainability 
 
83. The proposals would provide for up to 50 residential units that would be a mix of 

dwelling types and incorporate 36% affordable housing (18 units), in 
accordance with Saved Policies 73.H and 74.H and the NPPF’s aspiration to 
“deliver a wide choice of high quality homes in inclusive and mixed communities 
to meet the needs of different people”. The se dwellings would support social 
wellbeing through the provision of a mixed and balanced community. It is 
considered that the delivery of both market and affordable housing on the site 
would therefore be a positive social benefit in support of the scheme in the 
context of the Council’s 5-year housing land supply position. The proposal also 
includes the provision of a LEAP (Local Equipped Area of Play), as well as 
contributions towards local educational and health facilities, which could also 
benefit other local residents.  

 

84. Provided that they are appropriately secured these elements are benefits of the 
development when considered in the planning balance. As with the economic 
benefits which are set out above, it be noted that these could also be accrued 
from a development of this size in a different location.  

 
Environmental Sustainability 
 
85. The size and location of the application site is such that it has potential to 

impact on a number of factors, including: 
 

 Impact on the countryside, local gap and surrounding area 

 Form, layout and design of the development 

 Residential amenity 

 Nature conservation interests 

 Trees 

 Noise and Contaminated land 

 Minerals 

 Drainage and flood risk 

 Transport matters and highway safety 

 Sustainability measures 
 

80



 

 

These are discussed in detail below.  
 
Impact on the countryside, local gap and surrounding area: 

 
86. As set out above, the application site is located within the countryside and the 

local gap separating the settlements of Boorley Green and Botley. Saved 
Policies 1.CO and 3.CO therefore apply. In addition the Submitted Local Plan 
shows the site to be within the countryside and countryside gap as set out in 
Draft Policy S9. These policies seek to protect the countryside from 
inappropriate development and protect the individual identity of settlements. As 
set out above, large scale developments such as that proposed are not 
supported by these policies and the proposals would physically diminish the 
gap. In addition, Saved Policy 18.CO seeks to protect valued landscapes. The 
site lies within Landscape Character Area 9: Horton Heath Undulating Farmland 
(as identified within the Council’s ‘Landscape Character Assessment for the 
Borough of Eastleigh’) although it is not covered by, nor does it contain, any 
statutory landscape protection designations.  
 

87. The development of the application site would invariably bring a notable change 
to its character, with it altering from predominantly open land and agricultural 
uses to one where built form and associated infrastructure are dominant. The 
proposals would also serve to extend the settlement boundary of Boorley Green 
as defined in the adopted Local Plan and would physically diminish the local 
gap between this settlement and Botley. These impacts, however, must be 
considered in context and in light of the resulting effects upon the surrounding 
countryside and landscape, as well as the functionality of the local gap and its 
aim to prevent the coalescence of settlements in this location.  

 
88. The site is relatively well enclosed due to the local topography and existing 

vegetation.  From the west views are screened by the mature boundary trees 
while from the east existing mature trees and hedgerows on adjoining land 
combine with the boundary trees to screen views.  From the north and north-
east, when in the immediate vicinity of the site along Maddoxford Lane, and 
from Botley Footpath No.2, clear views of the site are gained over the boundary 
hedgerows.  The site is more open from the south but public views are generally 
limited to those travelling on the train, however, the site is not visible from the 
bridge over the railway line on Winchester Road. 

 

89. When considering the impact of development on the local gap it is important to 
assess it against the function of the Local Gap in protecting against the 
coalescence of Botley and Boorley Green.  This is assessed both in terms of 
the level of intervisibility between these settlements and with regard to the 
perception of leaving one settlement and arriving at the other. 

 

90. At present, when travelling north-west along Winchester Road from Botley, the 
sense of arriving in Boorley Green is considered to occur when crossing over 
the railway bridge moving towards its junction with Crows Nest Lane.  Whilst 
acknowledging that this development would sit to the east of the existing 
settlement boundary of Boorley Green, as a result of the tree screening and the 

81



 

 

elevated position of the railway bridge, the perception of this point of arrival 
would not be materially altered. 

 

91. When entering Crows Nest Lane from Winchester Road the sense of having 
arrived into the settlement of Boorley Green will have already occurred, and at 
this point when moving in a north-easterly direction along the lane its initial 
section is bound by built form on both sides of the road.  Due to the mature tree 
line on the western boundary of the site there would not be clear views of the 
proposed development.  If outline planning permission is granted for 
development of the land immediately to the east of Crows Nest Lane 
(O/16/78389) then that development would restrict views of this development. 

 

92. Heading east along Maddoxford Lane the development would only become 
clearly visible when immediately next to the site due to the mature tree line on 
the western boundary, having first travelled passed development on the 
adjacent Crows Nest Lane site, if permitted.  If Members resolve to refuse 
planning permission for the Crows Nest Lane development then consideration 
needs to be given to the appropriateness of developing this site with the 
intervening field left undeveloped, which would create an isolated pocket of 
development separate from the existing built-up area on the southern side of 
Maddoxford Lane. 

 

93. In deciding whether the landscape can accommodate the level of development 
proposed it is necessary to consider the context in which any development 
would be viewed.  The application site lies immediately opposite the approved 
Boorley Park scheme for 1,400 dwellings which is situated to the northern side 
Maddoxford Lane (O/12/71514), with the built-form associated with this larger-
scale development extending further east along Maddoxford Lane than the 
corresponding boundary of the application site.  This built-form will also be 
visually apparent along this route and, it is considered, will mark the point at 
which the sense of leaving Boorley Green to travel towards Curdridge will occur 
when moving eastwards and, vice-versa, when arriving into the settlement 
travelling west.  The development proposed as part of this application will not 
materially alter this perception; instead the proposed development would be 
viewed in the context of an existing built-up area, rather than in a gap between 
settlements. 

 

94. Taking account of the above factors, it is not considered that the proposed 
development would adversely affect the sense of separation between Boorley 
Green and Botley, or Boorley Green and Curdridge, nor would it lead to the 
coalescence of any of these settlements.  As the aim of the Local Gap is to 
prevent the coalescence of settlements, development of the site would, 
therefore, not affect the function of the gap in this location.  

 
Form, layout and design 

 
95. Whilst development of the site may not affect the function of the gap it is still 

important that any proposed development is of an appropriate size, scale and 
layout. The application is submitted in outline form with access as the only 
detailed matter to be considered.  The application is supported by an indicative 

82



 

 

masterplan which shows pedestrian and vehicular links and roads, areas of that 
shows an access road running parallel to the eastern boundary of the site which 
stems from the main entrance from Maddoxford Lane. The development is then 
served by a mixture of primary and secondary roads and streets, which would 
be addressed by residential properties that are set within perimeter blocks. The 
developed area would be surrounded by open space which lies between it and 
the site’s perimeters, with a network of footpaths and links being shown across 
its extent. The open space would incorporate the provision of LEAP (Local 
Equipped Area of Play) and be supplemented by additional tree planting and 
landscaping, with the existing boundary tree and hedge lines being largely 
retained and reinforced to enhance the setting of the development.  

 

96. The Planning Statement submitted in support of the application sets out that the 
site has the potential to provide 2-storey dwellings in a mix of 1, 2, 3 and 4-
bedroom homes. The Design & Access Statement goes on to state that the 
appearance of properties would be influenced by the character of the 
surrounding area, whilst at the same time the development will seek to create 
its own identity and character derived from its landscaped setting.  

 

97. The development will represent a net density of up to 25 dwellings per hectare, 
which is considered to be suitable in this instance in light of the site constraints 
and its location on the edges of the extended settlement.  In this regard, it is 
considered that the development would accord with the requirements of 
Paragraph 58 of the NPPF, which encourages the achieving of an appropriate 
balance between optimising the potential of a site to accommodate 
development (making efficient use of land) and respecting the surrounding 
character of the area.  

 

98. In summary, the development is considered to be acceptable in respect of its 
layout, design and density, with the proposals having the potential to create an 
attractive development which takes suitable account of its setting and 
surrounding context.  

 

Nature conservation interests 
 
Internationally designated interests 
 

99. The site is within 5.6km of the Solent and Southampton Water Special 
Protection Area (SPA) and will lead to an increase in residential 
accommodation. It is considered, however, that the adverse effects from 
recreational disturbance on the Solent SPA can be suitably mitigated by 
financial contributions secured in accordance with the details agreed by the 
Solent Recreation Mitigation Partnership and the Borough Council’s policy. Both 
the Council’s Biodiversity Officer and Natural England have raised no objection 
in respect of recreational disturbance subject to provision being made for these 
contributions.  
 

100. The development has the potential to impact upon the Solent and Southampton 
SPA, Solent and Southampton Water Ramsar site, and Solent Maritime Special 
Area of Conservation (SAC), as well as the Newhouse Farm Woodland and 

83



 

 

Swamp SINC without suitable mitigation to ensure good surface water quality 
and appropriate flow rates from the site. It is necessary therefore to ensure that 
the development has adequate operational and construction drainage 
provisions, which includes the necessary filtration and subsequent management 
and maintenance in order to prevent any risks of pollution. Conditions will, 
therefore, be imposed as recommended by the Council’s Biodiversity Officer to 
require the submission of a SUDs strategy to incorporate the required levels of 
naturalised filtration and future management details, and a Construction 
Environment Management Plan to protect water quality during the construction 
phase of the development.  

 
Protected species  
 

101. Where development affects European protected species (EPS), permission can 
be granted unless the development is likely to result in a breach of the EU 
Directive underpinning the Habitats Regulations and is unlikely to be granted an 
EPS licence from Natural England to allow the development to proceed under 
derogation from the law. An EPS licence can only be granted if the development 
proposal is able to meet three derogation tests laid out in the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended): 

 
1. The consented operation must be for ‘preserving public health or public 

safety or other imperative reasons of overriding public interest including 
those of a social or economic nature and beneficial consequences of 
primary importance for the environment’; (Regulation 53(2)(e); 

 
2. There must be ‘no satisfactory alternative’ (Regulation 53(9)(a)); and 

 
3. The action authorised ‘will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the 

population of the species concerned at a favourable conservation status on 
their natural range’ (Regulation 53(9)(b)). 

 
102. The application would provide for additional housing within the Borough at a 

time when the Council does not have a 5 year housing land supply and as such, 
if developed, the proposals would bring about social and economic benefits. A 
number of additional greenfield sites will be needed in order to meet the 
Council’s 5 year housing land supply and development of this site is considered 
to be more suitable, in principle, than other sites in the area. It is considered 
therefore that the proposals would meet the first 2 derogation tests.  
 

103. With regards to the third test, the application is supported by a Preliminary 
Ecological Appraisal, an Otter Site Assessment Report, and a Bat Roost 
Assessment Report. This information has been reviewed by the Council’s 
Biodiversity Officer who has advised that further survey work is required in order 
to assess habitats and propose mitigation where subsequently necessitated. 
Specifically in regards to European Protected Species, this is in relation to Bats 
and Dormice. Whilst not protected by European law, further work has also been 
identified as being necessary in respect of reptiles in the form of presence / 
likely absence surveys.  

 

84



 

 

104. With regards to Dormice, the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal undertaken 
identified that the western hedgerow provides suitable habitat and that the site 
is also well connected to significant areas of broadleaf woodland located in the 
River Hamble valley approximately 500m to the east of the site. In light of this, it 
is considered that a detailed survey should be undertaken to confirm presence 
and absence, with mitigation subsequently proposed to protect any dormice 
present from the deleterious impacts of the development.  

 

105. In terms of bats, it is necessary to ascertain which bat species are roosting on 
site, if any, and the size and nature of the roosts before permission can be 
granted. Whilst some survey work has been undertaken in this regard, it is 
considered that further surveys are required of the existing buildings and 
structures on the site, this being in order to ensure that no roosts are lost in the 
development and suitable mitigation can be proposed. In addition, surveys of 
the site’s potential for foraging bats (activity surveys) are required and 
measures proposed to ensure the protection of any foraging corridors identified 
within the site.  

 

106. Agreement has been reached as to the extent of additional ecological survey 
work required and the timetable for undertaking them.  If Members were minded 
to grant outline planning permission it would be necessary to wait for the 
surveys to be undertaken and the resulting mitigation strategies drawn up 
before issuing the decision.  The officer recommendation reflects this. 

  
Trees 

 
107. The application is supported by an Arboricultural Development Statement and 

Tree Survey.  There are trees and hedgerows of varying species and maturity 
present along the boundaries of the site which are considered to make a 
positive contribution to the amenity of the area. The submitted Arboricultural 
Development Statement proposes the retention of the majority of these trees 
and hedgerows. In order to facilitate the development, however, two low quality 
‘C’ grade trees (both Goat Willows along the southern boundary of the site) as 
well as one low quality ‘C’ grade group (comprising five Ash and one Dogwood) 
are proposed to be removed, along with the partial removal of the hedgerow 
along the northern perimeter of the site in order to allow for the provision of the 
new site access and necessary visibility splays. In addition, one ‘U’ grade 
Pedunculate Oak in the vicinity of the western boundary is recommended to be 
removed for reasons of sound arboricultural management. 

 

108. The Council’s Tree Officer has reviewed the submitted information in the 
context of the development proposed and has raised no objection subject to 
conditions being attached to any permission granted. There is therefore 
considered to be no conflict with the aforementioned requirements of Saved 
Policy 59.BE (i) of the adopted Local Plan.  
 
Noise and Contaminated Land 

 
109. The site lies approximately 100m from the railway line to the south and adjoins 

Maddoxford Lane.  It therefore has the potential to be impacted by noise from 

85



 

 

road and rail traffic.  The application is supported by a Noise Assessment that 
concludes that noise levels at the site are relatively low and are dictated by road 
traffic noise from Maddoxford Lane as well as some noise from passing trains 
on the railway to the south of the site. Due to the low noise levels, acceptable 
internal noise levels are predicted to be achieved in all habitable rooms of the 
development using standard glazing and ventilators. Acceptable noise levels 
are also predicted to be achieved in all external amenity areas.  

 

110. Environmental Health has raised no objections and no additional noise 
mitigation measures are therefore deemed to be required and there is no 
conflict with Saved Policy 30.ES of the adopted Local Plan. 

 
111. The application site is located on an operational farm and also has the ESSO 

fuel pipeline running through it. It therefore has the potential to be impacted by 
contaminants associated with these uses. The application is supported by a 
Preliminary Risk Assessment that identifies two above ground storage tanks 
present on site (one labelled petroleum and one labelled oil), a number of other 
on-site and off-site potential sources along with plausible pathways and 
receptors.  As such it recommends developing a scope for an intrusive site 
investigation.  

 

112. Environmental Health has considered this information and in light of the 
potential for the site to be effected by contaminants in the ground and/or 
gases/vapours associated with on-site and off-site sources, and the findings of 
the preliminary assessment, further work is deemed to be required in the form 
of a site investigation report, a detailed site specific remediation scheme, as 
well as thereafter the subsequent verification of any remediation undertaken. 
These matters can be adequately covered by way of appropriate planning 
conditions as recommended and, with their imposition, it is considered that 
there is no conflict with the requirements of Saved Policy 35.ES of the adopted 
Local Plan or the relevant aforementioned provisions of the NPPF.  

 
Drainage and flood risk 

 

113. The site is located within Flood Zone 1, which is defined as having low 
probability of flooding and an area in which residential development is 
appropriate in principle. Hampshire County Council’s (HCC) Flood and Water 
Management Team have been consulted on the application with no objections 
being raised in relation to the proposed measures for the management of 
surface water. Further details of the exact SUDs scheme proposed and 
arrangements for its future management and maintenance can be required 
through the use of appropriate planning conditions. An informative will be added 
to the decision notice to bring to the attention of the applicant the potential need 
for the separate consent of any relevant land owners, as well as the Local Lead 
Flood Authority (HCC), in respect of the discharging into or siting of structures 
within an existing watercourse.  

 

114. With regards to the matter of foul drainage/sewerage, Southern Water has been 
consulted on the application. They have confirmed that, based on an initial 
desk-top study, they cannot currently accommodate the needs of the 

86



 

 

development without additional local infrastructure being provided, this being 
unless the developer can demonstrate that foul flow would not exceed existing 
levels. Any notable increase in flows into the wastewater sewerage system has 
the subsequent effect of increasing the potential risk of flooding within the area.  

 

115. It is noted that the matter of sewerage capacity and the associated risks of 
flooding in the area has been raised within the third party representations 
received and this is evidently a point of concern for local residents. Whilst 
acknowledging this concern, the application could not reasonably be refused on 
the basis of a lack of capacity within the local foul sewerage network. There are 
mechanisms and separate legislative provisions (Section 98 of the Water 
Industry Act 1991) for the requesting of appropriate drainage infrastructure 
which are available to the developer such as to provide the required capacity to 
accommodate the development. These fall outside of the planning process and 
it would be for the developer to enter into the relevant agreement with Southern 
Water, as the sewerage undertaker, in order to secure this.  

 

116. Conditions will, however, be imposed to require the submission of details of the 
foul drainage arrangements proposed to serve the development with this to 
include any arrangements for the diversion / protection of the water main which 
currently crosses the site. Informatives will also be included on the decision 
notice to advise the developer of the restrictions on excavation, mounding or 
tree planting in the vicinity of the water main, as well as to advise of the need for 
an application to made to Southern Water in respect of the provision of a water 
supply to the development and the connection into the foul drainage network.  

 

117. For the reasons given, there is considered to be no conflict with the 
requirements of Saved Policy 45.ES of the adopted Local Plan.  
 
Transport matters and highway safety 

 
118. The application is supported by a Transport Assessment. This sets out that, 

based on the TRICS (Trip Rate Information Computer System) database, it is 
anticipated that the development would generate an average of 28 additional 
vehicle trips during the AM peak period and 25 during the PM peak period. 
Transportation and Engineering have considered the submitted assessment 
and the additional traffic impacts associated with the proposals. No objection 
has been raised, either in respect of the scheme as a stand-alone development, 
or when considered in combination with other developments in the area, with it 
being noted that the highway improvement schemes associated with the 
Boorley Green development (1,400 dwellings and associated uses) will also 
assist in mitigating the impact of the smaller level of development proposed on 
the application site. Similarly, in terms of the impact on local highway junctions, 
with the mitigation proposed / secured as part of development, the additional 
flows generated from the application site would not have any great impact on 
capacity.  
 

119. The proposed development would be accessed via a new T-junction on 
Maddoxford Lane to the north-eastern corner of the site. Following receipt of 

87



 

 

additional tracking information this access had been confirmed to be acceptable 
and of an appropriate layout to serve the development.  

 

120. The submitted parameters plan / masterplan shows a road coming in from the 
new access with a combination of private drives, link roads and courtyards 
leading off it. The proposed access is bound by 2m wide footways to provide for 
pedestrian linkage from the development, with this footway shown to extend 
along the northern frontage of the site along Maddoxford Lane. This being to 
allow for the potential to link with the proposed access and crossing island 
associated with application O/16/78389 on the adjacent land as requested by 
Transportation and Engineering. A further crossing point is proposed on 
Maddoxford Lane to the east of the site access, with an additional potential 
footpath and further vehicular link shown along the western boundary to 
improve the permeability of the development and its connectivity with the 
adjoining land should planning permission be granted for development on the 
site.  

 

121. With regards to the exact internal layout of the scheme and its arrangements for 
parking provision, these would be considered at reserved matters stage. The 
submitted Design and Access Statement however, confirms that the level of 
parking would conform to the Council’s standards and would be provided 
through a mixture of courtyards, garages, carports, driveways, and on-street 
parking where appropriate. This statement also confirms that cycle parking and 
storage would also be provided throughout the development.   

 

122. It is considered that the proposed development would be sited in a location that 
could be made sustainable with off-site highway improvements and financial 
contributions towards connectivity and sustainable transport opportunities, 

 

123. Overall, the development is considered to be acceptable and to comply with the 
provisions of Saved Policies 100.T, 101.T, 102.T and 104.T of the adopted 
Local Plan, as well as Paragraphs 32 and 35 of the NPPF, in respect of its 
access, and transport and highway safety impacts.  

 
Sustainability measures 

                                   
124. The NPPF (paragraphs 95-99) and Saved Policies 34.ES and 37.ES of the 

adopted local plan, require development to be sustainable in terms of resource 
use, climate change and energy use. In March 2015, a Ministerial Statement 
announced that the Code for Sustainable Homes would cease to be applied to 
new development, although the requirement to achieve the Code’s levels for 
energy efficiency and water consumption remains. If permission were to be 
granted any future reserved matters application would have to meet the energy 
and water standards.  

 
Conclusions on Environmental sustainability 

 
125. For the reasons as set out above, when considered in conjunction with the 

development proposed on the adjoining land which is the subject of application 
O/16/78389, with the necessary mitigation, the impact upon the countryside, 

88



 

 

landscape and character of the area would not be significantly detrimental, and 
the development would not undermine the function of the local gap in protecting 
the separation of settlements in this location.  
 

126. The proposals would also not unduly affect the amenity of existing or future 
residents, would be reasonably sustainably located and, with the provision of 
the additional footway links and crossing point along Maddoxford Lane, would 
be suitably accessible. The development is also acceptable in regards to its 
noise impacts and, subject to the imposition of appropriate planning conditions, 
its land contamination effects and foul and surface drainage arrangements.  

 
127. Subject to the receipt of the necessary additional ecological survey work in 

respect of bats and dormice that suitably addresses the relevant requirements 
in this regard; it is considered that on balance the development is 
environmentally sustainable.  

 
Residential amenity 

 
128. It is considered that on a site of this size sufficient separation distance could be 

achieved between existing and proposed dwellings, and within the development 
itself, to prevent any significant loss of amenity in terms of overlooking, 
overbearing impact and overshadowing.  There is a separation distance of 
around 150m from the western edge of the built-up part of the site to the 
nearest dwellings on Crows Nest Lane and at least 30m to the dwellings 
proposed on the adjacent site to the west (O/16/78389) and Boorley Park. 

 
129. It is also considered that the size of the site is such that there is suitable 

potential for the relevant development standards to be met, thus providing 
future occupiers with an appropriate level of amenity. 

 

130. With regards to the demolition and construction phase of the development, the 
impact upon the amenity of existing residents in the locality can be suitably 
controlled through the use of conditions. These include restrictions on hours of 
working, the prevention of on-site burning, and a requirement for the submission 
and approval of a construction management plan which sets out measures for 
dealing with matters such as dust and noise generated by the development.  

 

131. For the reasons given, there is considered to be no conflict with the 
requirements of Saved Policy 59.BE (vii.) of the adopted Local Plan or 
Paragraph 17 of the NPPF in respect of the matter of residential amenity.  

 
Deliverability 
 

132. The development would provide for up to 50 additional dwellings and it is 
considered that a site of this size could be delivered within the five year period 
and, thus, would contribute to the Council’s housing land supply. In order to 
encourage its early delivery, the standard time frame for the submission of 
reserved matters and the commencement of development could be reduced by 
one year.  

 

89



 

 

Other matters 
 
133. The Parish Council have recently written to the Secretary of State for 

Communities and Local Government asking the Secretary of State to give a 
direction restricting the grant of planning permission for this application on the 
grounds that the Parish Council is preparing a Neighbourhood Plan, which 
when “made” will become part of the statutory Development Plan and that they 
are wanting all such sites to be promoted through the Neighbourhood Plan 
process so that all sites can be impartially and objectively assessed by the 
Parish Council, rather than by pre-emptive planning applications. 

 
134. This request does not prevent the Local Area Committee considering this 

application at this committee.  The Secretary of State may give directions 
requiring applications to be referred to him instead of being dealt with by the 
local planning authority.  No such direction has been received from the 
Secretary of State at the time of writing.  Before determining an application 
referred to him, the Secretary of State gives the applicant or local authority the 
opportunity of appearing before, and being heard by, a person appointed by the 
Secretary of State for that purpose.  In such circumstances it would be 
appropriate to know how Members would have resolved to determine the 
application, had the application not been referred to the Secretary of State, 
therefore it is recommended that Members continue to consider this application. 

 

135. It should be noted that while the Parish of Botley has been designated as a 
Neighbourhood Area for which a Neighbourhood Plan can be prepared a draft 
Neighbourhood Plan has not yet been published for consultation.  While it is 
understood that the draft is to be published very shortly, it is considered that at 
present the weight that can be given to the proposed Botley Neighbourhood 
Plan is extremely limited. 

 
Planning obligation /considerations 
 
136. In accordance with the guidance contained within the NPPF, Saved Policies 

74.H, 101.T, 147.OS and 191.IN of the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
Review (2001-2011), Policies DM32 and DM37 of the Submission Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, the Council’s ‘Planning Obligations’ SPD and 
the requirements of Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure 
Regulations, there is a requirement for developers’ contributions to ensure on 
and off-site provision for facilities and infrastructure made necessary by the 
development, or to mitigate against any increased need/pressure on existing 
facilities. This is in addition to the requisite on-site provision of affordable 
housing. 
  

137. If permission is to be granted contributions / obligations towards the provision of 
the following infrastructure would need to be secured via a Section 106 
agreement index linked as per the Planning Obligations SPD and HCC 
requirements:  

 
a. Provision of 35% affordable housing on site 

90



 

 

b. Provision of on-site public open space and play area, plus future 
management and maintenance responsibilities, including commuted 
sums for maintenance if adopted by the Council. 

c. Provision of off-site highway works 
d. Restriction preventing unallocated parking spaces being sold off to 

individual householders 
e. Financial contributions towards: 

i. Primary and secondary education 
ii. The Solent Disturbance Mitigation Project 
iii. Sustainable transport measures and improvements 
iv. Health provision 
v. Community infrastructure 
vi. Off-site public open space provision/improvements 
vii. Street-tree maintenance 
viii. Traffic Regulation Order 

 

138. The projects and measures identified for contribution expenditure will comply 
with the 3 tests set out in Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
2010, in that the monies would go towards the projects which are directly 
related to the development, and are fairly and reasonably related in scale and 
kind to the proposed development. The contributions would be index-linked to 
ensure the contributions rise in line with the costs of providing the identified 
projects/measures. The obligations sought are necessary to make the 
development acceptable in planning terms and to meet the needs generated by 
the new residents and the potential impact on existing services and facilities. 

 
Other material considerations 
 
139. Also of relevance is the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, 

July 2014.  The Submitted Local Plan has not been formally withdrawn and 
therefore remains a material planning consideration.  Whilst the weight that can 
be attributed to the draft policies of the Submitted Eastleigh Local Plan 2011-
2029 is extremely limited, nevertheless it represents the most recent statement 
of the Council’s development strategy for the borough.  With regards to this 
application, the new policies essentially echo those of the current plan and are 
not considered to affect the recommendation put forward. 

 
Conclusion 
 
140. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 38(6) of 

the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a local planning 
authority determining an application to do so in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The 
National Planning Policy Framework is a significant material consideration.  

 
141. The site lies within designated countryside and local gap as set out within the 

adopted Local Plan, where Saved Policies 1.CO (protection of the countryside) 
and 3.CO (local gaps) apply. Large scale developments such as that proposed 
are not supported by these policies and the proposals would physically diminish 
the gap.  

91



 

 

 

142. The Council recognises, however, that it cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year 
supply of deliverable housing sites and in light of this and in accordance with 
paragraph 49 of the NPPF, ‘relevant policies for the supply of housing’ are 
deemed to be out-of-date. The Council accepts that Saved Policies 1.CO and 
3.CO do affect the supply of housing; and therefore are relevant policies for the 
supply of housing for the purposes of paragraph 49. Whilst they are not dis-
applied and can still be attributed weight, they are therefore acknowledged to be 
out-of-date by virtue of a lack of five-year housing land supply. 

 

143. In such circumstances, paragraph 14 of the NPPF advises that permission 
should be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly 
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in 
the Framework taken as a whole; or where specific policies in the Framework 
indicate that development should be restricted (the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development). This test requires an assessment of the social, 
economic and environmental impacts of the proposals.  

 

144. It is noted that the development would give rise to social benefits. This includes 
the provision of additional open space, contributions towards improvements to 
local health care and education facilities and, notably, housing provision, which 
would incorporate a proportion of affordable housing. In addition, there would be 
economic benefits resulting from the construction phase of the development, an 
increase in local population, payment of a New Homes Bonus, and financial 
contributions secured via a S106 planning obligation. 

 

145. In assessing harm, whilst the development is located within countryside and 
local gap, it would not undermine the function of the gap in this location in 
protecting the individual identify of settlements. Although the character of the 
site itself would invariably be changed, subject to appropriate design, scale and 
landscaping which would be controlled as part of a subsequent reserved 
matters application, when considered concurrently with the proposals on the 
adjacent land that are the subject of application O/16/78389, the development 
would not result in unacceptable harm to the character and appearance of the 
area. Providing satisfactory protected species surveys and resultant mitigation 
strategies are submitted to address the matters raised, the development is 
therefore, on balance, considered to be environmentally sustainable.  

 

146. Taking account of these factors, it is considered that the benefits of the 
development would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the harm and, as 
such, the proposals would constitute sustainable development for which the 
Framework establishes a presumption in favour. There are no specific policies 
within the Framework that indicate that development should be restricted. 
Subject to the receipt of the required protected species information, as well as 
the developer entering into a Section 106 Agreement to secure the required 
planning obligations, therefore, it is recommended that outline permission be 
granted subject to conditions.  

 
 
 

92



 

 

 

 

93



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY Monday 27 March 2017 Case Officer Liz Harrison 

 
 
SITE: Land to the north and east of Boorley Green, Winchester 

Road, Botley, Southampton, SO32 2UA 
 
Ref. R/16/79470 Received: 01/11/2016     (28/04/2017) 
 
 
APPLICANT: The Boorley Green Consortium  

 
PROPOSAL: Reserved matters application (pursuant to outline 

planning permission O/12/71514 which was subject to an 
Environmental Impact Assessment) for the erection of 
889no. dwellings, community building, multi-use games 
area, land for use as allotments, open space, road 
infrastructure, pedestrian and cycle links, foul and surface 
water drainage networks, associated landscaping, car 
parking, changes to levels, boundary treatments and 
diversion of Botley Footpath Number 2. 

  
AMENDMENTS: 15/12/2016, 03.03.2017, 06.03.2017, 09.03.2017, 10.03.2017, 

13.03.2017, 16.03.2017 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Subject to i) the expiry of the publicity period on 29.3.17, ii) satisfactory receipt 
of amended and additional plans/information, iii) consideration of outstanding 
consultees responses and any new issues raised before the publicity period 
expires; iv) satisfactory resolution of any additional mitigation against the 
adverse impact on the Solent and Southampton Water SPA (if required); and v) 
any necessary condition additions or amendments, including updating the list 
of approved plans then delegate to Head of Development Management, in 
consultation with Chair, Vice-Chair and Local Ward Members of HEWEB Local 
Area Committee to 
 
APPROVE THE RESERVED MATTERS 

 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
(1) The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the 

following plans numbered: 10633cv-01, 10633cv-02, 10633cv-03, 10633cv-04, 
10633cv-05 Rev A, 10633cv-06 Rev A, 10633cv-07 Rev A, 10633cv-08 Rev A, 
10633cv-09, 10633cv-10, 10633cv-11, 10633cv-12, 10633cv-13, 10633cv-14, 
A3.GARA01.pe, A3.GARA02.pe, A3.GARA03.pe, A3.HT.2303.sp.e, 
A3.HT.304i.sp.e, A3.HT.309i.sp.pe, A3.HT.313i-1.sp.pe, A3.HT.313i-2.sp.pe, 
A3.HT.350.e, A3.HT.350.p, A3.HT.353(2blk).e, A3.HT.353(2Blk).p, 
A3.HT.3B5Pi.sp.e, A3.HT.3B5Pi.sp.p, A3.HT.407.pe, A3.HT.412.p, A3.HT.419-
1.e, A3.HT.419-2.e, A3.HT.419.p, A3.HT.420.e, A3.HT.420.p, A3.HT.421.e, 

95

Agenda Item 10



 

 

A3.HT.421.p, A3.HT.422.e, A3.HT.422.p, A3.HT.427-1.pe, A3.Ht.427-2.pe, 
A3.HT.435.e, A3.HT.435.p, A3.HT.437.pe, A3.HT.450.e, A3.HT.450.p, 
A3.HT.4B6Pi.sp.e, A3.HT.4B6Pi.sp.p, A3.HT.505.e, A3.P.164-165.e, A3.P.164-
165.p, A3.P.168-170.e, A3.P.168-170.p, A3.P.184.e, A3.P.184p, 
A3.P.191_206.e, A3.P.191_206.p, A3.P.192-193.e, A3.P.192-193.p, A3.P.196-
198.e, A3.P.196-198.p, A3.P.201-204.e, A3.P.201-204.e2, A3.P.201-204.p, 
A3.P.219-220.e, A3.P.219-220.p, A3.P.221-223.e, A3.P.221-223.p, A3.P.232.e, 
A3.P.232.p, A3.P.234-236.e, A3.P.234-236.p, A3.P.241.e, A3.P.241.p, 
A3.P.242.e, A3.P.242.p, A4.GARA01.pe, A4.GARA03.pe, A4.GARA04.pe, 
A4.HT.309i.sp.pe, A4.HT.342-1.e, A4.HT.342-2.e, A4.HT.342.e, A4.HT.342.p, 
A4.HT.3B5Pi.sp.e, A4.HT.3B5Pi.sp.p, A4.HT.412-1.e, A4.HT.412-2.e, 
A4.HT.412-3.e, A4.HT.412.p, A4.HT.419-1.e, A4.HT.419-2.e, A4.HT.419-3.e, 
A4.HT.419-4.e, A4.HT.419.p, A4.HT.420-1.e, A4.HT.420-1.p, A4.HT.420-2.e, 
A4.HT.420-2.p, A4.HT.420-3.e, A4.HT.420-3.p, A4.HT.420-4.e, A4.HT.420-4.p, 
A4.HT.420-5.e, A4.HT.420-5.p, A4.HT.421.e, A4.HT.421.p, A4.HT.427-1.pe, 
A4.HT.427-2.pe, A4.HT.427-3.pe, A4.HT.437.e, A4.HT.454-1.e, A4.HT.454-1.p, 
A4.HT.454-2.p, A4.HT.454sp-A.e, A4.HT.454sp-A.p, A4.HT.454sp-A1.p, 
A4.HT.505.e, A4.HT.505.p, A4.P.246-257.e, A4.P.246-257.e2, A4.P.246-257.p1, 
A4.P.246-257.p2, A4.P.246-257.p3, A4.P.273-275.e, A4.P.273-275.p, A4.P.288-
292.e1, A4.P.288-292.e2, A4.P.288-292.p, A4.P.293-294.e, A4.P.293-294.p, 
A4.P.295-296.e, A4.P.295-296.p, A4.P.300-301.e, A4.P.300-301.p1, A4.P.300-
301.p2, A4.P.316.e , A4.P.316.p, A4.P267-268.e, A4.P267-268.p, A4.P270-
272.e, A4.P270-272.p1, A4.P270-272.p2, A5.GARA01.pe, A5.GARA02.pe, 
A5.GARA03.pe, A5.HT.313i.sp.pe, A5.HT.342.e, A5.HT.342.p, A5.HT.407.pe, 
A5.HT.412.e, A5.HT.412.p, A5.HT.417.e, A5.HT.417.p,  A5.HT.419.e, 
A5.HT.419.p, A5.HT.420-1.e, A5.HT.420-1.p, A5.HT.420-2.e, A5.HT.420-2.p, 
A5.HT.421.e, A5.HT.421.p, A5.HT.422.e, A5.HT.422.p, A5.HT.427.pe, 
A5.HT.435.e, A5.HT.435.p, A5.HT.505-A.e, A5.HT.505-A.p, A6.GARA01.pe, 
A6.GARA02.pe, A6.GARA03.pe, A6.HT.2B4Pi.sp.e, A6.HT.2B4Pi.sp.p, 
A6.HT.304i.sp.e, A6.HT.304i.sp.p, A6.HT.313i-1.sp.pe, A6.HT.313i-2.sp.pe, 
A6.HT.342.p, A6.HT.353(2Blk).p, A6.HT.353-2(2Blk).e, A6.HT.412.e, 
A6.HT.412.p, A6.HT.419-1.e, A6.HT.419-2.e, A6.HT.419.p, A6.HT.420-1.pe, 
A6.HT.420-2.pe, A6.HT.420.p, A6.HT.450.e, A6.HT.450.p, A6.HT.454-1.e, 
A6.HT.454-1.p, A6.HT.454-2.e, A6.HT.454-2.p, A6.HT.4B6Pi.sp.e, 
A6.HT.4B6Pi.sp.p, A6.P.367-369.e, A6.P.367-369.p, A6.P.370-371.e, A6.P.370-
371.p, A6.P.372-373.e, A6.P.372-373.p, A6.P.393-394.e, A6.P.393-394.p, 
A6.P.395-398.e1, A6.P.395-398.e2, A6.P.395-398.p, A6.P.399-401.e, A6.P.399-
401.p, A6.P.404-406.e, A6.P.404-406.p, A6.P.407.e, A6.P.407.p, A6.P.422-
444.p, A6.P.425-426.e, A6.P.425-426.p1, A6.P.425-426.p2, A6.P.431-433.e, 
A6.P.431-433.p, A6.P.434-437.e1, A6.P.434-437.e2, A6.P.434-437.p, A6.P.442-
444.e, AHL.01_A3, AHL.01_A4, AHL.01_A6, AHL.01_B3-A, AHL.01_B4, 
AHL.01_B5, AHL.01_B6, AHL.01_C2a_C2b, AHL.01_C3_C7, AHL.01_C4, 
AHL.01_C5-C6, B3.GAR.01.pe, B3.GAR.02.pe, B3.GAR.03.pe, B3.GAR.04.pe, 
B3.HT.2301.pe, B3.HT.306.pe, B3.HT.308(2blk).1.e, B3.HT.308(2blk).2.e, 
B3.HT.308(2blk).3.e, B3.HT.308(2blk).p, B3.HT.3BS.pe, B3.HT.402.1.pe, 
B3.HT.402.2.pe, B3.HT.404.1.e, B3.HT.404.2.e, B3.HT.404.3.e, B3.HT.404.4.e, 
B3.HT.404.5.e, B3.HT.404.p, B3.HT.406-1.e, B3.HT.406.p, B3.HT.411-A.1.e, 
B3.HT.411-A.2.e, B3.HT.411-A.p, B3.HT.411-B.e, B3.HT.411-B.p, B3.HT.414-
A.p, B3.HT.414.e, B3.HT.414.p, B3.HT.414.p, B3.HT.501.p, B3.HT.A31(2blk).e, 
B3.HT.A31(2blk).p, B3.HT501.e, B3.P.151-153.e, B3.P.151-153.p1, B3.P.151-

96



 

 

153.p2, B3.P.154-155.e, B3.P.164-165.e, B3.P.164-165.e, B3.P.168-170.e1, 
B3.P.168-170.e2, B3.P.168-170.p, B3.P.173-175.e, B3.P.173-175.p, B3.P.176-
178.e, B3.P.179-180.e, B3.P.179-180.p, B3.P154-155.p, B3.P176-178.p, 
B4.GAR.02.pe, B4.GAR.03.pe, B4.HT.2301(2blk).e, B4.HT.2301(2blk).p, 
B4.HT.302L.pe, B4.HT.306.pe, B4.HT.308 (2blk).e, B4.HT.308 (2blk).p, 
B4.HT.308S (2BLK).e, B4.HT.308S(2blk).p, B4.HT.3BS.pe, B4.HT.402.1.pe, 
B4.HT.402.2.pe, B4.HT.404.1.e, B4.HT.404.2.e, B4.HT.404.3.e, B4.HT.404.p, 
B4.HT.405.e, B4.HT.405.p, B4.HT.406.e, B4.HT.406.p, B4.HT.411.e, 
B4.HT.411.p, B4.HT.414.1.e, B4.HT.414.2.e, B4.HT.414.p.1, B4.HT.501-A.e, 
B4.HT.501-A.p, B4.HT.501.e, B4.HT.501.p, B4.HT.A23(2blk).1.e, 
B4.HT.A23(2blk).2.e, B4.HT.A23(2blk).p, B4.HT.A29.e, B4.HT.A29.p, 
B4.HT.A31(2blk).e, B4.HT.A31(2blk).p, B4.HT.A31.e, B4.HT.A31.p, 
B4.HT.A41.pe, B4.HT.A42(2Blk).e, B4.HT.A42(2blk).p, B4.P.203-210.e, 
B4.P.203-210.p1, B4.P.203-210.p2, B4.P.203-210.p3, B4.P.211-212.e, 
B4.P.211-212.p, B4.P.225-227.e, B4.P.225-227.p, B4.P.228-230.e, B4.P.228-
230.p, B4.P.251-253.e, B4.P.251-253.p, B4.P.254-256.e, B4.P.254-256.p, 
B4.P.257-258.e, B4.P.257-258.p, B4.P.265-266.e, B4.P.265-266.p, B4.P.267-
268.e, B4.P.267-268.p, B4.P.302-304.e, B4.P.302-304.p, B5.GAR.01.pe, 
B5.GAR.02.pe, B5.GAR.03.pe, B5.HT.302CL.pe, B5.HT.306(2blk).e, 
B5.HT.306(2blk).p, B5.HT.3BS.1.pe Rev P1, B5.HT.3BS.2.pe Rev P1, 
B5.HT.402.1.pe, B5.HT.402.2.pe, B5.HT.404.e, B5.HT.404.p, B5.HT.405.e, 
B5.HT.405.p, B5.HT.411.e, B5.HT.411.p, B5.HT.501.1.e, B5.HT.501.2.e, 
B5.HT.501.p, B5.HT.A23(2blk).e, B5.HT.A23(2blk).p, B5.P.337-339.e, B5.P.337-
339.p, B5.P.350-353.e, B5.P.350-353.p, B6.GAR.01.pe, B6.GAR.02.pe, 
B6.GAR.03.pe, B6.HT.2301(2blk).e, B6.HT.2301(2blk).p, B6.HT.302L.pe, 
B6.HT.306(2blk).e, B6.HT.306(2blk).p, B6.HT.306.pe, B6.HT.308(2blk).e, 
B6.HT.308(2blk).p, B6.HT.3BS.1.pe, B6.HT.3BS.2.pe, B6.HT.402.1.pe, 
B6.HT.402.2.pe, B6.HT.402.3.pe, B6.HT.402.4.pe, B6.HT.402.5.pe, 
B6.HT.404.1.e, B6.HT.404.2.e, B6.HT.404.3.e, B6.HT.404.4.e, B6.HT.404.p, 
B6.HT.406.e, B6.HT.406.p, B6.HT.411-A.e, B6.HT.411-A.p, B6.HT.411.e, 
B6.HT.411.p, B6.HT.414-A.e, B6.HT.414.1.e, B6.HT.414.2.e, B6.HT.501.e, 
B6.HT.501.p, B6.HT.A23(2blk).1.e, B6.HT.A23(2blk).2.e, B6.HT.A23(2blk).p Rev 
P1, B6.HT.A35(2blk).e, B6.HT.A35(2blk).p, B6.HT.A42(2blk).e, 
B6.HT.A42(2blk).p, B6.P.365-366.e, B6.P.365-366.p, B6.P.371-373.e, B6.P.371-
373.p, B6.P.374-377.e, B6.P.374-377.p, B6.P.396-398.e, B6.P.396-398.p, 
B6.P.406-407.e, B6.P.406-407.p, B6.P.423-426.e, B6.P.423-426.p, B6.P.429-
431.e, B6.P.429-431.p, B6.P.436-437.e, B6.P.436-437.p, B641-67 Rev A, B641-
68 Rev A, B641-69 Rev A, B641-70 Rev A, B641-71 Rev A, B641-72 Rev A, 
B641-73 Rev A, B641-74 Rev A, B641-75 Rev A, B641-76 Rev A, B641-77 Rev 
A, B641-78 Rev A, B641-79 Rev A, B641-80 Rev A, B641-81 Rev A, B641-82 
Rev A, B641-83 Rev A, B641-84 Rev A, B641/148, B641/48 Rev B, B641/58 Rev 
C, B641/59 Rev B, B641/60 Rev C, B641/61 Rev C, B641/62 Rev B, B641/63 
Rev B, B641/64 Rev B, B641/65 Rev B, B641/66 Rev B, B641/92, B641/93, 
BML.01_A3, BML.01_A4, BML.01_A5, BML.01_A6, BML.01_B3-A, BML.01_B4, 
BML.01_B5, BML.01_B6, BML.01_C2a_C2b, BML.01_C3_C7, BML.01_C4, 
BML.01_C5-C6, C123127-02-01, C2.BBS.01.pe, C2.GAR0C5.pe, 
C2.GARC01.pe, C2.GARC02.pe, C2.GARC03.pe, C2.HT.306i.pe1, 
C2.HT.306i.pe2, C2.HT.306i2blkp, C2.HT.3082blk.e, C2.HT.3082blk.p, 
C2.HT.402.pe, C2.HT.403CT.e, C2.HT.403CT.p, C2.HT.404-A.pe1, C2.HT.404-
A.pe2, C2.HT.404.pe1, C2.HT.404.pe2, C2.HT.404.pe3, C2.HT.404.pe4, 

97



 

 

C2.HT.404.pe5, C2.HT.404.pe6,C2.HT.409.pe, C2.HT.505.e, C2.HT.505.p, 
C2.HT.506-A.e, C2.HT.506-A.p, C2.HT.506.e, C2.HT.506.p, C2.HT.508-A.e, 
C2.HT.508-A.p, C2.HT.508.e, C2.HT.508.p, C2.HT.SHL4.pe, C2.P.129-134.e, 
C2.P.129-134.p, C2.P.167-168.e, C2.P.167-168.p, C2.P.170-172.e, C2.P.170-
172.p, C2.P.192-203.e1, C2.P.192-203.e2, C2.P.192-203.p1, C2.P.192-203.p3, 
C2.P.204-209.e1, C2.P.204-209.e2, C2.P.204-209.p1, C2.P.204-209.p2, 
C2.P.204-209.p3, C2_HT.306i2blke, C2_P.210-211.e, C2_P.210-211.p, 
C3.GARC01.pe, C3.GARC05.pe, C3.HT.402.pe, C3.HT.404-A.pe, 
C3.HT.404.pe1, C3.HT.404.pe2, C3.HT.409.pe, C3.HT.501.e, C3.HT.501.p, 
C3.HT.502.e, C3.HT.502.p, C3.HT.505.e, C3.HT.505.p, C3.HT.506.e, 
C3.HT.506.p, C3.HT.508.e, C3.HT.508.p, C3.HT.SHL2.5(2-blk).e, 
C3.HT.SHL2.5(2-blk).p, C3.P.219-221.e, C3.P.219-221.p, C3.P.229-232.e1, 
C3.P.229-232.e2, C3.P.229-232.p, C3_P.222-223.e, C3_P.222-223.p, 
C4.GARC01.pe, C4.GARC02.pe, C4.GARC03.pe, C4.GARC05.pe, C4.HT.303-
i.pe, C4.HT.306i (2-blk).e1, C4.HT.306i (2-blk).e2, C4.HT.306i (2-blk).p1, 
C4.HT.306i (2-blk).p2, C4.HT.308(2-blk).e, C4.HT.308(2-blk).p, C4.HT.402.pe1, 
C4.HT.402.pe2, C4.HT.403CT-A.e1, C4.HT.403CT-A.e2, C4.HT.403CT-A.p, 
C4.HT.404-A.pe, C4.HT.404-A.pe, C4.HT.404.pe1, C4.HT.404.pe2, 
C4.HT.404.pe1, C4.HT.404.pe2, C4.HT.404.pe3, C4.HT.404.pe4,     
C4.HT.404.pe5 ,C4.HT.501.e1, C4.HT.501.e2, C4.HT.501.p1, C4.HT.501.p2, 
C4.HT.502.e, C4.HT.502.p, C4.HT.506.e, C4.HT.506.p, C4.HT.508.e1, 
C4.HT.508.e2, C4.HT.508.e3 , C4.HT.508.p, C4.HT.SHL4.pe, C4.P.264-265.e, 
C4.P.264-265.p, C4.P.270-271.p, C4.P.304-306.e1 , C4.P.304-306.e2, 
C4.P.304-306.p , C4.P.307-310.e1, C4.P.307-310.e2, C4.P.307-310.p1, 
C4.P.307-310.p2, C4.P.323-324.e, C4.P.323-324.p, C4_P.268-269.e, C4_P.268-
269.p, C4_P.270-271.e1, C4_P.270-271.e2, C5.GARC02.pe, C5.GARC03.pe, 
C5.GARC05.pe , C5.HT.402.pe, C5.HT.404-A.pe, C5.HT.502.e, C5.HT.502.p, 
C5.HT.SHL2.5(2-blk).e, C5.HT.SHL2.5(2-blk).p, C5.P.329-332.e1, C5.P.329-
332.e2, C5.P.329-332.p, C5.P.333-335.e, C5.P.333-335.p , C5.P.343-344.e, 
C5.P.343-344.p, C5_P.327-328.e, C5_P.327-328.p, C5_P.338-339.e, C5_P.338-
339.p, C6.GARC01.pe, C6.GARC02.pe, C6.GARC03.pe, C6.GARC05.pe, 
C6.HT.2302(2-blk).e, C6.HT.2302(2-blk).p, C6.HT.303-i.pe, C6.HT.306i(2blk).p, 
C6.HT.306i.pe, C6.HT.308(2-blk).e, C6.HT.308(2-blk).p, C6.HT.402.pe1, 
C6.HT.402.pe2, C6.HT.404-A.pe, C6.HT.404.pe1, C6.HT.404.pe2, 
C6.HT.404.pe3, C6.HT.502.e, C6.HT.502.p, C6.HT.506-A.e, C6.HT.506-A.p, 
C6.HT.506.e, C6.HT.506.p, C6.HT.508-A.e, C6.HT.508-A.p, C6.HT.508.e, 
C6.HT.508.e, C6.HT.508.p, C6.P.352-354.e, C6.P.352-354.p, C6.P.355-356.e, 
C6.P.355-356.p, C6_HT.306i(2-blk).e, C7.GARC02.pe, C7.GARC03.pe, 
C7.HT.306i.pe, C7.HT.308(2-blk).e, C7.HT.308(2-blk).p, C7.HT.402.pe, 
C7.HT.404-A.pe, C7.HT.404.pe1, C7.HT.404.pe2, C7.HT.404.pe3, 
C7.HT.SHL2.5(2-blk).e, C7.HT.SHL2.5(2-blk).p, C7.HT.SHL2.5(2-blk).p, 
C7.HT.SHL4.pe, C7.P.404-405.e, C7.P.404-405.p, C7.P.409-410.e, C7.P.409-
410.p, C7.P.411-413.e, C7.P.411-413.p, C7.P.414-417.e1, C7.P.414-417.e2, 
C7.P.414-417.p1, C7.P.414-417.p2, C7.P.418-419.e, C7.P.418-419.p, C7.P.433-
434.e, C7.P.433-434.p, C7.P.437-438.e, C7.P.437-438.p, C7.P.439-441.e1, 
C7.P.439-441.e2, C7.P.439-441.p1, C7.P.439-441.p2, CASS-01 PH2, CB-E.01 
Rev B, CB-P.01 Rev B, CBSP.01 Rev A, DML.01_A3, DML.01_A4, DML.01_A5, 
DML.01_A6, DML.01_B3-A, DML.01_B4, DML.01_B5, DML.01_B6, 
DML.01_C2a_C2b, DML.01_C3_C7, DML.01_C4, DML.01_C5-C6, Draft 3, 
HT.2303.sp.p, HT.412.e, HT.450.e, HT.450.p, HT.454-2.e, HT.454sp-A1.e, 

98



 

 

HT.505.p, LP 101, LP 101, LP 103, LP 104, LP 105, LP 106, LP 107, LP 108, LP 
109, LP 110, LP 111, LP 112, LP 113, LP 114, LP.100, LSP-01 Rev C, P.308-
312.e1, P.308-312.e2, P.308-312.p1, P.308-312.p2, PH2_AHL.0, PH2_BML.01, 
PH2_DML.01, PH2_LP.01, PH2_PFA-SL.01, PH2_SL.01, R6640-1 Rev 2, Rev 
3, RT-MME-123127-02, RT-MME-123127-03, Second Issue, SL.01_A3, 
SL.01_A4, SL.01_A5, SL.01_A6, SL.01_B3-A, SL.01_B4, SL.01_B5, SL.01_B6, 
SL.01_C2a_C2b, SL.01_C3_C7, SL.01_C4, SL.01_C5-C6,                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

  
(2) In complying with the conditions attached to the outline planning permission 

O/12/71514 the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces 
and the boundary treatments of the development hereby permitted shall be in 
accordance with the Design Code (rev C, October 2016) approved under 
condition 5 of O/12/71514. 

 
Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the 
amenities of the area. 

  
(3) The garages hereby approved shall only be used for the purpose of parking 

private motor vehicles in connection with the residential use of the property and 
shall not, at any time, be used for living accommodation, business, commercial 
or industrial purposes. 

 
Reason: To ensure the adequate provision of on-site parking for the purpose of 
highway safety. 

  
(4) The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the area[s] 

shown on the approved plan for the parking vehicles [including those areas 
marked out on the plan as being unallocated] shall have been made available, 
surfaced and marked out. The parking area[s] shall then be permanently retained 
and reserved for that purpose at all time. 

 
Reason: To make provision for off-street parking for the purpose of highway 
safety. 

  
(5) No private parking management scheme shall be implemented on the site without 

the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Reason: In the interests of proper planning. 
  
(6) No development above slab level shall take place until tree pit details have been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 

  
(7) No development above slab level shall take place until large-scale details [at a 

scale of 1:50, or as agreed] of all types of porches, dormer windows, bay 
windows and blind windows have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the 

99



 

 

Local Planning Authority. These details shall include details of materials to be 
used in the construction of these features.  Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interests of the 
amenities of the area. 

  
(8) Notwithstanding the submitted landscaping plans, no development above slab 

level shall take place until details of the proposed hard surfacing materials have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
submission shall include details of how the parking spaces are to be demarcated. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interests of the 
amenities of the area. 

  
(9) Within 2 months of the completion (including landsaping) of any ponds, lakes or 

above ground attenuation features forming part of the sustainable drainage 
system details of a risk assessment addressing the need for fencing shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
submitted details shall include a timetable for implementation of any required 
fences and the approved details shall be carried out in full. 

 
Reason:  In the interests of public safety 

  
Note to Applicant:  

 
In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive approach to the handling 
of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a positive 
outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner. 

 
Under the Town and Country Planning England Regulations 2012, a fee is 
required for Discharge of Condition Applications. N.B. Conditions not fully 
discharged, invalidate the planning permission.   

 
The development hereby permitted shall comply with the conditions imposed on 
the grant of the outline planning permission reference O/12/71514 which was 
permitted on 28 November 2013. 

  
Notes to Applicant and Purchasers: 

 
The proposed two-bedroomed properties on Plots XXX (10) must be 
marketed/sold/leased as two-bedroomed properties only. The proposed "study" 
for these properties should not be identified as a bedroom. 

 
The proposed three-bedroom properties on Plots XXXX (House Type 
XXXX) must be marketed/sold/leased as three-bedroomed properties 
only. The proposed "study" for these properties should not be identified as a 
bedroom. 

100



 

 

  
Note to Applicant: 

 
There must be no surface alterations to the right of way, nor any works carried 
out which affect its surface, without first seeking the permission of Hampshire 
County Council, as Highway Authority. To carry out any such works without this 
permission would constitute an offence under S131 Highways Act 1980, and the 
applicant is encouraged to contact HCC as soon as possible to discuss any 
works of this nature. 

 
Nothing connected with the development or its future use should have an 
adverse effect on the right of way, which must remain available for public use at 
all times. 

 
No builders or contractors vehicles, machinery, equipment, materials, scaffolding 
or anything associated with the works should be left on or near the footpath so as 
to obstruct, hinder or provide a hazard to walkers. 

 
If there is likely to be an effect on the footpath in terms of dust, noise or other 
obstruction during the period of the works, HCC suggest that a Health and Safety 
Risk Assessment be carried out, and if there is deemed to be a risk to users of 
the footpath, the applicant should contact the County Council directly to discuss 
the Temporary Closure of the footpath for the duration of the works. Temporary 
Closure Orders should be applied for at least 6 weeks prior to the 
commencement of works and details of how to apply can be found at 
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/row/making-changes/temp-closures.htm 

  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Report: 
 
1. This application has been referred to Committee because it is a major 

development which is contrary to the Development Plan and is controversial.         
 
The site and its surroundings 
2. The Boorley Green development site, within the parish of Botley lies to the 

east of the Borough and extends to approximately 81 hectares. It comprises a 
large, irregularly shaped plot of land bounded to the west by the B3354 
Winchester Road and to the south by Maddoxford Lane. The northern and 
eastern boundaries are demarcated by the meandering course of Ford Lake 
which is a tributary to the River Hamble and a Site of Importance for Nature 
Conservation (SINC) characterised by mature woodland. Beyond Ford Lake 
lies Chancellors Lane. To the south and west, the rear of a number of 
residential properties bound the site along Maddoxford Lane and Winchester 
Road. 

 
3. The majority of the site (59.9ha) is occupied by the former Botley Park golf 

course attached to the Botley Park Hotel and Country Club (4ha), which 
comprises a modern building complex with conference and leisure facilities, 
associated car parking and landscaping. The site also includes Braxells Farm 

101



 

 

(1.8ha) and associated buildings along the western boundary whilst the south 
eastern section of the site comprises a series of pasture fields associated with 
Maddoxford Farm (9.7ha). Near the centre of the site lies another SINC – 
Botley Park Wood which is a 1ha area of ancient woodland, and also covered 
by a Tree Preservation Order.  Gas and oil pipelines run through the southern 
part of the site and require an easement around them within which there can 
be no development. 

 
4. This reserved matters application relates to the second phase of the Boorley 

Green residential development, which consists of all of the remaining 
residential units from the north east corner to the southern end of the site; the 
areas of public open space in the northern and central parts of the site; the 
land for allotments on the south-western boundary to the rear of the 
neighbouring properties on Maddoxford Lane; together with a Multi-Use 
Games Area and the Community Building that are located in the southern part 
of the site. It will be accessed via the infrastructure route leading off from the 
new roundabout on Winchester Road that runs through phase 1 and also from 
the new access recently constructed on Maddoxford Lane. 

 
Description of application 
 
5. The reserved matters application is for the second phase of the residential 

development, totalling 889 dwellings, together with the community building, 
Multi-Use Games Area (MUGA), land for allotments, open space, road 
infrastructure, pedestrian and cycle links, foul and surface water drainage 
networks, associated landscaping, car parking, changes to levels, boundary 
treatments and the diversion of Botley Footpath Number 2, pursuant to outline 
planning permission O/12/71514. The accesses from Winchester Road and 
Maddoxford Lane were approved as part of the outline application and this 
application seeks approval for the following reserved matters in relation to the 
second phase of the residential development and the other facilities referred to 
above: 

 Appearance 

 Landscaping 

 Layout 

 Scale 
 
6. Other applications have been submitted for the remaining areas of the overall 

site – the local centre (R/16/79505) and the extensions to the hotel 
(R/16/79490) and are still under consideration.  An application has been 
submitted to Hampshire County Council for the proposed primary school. 

 
7. The residential part of the application is for 889 dwellings, to be provided by 3 

separate developers as follows: 
 

8. Bloor Homes – Parcels A3, A4, A5 and A6 - 281 dwellings made up of 194 
open market dwellings and 87 affordable dwellings, with the mix as follows: 

 
Parcel A3 – 77 dwellings 

 11 x 2-bed (2 open market, 9 affordable) 

102



 

 

 19 x 3-bed (7 open market, 12 affordable) 

 47 x 4-bed (45 open market, 2 affordable) 
 

Parcel A4 – 94 dwellings 

 3 x 1-bed (3 affordable) 

 20 x 2-bed (4 open market, 16 affordable) 

 38 x 3-bed (22 open market, 16 affordable) 

 33 x 4-bed (32 open market, 1 affordable) 
 

Parcel A5 – 33 dwellings 

 3 x 3-bed (3 open market) 

 30 x 4-bed (30 open market) 
 

Parcel A6 – 77 dwellings 

 23 x 2-bed (7 open market, 16 affordable) 

 32 x 3-bed (24 open market, 8 affordable) 

 22 x 4-bed (18 open market, 4 affordable) 
 
9. Linden Homes – Parcels B3-A, B4, B5, B6 - 293 dwellings made up of 201 

open market dwellings and 92 affordable dwellings, with the mix as follows: 
 

Parcel B3-A – 52 dwellings 

 10 x 2-bed (1 open market, 9 affordable) 

 21 x 3-bed (15 open market, 6 affordable) 

 20 x 4-bed (20 open market) 

 1 x 5-bed (1 open market) 
 

Parcel B4 - 132 dwellings 

 2 x 1-bed (2 affordable) 

 29 x 2-bed (8 open market, 21 affordable) 

 47 x 3-bed (32 open market, 15 affordable) 

 48 x 4-bed (41 open market, 7 affordable) 

 6 x 5-bed (6 open market) 
 

Parcel B5 – 27 dwellings 

 7 x 2-bed (3 open market, 4 affordable) 

 7 x 3-bed (6 open market, 1 affordable) 

 10 x 4-bed (10 open market) 

 3 x 5-bed (3 open market) 
 

Parcel B6 – 82 dwellings 

 19 x 2-bed (2 open market, 17 affordable) 

 24 x 3-bed (16 open market, 8 affordable) 

 36 x 4-bed (34 open market, 2 affordable) 

 3 x 5-bed (3 open market) 
 

103



 

 

10. Bovis Homes – Parcels C2a, C2b, C3, C4, C5, C6, C7 - 315 dwellings made 
up of 214 open market dwellings and 101 affordable dwellings, with the mix as 
follows: 

 
Parcel C2a – 37 dwellings 

 2 x 2-bed (2 affordable) 

 11 x 3-bed (7 open market, 4 affordable) 

 15 x 4-bed (15 open market) 

 9 x 5-bed (9 open market) 
 

Parcel C2b – 46 dwellings 

 6 x 1-bed (6 affordable) 

 20 x 2-bed (8 open market, 12 affordable) 

 12 x 3-bed (12 open market) 

 8 x 4-bed (5 open market, 3 affordable) 
 

Parcel C3 – 48 dwellings 

 9 x 2-bed (9 affordable) 

 5 x 3-bed (3 open market, 2 affordable) 

 18 x 4-bed (18 open market) 

 16 x 5-bed (16 open market) 
 

Parcel C4 – 67 dwellings 

 9 x 2-bed (9 affordable) 

 31 x 3-bed (21 open market, 10 affordable) 

 21 x 4-bed (20 open market, 1 affordable) 

 6 x 5-bed (6 open market) 
 

Parcel C5 – 24 dwellings 

 8 x 2-bed (2 open market, 6 affordable) 

 8 x 3-bed (8 affordable) 

 6 x 4-bed (4 open market, 2 affordable) 

 2 x 5-bed (2 open market) 
 

Parcel C6 – 52 dwellings 

 5 x 2-bed (5 open market) 

 8 x 3-bed (8 open market) 

 20 x 4-bed (20 open market) 

 19 x 5-bed (19 open market) 
 

Parcel C7 – 41 dwellings 

 6 x 2-bed (6 affordable) 

 23 x 3-bed (7 open market, 16 affordable) 

 12 x 4-bed (7 open market, 5 affordable) 
 
11. The residential properties are 2 or 2 ½ storey terraced, semi-detached or 

detached properties, with 2 flats over parking spaces or entrances to parking 
courts.  In addition 4 blocks of flats, 3 storeys in height, are proposed adjoining 

104



 

 

the area of public open space in the northern part of the site, known as 
Chancellors Park.  One, 3 storey block of flats was approved on the south-
west corner of Chancellors Park as part of the first phase reserved matters 
application (R/15/77595). 

 
12. The style of architecture is generally traditional, with properties largely fronting 

the road or facing onto a parking court.  The blocks of flats facing Chancellors 
Park have a contemporary design approach, following on from the block of 
flats approved on the south-west corner of Chancellors Park as part of the first 
phase reserved matters application (R/15/77595).  In addition a small area of 
housing to the south of the central open space also has a contemporary 
design approach. 

 
13. Car parking is provided in a mix of garages, private driveways and parking 

courts.  Secure cycle parking will be provided within garages, sheds in rear 
gardens and in dedicated cycle stores for the flats. 

 
14. In addition to the residential development this application includes the 

community building, Multi-Use Games Area (MUGA) and land for allotments 
sited in the southern part of the site.  It also includes the Chancellors Park 
open space in the northern part of the site and the central area of open space, 
together with green links through the development and connecting with the 
woodland edge on the eastern boundary of the site.  Pedestrian and cycle 
links are provided through the site, including a perimeter route providing a 
leisure route around the edge of the development.  Botley Footpath Number 2 
needs to be diverted as a result of this development and the proposed 
diversion route is shown on the submitted plans, running from Maddoxford 
Lane, through the central area of open space and up to connect with Durley 
Footpath Number 28 in the north-eastern corner.  Further links are shown 
linking up to the Botley Park Hotel, through which a pedestrian and cycle route 
secured through the S106 associated with the outline planning permission out 
onto Winchester Road is to be provided, secured through the S106 and to be 
shown as part of the reserved matters application for the hotel extension. 

 
15. The application is accompanied by the following reports and technical 

assessments which have been updated as necessary throughout the course 
of the application: 

 Design & Access Statement 

 Planning Statement 

 Statement of Community Involvement 

 Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Plan 

 Sustainability Statement 

 Phase 2 Lighting Strategy 

 Ecological Protection & Mitigation Plan and Post Construction 
Ecological Management & Monitoring Plan 

 Arboricultural Impact Assessment & Method Statement 

 Noise Report 

 Odour Assessment 
 

105



 

 

16. The outline application was supported by an Environmental Statement.  It is 
not considered that there has been a significant change in circumstances that 
requires this reserved matters application to be supported by a further 
Environmental Statement. 

 
17. Similarly at outline stage screening was also undertaken to establish whether 

a Habitats Regulations Assessment is required. It was concluded that, with the 
mitigation proposed and conditions to control impacts, no significant likely 
impacts on any European Designated sites would occur as a result of the 
development and a full HRA was not required.  Since that decision was made 
the Interim Solent Mitigation Strategy has been published setting out the level 
of financial contribution required per dwelling to provide appropriate mitigation.  
This is a higher level of contribution per dwelling than was secured through the 
S106 associated with the outline planning permission and it is currently being 
considered whether an additional contribution to cover the difference is now 
required.  There have been no other significant changes in circumstances 
since then so provided this matter is satisfactorily resolved then no significant 
likely impacts on any European Designated Site would occur and a full HRA 
would not be required. 

 
Relevant planning history 
 
18. The relevant planning history in relation to this site is as follows: 
 

 O/12/71514 - Outline application with all matters reserved (except for 
access) for the demolition of golf driving range shelter and 
groundsman's equipment store and the development of 1400 homes 
with access from Winchester Road and Maddoxford Lane (with 
upgrades to the Winchester Road/Woodhouse Lane Junction and 
approaches and Maypole Roundabout), construction of Sunday's Hill 
Bypass and approaches, extension to existing hotel (including new 
conference and leisure facilities, 44 no. new bedrooms and car 
parking), creation of new local centre (incorporating energy centre, pub, 
assisted living accommodation, retail and employment floorspace, 
including change of use of Braxells Farm House to employment), 
primary school, multi-purpose community building, sports and open 
space facilities including play areas, allotments and Multi-Use Games 
Area, and changing facilities, together with construction of roads, 
footpaths (including diversion of Footpath No. 2) and cycle ways, and 
pumping stations – granted 28.11.13 

 

 R/14/74872 - Reserved matters pursuant to outline permission 
O/12/71514 for erection of sports pavilion play area and laying out of 
playing pitches together with access, landscaping, car parking, cycle 
parking and bin storage, diversion of public footpath no. 2 and 
sustainable urban drainage – approved 31.10.14 

 

 R/15/77552 - Reserved Matters Application (Pursuant to outline 
planning permission O/12/71514 which was subject to an 
Environmental Impact Assessment) for the spine road infrastructure 

106



 

 

together with foul and surface water drainage networks, landscaping 
and associated works. This application includes the diversion of 
Footpath No. 2 – approved 19.2.16 

 

 R/15/77595 – Reserved Matters Application (Pursuant to outline 
planning permission O/12/71514 which was subject to an 
Environmental Impact Assessment) for the erection of 441no. dwellings, 
car parking, road infrastructure, pedestrian/cycle links, foul and surface 
water drainage networks, landscaping and associated works (phase 1).  
This application includes the diversion of Footpath No.2 – approved 
6.5.16 

 

 R/16/79490 – Reserved Matters Application (Pursuant to outline 
planning permission O/12/71514 which was subject to an 
Environmental Impact Assessment) for the extension to the existing 
hotel including new conference and leisure facilities, 44no. new 
bedrooms and car parking and proposed tennis pavilion and courts and 
wedding pergola and gazebo – currently under consideration. 

 

 R/16/79505 - Reserved Matters Application (Pursuant to outline 
planning permission O/12/71514 which was subject to an 
Environmental Impact Assessment) for the mixed use and assisted 
living elements of the masterplan, comprising 933sqm of employment 
floorspace (B1), a 378sqm convenience foodstore (A1 Use Class), 
389sqm of flexible retail floorspace (A1/A2/A3) and 68 residential units 
for older persons (C3 Use Class) with associated parking, landscaping, 
drainage, road infrastructure and pedestrian and cycle links – currently 
under consideration. 

 

 V/17/79954 – Variation to S106 Agreement (O/12/71514) dated 28 
November 2013 to amend the timing of delivery of bus service 
provision, Botley Footpath works, Maypole Roundabout works and 
Changing Facility Building and Community Building as set out in letter 
from WYG dated 03 Feb 2017 – currently under consideration. 

 

19. The S106 legal agreement associated with the outline planning permission 
secured the following in relation to this site: 

 30% affordable housing 

 Employment and Skills Plan 

 Travel Plan 

 Ecological Monitoring and Management Plan 

 Ecological Protection and Mitigation Plan 

 Construction Management Plan 

 Lorry Routing Agreement 

 Accesses off Winchester Road and Maddoxford Lane 

 Highway works at Maddoxford Lane, Maypole Roundabout, 
Winchester Road, Woodhouse Lane, Sundays Hill Bypass and 
Botley Footpath 

 Provision of bus service 

107



 

 

 Provision of primary school site 

 Provision of open space, play areas, playing fields and Multi Use 

 Games Area then transfer to Council 

 Provision of Community Building and Changing Facility or a financial 
penalty 

 Use of a sustainable drainage system 

 Prevention of disposing of unallocated parking spaces to any owner 

 Community use agreements for Botley Park Hotel & Country Club 

 Transfer of SINC, Semi-Natural Area and Pylands Lane Woodland to 
Council 

 Financial contributions towards air quality monitoring, Botley footpath 
works, community development worker, Education and Children’s 
Services, highways/sustainable transport improvements, Junction 8 
improvements, street tree maintenance, economic development, 
health facilities, open space maintenance, play equipment provision 
and maintenance, public art, SINC maintenance, SPA Disturbance 
Mitigation Project, Pylands Lane woodland maintenance, Manor 
Farm Bat enhancement, post-occupancy evaluation of sustainability 
study and household waste recycling facility. 

 

Representations received 
 
20. 6 letters of objection were received from adjoining residents and those living 

locally with concerns relating to: 
 

Principle of Development 

 Small village cannot take any more development 
 

Impact on surrounding area 

 Detrimental increase in traffic on local roads, with adverse impact on safety 
of residents and walkers in the area 

 Increase in pollution 

 Visually intrusive 
 

Impact on residential amenity 

 Adverse impact on enjoyment of living in Boorley Green. 

 Alignment of path shown between 1 and 3 Maddoxford Lane is different to 
initial works that have been carried out in site. 

 Insufficient separation between properties in Orchard Close and the 
allotment car park; should have 10m in addition to hedgerow as is 
proposed for allotments adjoining Maddoxford Lane properties.  Will lead to 
noise and disturbance and may be prevented from maintaining own 
boundary hedge.  

 
Allotments 

 There are no specific dimensions or depth of the hedging around the 
allotments adjacent to the existing residents’ boundaries. 

 Lack of detail about designated entrance and parking area for the allotment 
users, this should not be in the narrow strip between the existing housing 

108



 

 

and the spine road, but should be sited where traffic movement will cause 
the least disturbance. 

 What is proposed hard standing for? 
 

Footpath diversion and improvements 

 Route now proposed is significantly different what was originally proposed 
with no explanation for the change. 

 Has the commitment to a new footpath/cycleway through to Hedge End 
station been dropped? 

 Footpaths are being improved along Winchester Road, but not the part 
leading to the railway bridge. 

 
Trees 

 The Assessment of Impact and Arboricultural Method Statement shows 
that Tree numbers T278 (Oak) and T279 (Ash) are to be felled, as does 
Paper C123127-02-01.  At present there is fencing erected around both of 
these trees, and have been informed that these trees are to remain.  

 
Other 

 Plans used are not up-to-date as they are copyrighted to 2016 and the 
aerial photo is at least 5 years old. 

 
Consultation responses 
 
21. Regeneration & Planning Policy – Design, Sustainability & Landscaping 

Original Submission 
Some additional information/revisions required in relation to: 

 Need to improve some corner plots to face both streets or open space 

 Location of parking spaces, proximity of trees to houses and provision 
of trees in streets and parking courts. 

 Sizes of north facing gardens 

 Provision of rear accesses 

 Need tree pit detail and plans of servicing and lighting 

 Changes to sustainable drainage scheme to integrate attenuation 
elements into the landscape and more closely recreate the existing 
flows to retain wet woodland habitat and filter water before reaching 
stream. 

 
Amended plans - Comments awaited. 

 
22. Regeneration & Planning Policy – Biodiversity 

Original Submission 
Some additional information/revisions required in relation to: 

 Proximity of parcel C3 to the Botley Park Wood SINC.  

 Stages of filtration and details of on-site drainage features provided 
within sustainable drainage scheme. 

 Changes to sustainable drainage scheme to integrate attenuation 
elements into the landscape and more closely recreate the existing 

109



 

 

flows to retain wet woodland habitat and filter water before reaching 
stream. 

 Species to be used within landscaping scheme and extent of 
connectivity provided by green infrastructure. 

 Further clarification of ecological mitigation, management & monitoring 
required. 

 Full lighting details to be agreed under outline conditions & with 
agreement from HCC. 

 
Amended plans - Comments awaited. 

 
23. Regeneration & Planning Policy – Conservation 

The development is close to one locally listed building and fairly near another 
(separated from the site by some existing housing).  The closest building is 
Maddoxford Farm to the east, separated by half a field, which retains some 
semblance of a rural feel.  The new development boundary consists of native 
species and some reasonable sized trees which all helps in defining the buffer 
gap.  For the other locally listed building, The Pear Tree Inn, development may 
increase number of customers. 

 
24. Transportation & Engineering 

Original submission 
Holding objection on the following grounds: 

 Need for some revisions to proposed parking and additional residential 
and visitor parking spaces. 

 Need for some additional hard margins around parking bays/lay-bys, 
service margins/footways on some roads and foot/cycle crossing points. 

 Cycle parking required for plots without garages 

 Confirmation unallocated parking is acceptable for social housing 
provider. 

 Need details of vehicle tracking and bin collection points. 

 Revisions needed to some rear accesses 

 Revisions needed to some pedestrian cycle routes so appropriate width 
and alignment, and separation from residential properties. 

 Siting of some trees – too close to residential properties or parking 
bays. 

 Consideration needed for position of bus-stops on spine road. 
 

Can confirm sufficient parking is provided for the Community Building. 
 

Amended plans - Comments awaited. 
 
25. Trees 

Original submission 
Generally happy with tree retention on site, most of the significant trees are 
due for retention and proposed protection during development appears 
adequate.  Following site visit request some additional trees retained and 15m 
buffer required from edge of woodland TPO. 

 

110



 

 

Would like confirmation of transplanting of trees, more detailed information re: 
southern edge buffer to W61 and more detailed look at removal of T314.  Tree 
protection plan requires updating to reflect changes. 

 
Amended plans - Comments awaited. 

 
26. Housing 

Original submission 
Number of affordable homes proposed will deliver required balance of 
affordable housing and proposed mix and location of affordable homes is 
acceptable.  Require homes to be split between rented and low cost 
homeownership (LCHO) – 65% rent, 35% LCHO, with all 1-bed units being for 
rent.  All homes to be built to Lifetime Homes Standards.  3% of affordable 
homes should be built to wheelchair standards – phase 1 provides 3, current 
plans for phase 2 provides 7, therefore 3 more required.  For wheelchair 
accessible properties all bathroom doors should open outwards or have sliding 
doors, with door openings being 900mm wide. 

 
Amended plans  
The amendments have only affected the affordable provision by increasing the 
number of 2-bed houses by 1 and decreasing the number of 3-bed houses by 
1, and the change is acceptable.  Unable to identify any changes relating to 
the wheelchair accessible homes. 

 
27. Parks & Open Spaces 

Original submission 
The play area to the north of the development has 4 paths leading to it, would 
generally recommend 2 as it restricts available space for play area designers 
as gate areas have to be kept clear.  Suggest footpath constructed around 
play area to which 4 paths can link into.  Gates into the play area should be 
nearest main footpaths coming from residential areas.  All play areas should 
meet LEAP standards.  Would welcome details and specification of MUGA as 
element is progressed. 

 
Amended plans - Comments awaited. 

 
28. Environmental Health - No objection provided conditions on outline planning 

permission are met. 
 
29. Direct Services 

Original submission - No objection 
 

Amended plans – A swept path analysis of the Community Building car park 
should be provided. 

 
30. HCC Highways – This application is to consider Reserved Matters, with 

access and off-site highway matters already considered at the outline planning 
stage.  Therefore confirm that this will be dealt with by the Local Highway 
Engineers at EBC. 

 

111



 

 

31. HCC Flood & Water Management Team  
Original submission 
The general principles for the surface water drainage proposals are 
acceptable.  However we require further detailed information/clarification on 
the proposals re: infiltration tests, existing and proposed run-off rate 
calculations, attenuation devices, and evidence that exceedance flows and 
runoff in excess of design criteria have been considered.  Mechanism for long-
term maintenance needs to be considered and agreed with Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
Amended plans - Comments awaited. 

 
32. HCC Archaeology – No objection 
 
33. HCC Rights of Way  

Original submission 
Objection on the following grounds: 

 The application does not include a plan showing the existing rights of 
way which cross or adjoin the site, only the proposed route.  It is 
therefore difficult to ascertain the impact of this proposal on the rights of 
way network. 

 In addition to a path going westwards from the proposed sports pitches, 
the outline permission (ref. O/12/71514) showed a pedestrian and cycle 
link going northwards, more closely following the existing route of 
Footpath 2. This route does not appear to be in these proposals. 

 Welcome inclusion of additional path going westwards through green 
space, but route going northwards would be an important sustainable 
travel link, allowing convenient travel along the ‘desire line’ of the 
existing right of way to the proposed school site, and northwards to the 
countryside. Object to the removal of this route from the plans. 

 Request clarification of proposed legal status of the development’s 
‘Public Footpaths’. If to be adopted as Public Rights of Way, we would 
require them to be made up to Countryside Service Design Standards 
and a commuted sum be provided for their future maintenance. 

 
34. The diversion of rights of way which are necessary for development to occur 

should be made by the Local Planning Authority under Section 257 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990, unless the development is substantially 
complete, in which case the County Council can make a Diversion Order 
under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980.  Should the diverted right of way 
be expected to carry cyclists as well as pedestrians, additional access rights 
will need to be dedicated by the landowner, as the route currently only has 
pedestrian access.  Request informatives are added to any approval granted. 

 
35. Amended plans - Comments awaited 
 
36. HCC Children’s Services – No comments received 
 
37. Crime Prevention Officer – No comments received 
 

112

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/countryside/countryside-design-standards.htm


 

 

38. Environment Agency – No comments received 
 
39. Southern Water  

Original submission 
Proposed drainage strategy is acceptable in principle.  Extent of adoptable 
drainage and proposed on site drainage still have to be subject of detailed 
assessment.  It has been agreed that design of onsite foul and surface water 
networks will be agreed and approved in detail during S104 of the Water 
Industry Act process for adoption of sewers before implementing on site.  All 
adoptable drainage must comply with Sewers for Adoption standards and 
meet Southern Water requirements. 

 
40. The provision of sewerage pumping station and rising main to convey the foul 

flows from the proposed development has been designed under our sewer 
requisition scheme reference S98.000151.  The connection to the public 
sewerage network can be carried out once the requisition works are 
completed. 

 
41. Permeable paving with impermeable liner will not be accepted over public or 

adoptable sewers or water mains. 
 
42. No habitable rooms should be located less than 15 metres from the pumping 

station compound boundary, in order to protect the amenity of prospective 
residents. 

 
43. No soakaways, swales, ponds, watercourses or any other surface water 

retaining or conveying features should be located within 5 metres of a public 
gravity sewer, rising main or water main. 

 
44. Amended plans - Comments awaited 
 
45. Natural England - Internationally and nationally designated sites – No 

objection.  The application site is in close proximity to the Solent and 
Southampton Water Special Protection Area (SPA), Solent Maritime Special 
Area of Conservation (SAC) and Solent and Southampton Water Ramsar site 
and Upper Hamble Estuary and Woods Site of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSI). As application is within 5.6km of Solent and Southampton Water SPA 
and will lead to an increase in residential accommodation the applicant should 
comply with the Council’s policy to mitigate against the adverse effects from 
recreational disturbance on the integrity of the European site.  

 
46. Historic England – No comments received. 
 
47. Hampshire Gardens Trust – No comments received. 
 
48. Esso Petroleum – No objection provided requirements of “Special 

Requirements for Safe Working” and covenants contained in the Deed of 
Grant are adhered to. 

 
49. Southern Gas Networks – No comments received 

113



 

 

 
50. Health & Safety Executive – Site does not currently lie within the consultation 

distance of a major hazard site or major accident hazard pipeline; therefore at 
present HSE does not need to be consulted on any developments on this site. 

 
51. British Horse Society – the increase in volume of traffic will impact on local 

roads that equestrians use and there is no provision for horse riders within the 
development.  The footpath could be upgraded to a bridleway allowing 
equestrians, cyclists and people with mobility vehicles to use it. 

 
52. Ramblers – No objection.  The proposed footpath diversion will enable 

walkers coming from outside the site to pass through it although it will require 
a scheme of waymarking when completed.  Request condition requiring the 
proposed routes to be completed and path legally diverted before 
development commences on existing alignment.  Is a legal requirement 
anyway, but point needs to be made by Local Planning Authority.  Are roads 
and paths shown on plans subject to Adoption Agreements and is there a 
scheme for adoption and maintenance of undeveloped areas as they will be 
needed for informal recreation. 

 
53. Southampton Airport Airside Operations Safety Officer – No objection.   
 
54. Hampshire Gardens Trust – No response at time of writing 
 
55. Botley Parish Council  

Original submission 
Housing Styles 
Welcome varied mix of housing types and designs within development.  
Reaffirm previous objections to inclusion of three storey buildings within the 
development. The building styles are considered to be too urban, making them 
inappropriate for inclusion within a rural setting such as Botley.  

 
56. It was suggested by some members of the Council that occupants of such 

buildings will be stigmatised by other residents of Boorley Green, with the 
areas of three storey buildings and social housing being considered a ‘ghetto’ 

 
57. Pipeline infrastructure 

The HSE response to the consultation stated that the site is not in proximity to 
a ‘dangerous pipeline’ which is wrong because two high pressure fuel lines run 
under the development site.  The Parish Council requested that the HSE 
should be challenged in order to confirm that appropriate attention has been 
given to the details of the application and application site. 

 
58. Public Transport 

The Parish Council would like confirmation that bus routes will not use the 
Maddoxford Lane site entrance and will keep to a circular route using the 
Winchester Road entrance. Maddoxford Lane is a country lane and was not 
constructed to withstand high volumes of traffic. The number of vehicle 
movements on Maddoxford Lane will naturally increase following completion 
of the development. The Parish Council is of the opinion that measures to 

114



 

 

restrict the volume of traffic, of all types, will become necessary in order to 
protect the amenity of the residents of Maddoxford Lane and to safeguard the 
condition of the road surface. 

 
59. Community Building 

 The number of parking spaces adjacent to the building is insufficient for 
a community building of the size proposed. The pavilion car park is too 
far from the community building to be acceptable at night or during wet 
weather. 

 Defined bays will be needed for a ‘drop off’ area at the entrance for 
users of the building and delivery vehicles. 

 Turning and access space is needed in the car park for bin lorries 
collecting commercial waste. Evidence is requested to confirm there is 
sufficient space to do this without losing parking spaces. 

 Provision of a baby change unit and public access defibrillator will be 
required. 

 Entrance doors on southern end of Hall 2 should be repositioned to 
open centrally onto “patio” area. 

 To provide more space for a café would like to see footprint extended 
by bringing wall of entrance foyer and Hall 2 forward; or by bringing wall 
of entrance foyer only forward (leaving size of Hall 2 unchanged); or 
extend building (either option) and reposition northwards to provide 
larger patio/seating area in front of the building; or in combination with 
any of those amendments look at reducing size/cost of Pavilion building 
and reallocating savings to community building.  

 
60. Maintenance of SUDS 

The Parish Council is concerned about the long term maintenance of the 
SUDS infrastructure, not just in terms of cost but, more importantly, from the 
viewpoint of responsibility and accountability.  It has been suggested that 
maintenance may be ‘shared’ between several organisations each taking 
responsibility for different types of infrastructure.  Members of the Parish 
Council would like to meet with representatives of EBC, HCC and the 
Development Consortium to discuss potential management arrangements and 
the implications for occupants of the new houses.  The Parish Council would 
like to see the attenuation ponds surrounded by fencing for the safety of 
children living on the estate. 

 
61. Trees and landscaping 

Confirmation is sought that all existing trees and hedges on the site will be 
retained. 

 
62. Amended plans - Comments awaited 
 
 
63. Durley Parish Council – No comments received. 
 
64. Botley Parish Action Group 

Original submission 
Designated allotment area and landscaping. 

115



 

 

The only place where any of the new development comes into direct contact 
with existing housing is along the NE side of Maddoxford Lane and round into 
Winchester Road.  Would expect considerable detail showing layout of this 
area and measures to minimise disturbance to the present residents and loss 
of amenity, but there are no details of the allotment area, or the 
orchard/woodland sector. 

 
Buffer zone - Would like to see specific details of any fencing or 
hedging that might be erected along the resident's boundaries, 
including dimensions and materials/planting to be used.  

 
Allotment land - Appreciate that it is not necessary for an exact layout 
of plots to be in place at this stage but there are no details of the 
entrance and hardstanding area mentioned in the documentation. This 
should not be in the narrow strip between the existing housing and the 
spine road, but sited where traffic movement will cause the least 
disturbance.  Understand developers want to leave these details in the 
hands of the Parish Council but residents are concerned that the 
planning process may allow some of these matters to be set in stone 
without further consultation.  

 
65. Community Building 

Very concerned about the lack of parking to serve this building.  Only 20 
parking bays proposed, which is totally inadequate for a community building 
serving the whole development. This is already not well positioned for these 
purposes, being well away from the built centre, and will almost certainly result 
in much car and other transportation to the various meetings. 

 
66. Understand that there is to be a larger parking area by the sports pavilion but 

this is some distance away, on the other side of the spine road. This will make 
for a difficult and hazardous walk, particularly at night. In any case, based on 
the situation which prevails at the Botley recreation ground, where there are 
64 bays, the whole of this parking area will be filled to overflowing when sports 
matches are underway.  

 
67. The new community building should be provided with enough spaces to make 

for safe use of the facilities and to prevent nuisance parking either in the 
residential roads of Boorley Green or in the new development itself. 

 
68. SuDS 

Future maintenance of the SuDS has not been dealt with except in very vague 
terms. It seems that HCC and EBC are not committed to taking on the upkeep 
of the system and its continuing costs. This is not something that should be 
the responsibility of the Parish Council.  Will the new owners of the Boorley 
Park housing be required to pay the ongoing costs and is this to be specified 
in their purchase contracts?  If the SuDS is not properly managed in future 
years it is the present residents of Boorley Green who will suffer, as most of 
the existing houses are below the level of the new development.  Request that 
this application should not be approved until proper and permanent 
arrangements for upkeep of the SuDS have been put in place. 

116



 

 

 
69. Building Height 

Still very unhappy about the large 3-storey buildings in the development which 
are out of keeping with a rural community.  Were told that these would be in 
the low area in the centre of the development but now there is some tall 
housing in the fields behind the sports pitches and down towards Maddoxford 
Farm. These areas should be noticeably more rural in type where they are 
near to the development edges. 

 
70. Other development 

It is difficult for the layman to make useful comments on other parts of the 
application because it covers so many items with such a large amount of 
documentation and will be built over an extended period. We hope, therefore, 
that there will be further opportunities for the local residents to interact with the 
developers, and that their concerns and suggestions will continue to be heard 
as the construction progresses. 

 
71. Amended plans – No comments received. 
 
Policy context:  designation applicable to site 

 Countryside 

 SINC 
 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
72. The National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) 

states that (as required by statute) applications for planning permission must 
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. Paragraph 14 sets out a general 
presumption in favour of sustainable development and states that (unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise) development proposals which 
accord with the development plan should be approved without delay. Where 
the development plan is absent, silent, or relevant policies are out-of-date 
planning permission (again, unless material considerations indicate otherwise) 
should be granted unless the adverse impacts of the development would 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits; or specific policies in the 
Framework indicate development should be restricted (paragraph 14). Local 
plan policies that do not accord with the NPPF are now deemed to be “out-of-
date”. The NPPF requires that due weight should be given to relevant policies 
in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF. In 
other words the closer the policies in the plan accord to the policies in the 
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given. 

 
73. Three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 7 are to be sought 

jointly: economic (supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social 
(providing housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local 
services); and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing 
natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 10 advises that plans 
and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond 

117



 

 

to the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different 
areas. 

 

74. Paragraph 17 sets out 12 core planning principles that include; 
 

 always seeking to secure high quality design and a good standard of 
amenity for all existing occupiers of land 

 
75. Paragraphs 56 to 61 give importance to good design as part of sustainable 

built development. . 
 

76. Paragraph 69 – Decisions should aim to achieve places which promote 
meetings between members of the community, safe and accessible 
environments and developments containing clear and legible pedestrian 
routes, high quality public space which encourages the active and continual 
use of public areas. 

 

77. Paragraph 70 – Decisions should plan for the provision and use of shared 
space, community facilities etc. and ensure an integrated approach to the 
location of housing and other uses. 

 

78. Paragraph 73 – Access to high quality open spaces and opportunities for sport 
and recreation can make an important contribution to the health and well-
being of communities. Information gained from assessments should determine 
what open space, sports and recreational provision are needed. 

 

79. Paragraph 103 – Ensure flood risk is not increased elsewhere. 
 

80. Paragraphs 109 -108 protect biodiversity and seek net gains where possible. 
 

81. Paragraphs 123 – Avoid, mitigate and reduce noise which gives rise to 
significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life. 

 
82. Paragraphs 126 to 135 address the protection of heritage assets. 
 

83. Paragraph 192 – The right information is crucial to good decision-taking, 
particularly where formal assessments are required (such as EIA/HRA/FRA). 

 

84. Paragraph 196 indicates that planning law requires that planning applications 
are dealt with in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF is such a material consideration. 

 

85. Paragraph 203 - LPAs should consider whether otherwise unacceptable 
development could be made acceptable through the use of conditions or 
planning obligations. 

 

86. Paragraph 216 - Decision-takers can give weight to relevant policies in 
emerging plans according to the stage of preparation, the extent to which 
there are unresolved objections to relevant policies and the degree of 

118



 

 

consistency to the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the 
NPPF.  
 

 
 
Planning Practice Guidance  
 
87. Where material, this guidance on air quality, good design, material 

considerations, flood risk, contamination, noise, open space, recreational 
facilities, natural environment, planning obligations, travel plans, transport 
assessments, water supply and wastewater provision should be afforded 
weight in the consideration of planning applications.  

 
The Development Plan 
 
88. At the current time the Development Plan for the borough comprises the 

Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) and the Hampshire 
Minerals and Waste Plan (October 2013). 

 
Saved Policies of the Adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (EBLP 
2001-2011)  
 
89. The key policies of the adopted local plan are: 
 

 1CO – Development in the countryside  

 18CO – Impact on landscape character  

 23NC – Protection of Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINCs). 

 25.NC – Promotion of biodiversity 

 28.ES – Waste collection and storage 

 30.ES – Noise-Sensitive Development 

 34.ES – Requirement to reduce greenhouse gases 

 36.ES - Lighting 

 45.ES – Sustainable  drainage requirements 

 59.BE – High quality design  

 72.H – Density  

 74.H – On-Site affordable housing 

 100.T – Sustainable transport  

 102.T – Safe accesses 

 104.T – Off-highway parking 

 147.OS – Provision of public open space 

 186.IN – Provision of community facilities 

 190.IN –  Infrastructure provision 
 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013  
 
90. The application site lies outside a Minerals Safeguarding Area. 
 
Submission Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2019 
 

119



 

 

91. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for examination 
in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient housing was being 
provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound. 

 
92. The Submitted Local Plan has not been formally withdrawn and therefore 

remains a material planning consideration.  The weight that can be attributed 
to the draft policies of the Submitted Eastleigh Local Plan 2011-2029 is 
however extremely limited. The Council consulted on the Issues and Options 
Document (December 2015) from 23 December 2015 until 17 February 2016.  
Following the completion of the consultation the Council are now undertaking 
the additional technical work required to inform the next formal stage in the 
plan-making process.   

 
93. The most relevant draft policies of the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local 

Plan 2011-2029 are:  
 

 S1 – Sustainable Development 

 S3 – Location of new housing  

 S5 – Green Infrastructure  

 S8 –  Strategic footpath, cycleway, bridleway links 

 S11 – Nature Conservation  

 S12 – Heritage assets  

 DM1 - General criteria for new development  

 DM2 – Environmentally sustainable development 

 DM5 – Sustainable surface water management and watercourse 
management 

 DM9 –Nature Conservation  

 DM10 – Heritage Assets 

 DM23 – General development criteria - transport 

 DM24 – Parking 

 DM28 – Affordable housing  

 DM29 – Internal space standards of residential development 

 DM32 – Provision of recreation and open space facilities with new 
development 

 DM35 – Community, leisure and cultural facilities 

 BO1 – Land north and east of Boorley Green allocation 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 
94. Relevant documents are: 
 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 2011) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Environmentally Sustainable 
Development (March 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning document : Biodiversity (December 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 
(January 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Affordable Housing (July 2009) 
 

120



 

 

Other relevant documents 

 Internal Space Standards (January 2012) 
 
 
Assessment of proposal: Development plan and / or legislative background 
 
95. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 38(6) 

of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a local planning 
authority determining an application to do so in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
96. The Development Plan in this case comprises the saved policies of the 

Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 and the Hampshire Minerals 
and Waste Plan (adopted 2013). 
 

97. In terms of emerging policy, the Submitted Eastleigh Local Plan 2011-2019 
(comprising: the Revised Pre-submission Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-
2029, published February 2014; and the Schedule of Proposed Minor 
Changes) was submitted to the Secretary of State in July 2014 and, following 
examination hearings in November 2014, the Inspector issued his final report 
on 11 February 2015. The final report recommended non-adoption on the 
basis of the plan being unsound, largely due to its inadequate provision for 
new housing.  It can therefore be considered to have extremely limited weight 
in the determination of this application.  The emerging work on the new Local 
Plan to 2036 is also a material consideration of limited weight. 
 

98. In terms of other material planning considerations, the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance constitute material 
considerations of significant weight. 

 
The Principle of Development 
 
99. The site is located within the countryside in the adopted local plan but is 

allocated for residential development under draft policy BO1 of the submitted 
local plan.  Outline planning permission for up to 1400 dwellings, an extension 
to the existing hotel, the creation of a new local centre, assisted living 
accommodation, primary school, multipurpose community building, sports and 
open space facilities, allotments and Multi-Use Games Area (MUGA) and 
changing facilities and associated infrastructure, together with new vehicular 
accesses off Winchester Road and Maddoxford Lane was granted in 
November 2013.  The principle of residential development on this site, 
accessed off Winchester Road and Maddoxford Lane, has therefore been 
established and cannot be reconsidered as part of this application.  As such 
the proposed development is acceptable in principle.  Issues of highways 
impact, ecology, archaeology, drainage, contaminated land, noise and 
vibration, dust, protection of trees, and the level of affordable housing and 
public open space were considered at the outline stage and covered by 
submission of documents as part of the outline application, conditions 
attached to the outline permission, or obligations contained within the 
associated S106 legal agreement. 

121



 

 

Sustainable Development 
 
100. The outline application considered matters of sustainability and concluded that 

the development would fulfill an economic role by expanding the quality and 
choice of housing, a social role by providing for clearly needed market and 
affordable housing together with social and community facilities not presently 
available within Boorley Green, and, with mitigation, a satisfactory 
environmental role.  As such the proposed development is considered to be 
sustainable in principle.  The detailed matters arising from the 2nd phase of 
the residential development, community building, MUGA, open space, 
allotment land and associated infrastructure are covered below in the sections 
relating to the reserved matters that are now to be considered – appearance, 
layout, scale and landscaping. 

 
Appearance 
 
101. All the houses are 2 or 2 ½ storey in height; terraced, semi-detached or 

detached, with 2 flats over parking spaces or entrances to parking courts.  
Four blocks of flats are also proposed, which are 3 storey in height.  In order 
to provide some variety across this large development it has been divided into 
a number of character areas.  The architectural style is generally traditional in 
appearance, with the exception of 2 character areas where a more 
contemporary style of architecture is proposed.   

 
102. The first area with a more contemporary style is the Chancellors Park 

character area around the eastern, southern and western boundaries of the 
public open space in the northern part of the site, where the 3 storey blocks of 
flats are proposed, together with some 2 ½ storey dwellings.  In accordance 
with the approved Design Code for the development, these properties have a 
more contemporary style that follows on from the block of flats approved on 
the south-west corner of Chancellors Park as part of the first phase reserved 
matters application (R/15/77595).  Whilst more contemporary in design all the 
buildings have pitched roofs and will have brick and roofing materials in 
keeping with those already approved for Phase 1.  However, the fenestration 
is more contemporary and grey windows and fascias are proposed.   

 
103. The Homes in the Woods Character Area to the south of the central open 

space is also proposed as an area of more contemporary architecture.  The 
residential properties will be predominantly 2 storey units.  Again these 
dwellings still have pitched roofs and brick and roofing materials in keeping 
with those being used on Phase 1, but the fenestration pattern and colour, 
together with an increased use of weatherboarding, brings a more 
contemporary feel to the house types in this character area. 

 
104. For the remaining parts of the development the architecture is generally 

traditional in its appearance, with mainly brick elevations proposed, together 
with some render, tile hanging, painted brick or weatherboarding to add 
interest and variety. 

 

122



 

 

105. The proposed community building is a T-shaped building providing 2 halls with 
kitchens, 1 bar, 1 cellar, 3 meeting rooms, an office and entrance foyer, plus 
storage and toilet facilities.  The community building has a functional design 
with a number of glazed openings on the southern elevation to maximize 
natural light, but with a cat-slide roof over the entrance to create a covered 
entrance and some shade within the foyer.  Floor to ceiling windows on the 
gable walls of the main hall increase natural light and provide vertical 
emphasis to the building that will be in a prominent position forming the end of 
the vista when approaching from the Maddoxford Lane entrance. 

 
106. The design and internal layout of the community building allows for the 

provision of a baby change unit and public access defibrillator in due course, 
as mentioned by Botley Parish Council.  Their request that the building be 
increased in the size is noted and the Consortium is aware of it.  However, it 
should be noted that the size and specification of the community building was 
set out in the S106 associated with the outline planning permission and the 
proposed plans meet those standards.  While the Consortium are willing to 
look at the internal layout of the community building to try to accommodate the 
Parish Council’s wishes it would be unreasonable to refuse the reserved 
matters application on the grounds that a larger building would be preferred, 
given what was set out in the S106 when outline planning permission was 
granted.  Discussions are due to be held with the Parish Council and the 
applicants regarding the proposed layout and Members will be updated at 
committee. 

 
107. In general the design of the buildings is considered to be acceptable, but there 

are a number of instances where amendments are required to improve the 
external appearance of the dwellings and add interest to the roof-scape, 
particularly in relation to window design, corner plots, chimneys and creation 
of coherent streetscenes.  Amended plans have been submitted and are out 
for consultation and it is anticipated that these issues can be resolved. 

 
108. It is considered therefore, that subject to the amended plans satisfactorily 

addressing these points it should be possible to ensure that the houses, flats 
and community building, and their relative siting would give rise to an 
acceptable form of development with respect to appearance. 

 
Layout 
 
109. The proposed layout shows the continuation of the development from Phase 1 

and extending down to the southern boundary with Maddoxford Lane.  The 
main spine road (which already has reserved matters approval) leads off from 
Winchester Road and Maddoxford Lane, with secondary residential roads 
leading off the spine road to connect into areas of perimeter block 
development, small cul-de-sacs, short private drives or buildings clustered 
around parking courts.  The street pattern, together with the green links 
connecting the areas of open space, provide routes through the development 
to the community facilities at the southern end of the site, to the areas of 
public open space in the north-eastern and central parts of the site and out to 
the perimeter path.  Generally the dwellings face onto a road, private drive or 

123



 

 

courtyard.  The majority of dwellings have on-plot parking, for those that do 
not have garages or drives parking is provided in a parking court.   

 
110. The densities are being recalculated following receipt of the amended plans 

but they are thought to be in general compliance with the parameters plan 
approved at outline. 

 
111. At the southern end of the site the plans show a Multi-Use Games Area 

(MUGA) and community building sited adjacent to the proposed primary 
school and opposite the playing pitches.  In addition land is proposed for 
allotments to the west of the playing pitches.  Whilst the primary school site 
does not form part of this application (a separate application has been made 
to Hampshire County Council for the new school) the school site is shown on 
the overall masterplan and MUGA has been sited next to it to enable the 
MUGA to be used by the school if required.  The location of all these uses 
together creates a community hub in the southern part of the site, in close 
proximity to the existing residents of Boorley Green so that the facilities can be 
easily used by existing and future residents.  The exact specification of the 
MUGA is to be agreed via a submission in relation to the S106 associated with 
the outline planning permission, but it will be an all-weather terrain with a 
fence around it to keep the balls within the area.  Similarly it will be for the 
Parish Council to determine the layout of the individual allotments, with this 
application seeking to establish the area of land that is to be transferred for 
that purpose. 

 
112. The majority of dwellings have been provided with the appropriate level of 

parking but amendments have been requested to residential and visitor 
parking levels.  Transportation & Engineering have confirmed, however, that 
the level of car parking proposed for the Community Building is acceptable, 
noting its siting within the development that it is to serve, and with the 
possibility of using the parking adjacent to the sports pitches as well.  
Following on from the Council’s comments a plan showing the tracking of the 
community building car park has been requested, although initial thoughts are 
that sufficient space has been provided for servicing. 

 
113. The perimeter path runs around the outside of the development, providing an 

off-road pedestrian and cycle route for residents.  The woodland edge to the 
development sits the other side of the perimeter path.  As described above, 
two areas of open space are included within this reserved matters application 
– the Chancellors Park in the northern part of the development and the central 
area of open space around the existing Botley Park Wood SINC.  Green links 
are proposed between these 2 areas and two further linear green routes are 
proposed in the southern part of the development along an existing tree line 
and along the pipeline easements.  The above ground attenuation features for 
the sustainable drainage system are generally provided around the edge of 
the site, although some basins are proposed within the central open space 
and 2 short swales are proposed within Chancellors Park. 

 
114. The levels across the site vary significantly in places and it will be necessary 

to re-profile the levels of this part of the site to ensure that the development 

124



 

 

can be satisfactorily accommodated. Given the change in levels across the 
site careful thought needs to be given to the proposed layout to ensure that 
the separation distances between dwellings are increased where there is a 
noticeable change in levels. Some amendments were required to the original 
layout to improve the relationship between properties and increase the size of 
some of the gardens to meet the requirements of the Quality Places 
Supplementary Planning Document.  Amended plans have been submitted 
and are being consulted on.  Members will be updated at committee.  
Confirmation has also been sought that all properties will meet the internal 
space standards of Draft Policy DM29 as they did on Phase 1 

 
115. Some amendments are also required to the plans originally submitted to 

address the concerns from Transportation & Engineering.  Members will be 
updated at committee on the outcome of the consultation on the amended 
plans.  

 
116. As mentioned above Botley Footpath No. 2 needs to be diverted to enable the 

development to take place.  Changes have been made to the original 
proposals so that a proposed diversion route is shown which keeps the route 
within or adjacent to open space wherever possible, as required by Defra’s 
“Rights of Way” Circular (1/09).  It runs from Maddoxford Lane in the south, 
through the proposed playing fields, then heads north-west between the 
infrastructure route and the allotments continuing on to the boundary with the 
hotel site where it splits, heading east and west.  To the east it links up to the 
central open space before running round the eastern side of the development 
before heading north to meet Durley Footpath Number 28 to the north-east of 
the wider development.  When the path splits and heads west it is shown to 
run west through the hotel car park, linking to Winchester Road in close 
proximity to Botley Footpath No.1.  This route arose out of discussions with 
the Ramblers and they have confirmed what is now shown is acceptable.  
HCC Countryside Access has also been consulted and Members will be 
updated at committee. 

 
117. It is considered therefore that subject to the amended plans satisfactorily 

addressing these points it should be possible to ensure that the proposals 
would give rise to an acceptable form of development with respect to layout. 

 
Scale 
 
118. The proposal consists of a mix of detached, semi-detached and terraced 

properties, together with 2 flats over parking spaces or entrances to parking 
courts, and 4 blocks of flats.  The dwellings are 2 or 2 ½ storeys in height, the 
flats above parking spaces or parking court entrances are 2 storey in height 
and the blocks of flats are 3 storey in height.  Comments have been made that 
the 3 storey blocks of flats are inappropriate as they are not typical of the area. 
It is accepted that they are not typical of the immediate area, although a 
number of 3 storey properties are found in Botley, but the Boorley Green 
development is for up to 1400 dwellings and will therefore have to include a 
wide variety of forms of buildings.  It is not unreasonable that this would 
include some 3 storey buildings. The 3 storey blocks of flats are relatively 

125



 

 

small, accommodating between 6 and 12 flats. As such the scale, bulk and 
massing of these 3 storey buildings is kept to a minimum and their location 
adjacent to the Chancellors Park open space ensures that there would be 
space around them so that they do not appear cramped or overbearing. In 
addition they are located within the development and not in close proximity to 
the existing dwellings of Boorley Green. As such it is considered that the 3 
storey blocks of flats could be satisfactorily accommodated within the 
proposed development and would not be significantly detrimental to its 
character or appearance. 

 
119. It is noted that there is also some concern about the location of the 2 ½ storey 

properties.  Generally these are located along the spine road or adjacent to 
open space, but there are some instances where they are also used 
elsewhere on the development.  Amendments were required to the original 
submission to ensure that the use of 2 ½ storey properties works within the 
proposed streetscene.  Some variety in ridge heights is to be expected in a 
development of this size and on a site with the various level changes. 
However provided the resultant streetscenes are coherent then 2 ½ storey 
properties should be able to be satisfactorily accommodated within the 
development.  While they, and the 3 storey flats, may be visible in views of the 
development from the surrounding area, this in itself is not a reasonable 
reason for refusal.  Amended plans have been submitted and are out to 
consultation.  Members will be updated at committee. 

 
120. The proposed community building is mainly a single storey building, but with a 

taller element reaching just over 10m in height at the eastern end to enable 
badminton to be played in the main hall.  Given the location of the community 
building on the first corner when entering the development from Maddoxford 
Lane a landmark building was sought for this location and the increased height 
of this part of the building helps to give it more prominence. 

 
121. It is considered therefore that subject to the amended plans satisfactorily 

addressing these points it should be possible to ensure that the proposals 
would give rise to an acceptable form of development with respect to scale. 

 
Landscaping 
 
122. Due to the nature of the landscaping of the former golf course a number of 

trees would need to be removed in order to facilitate the development.   The 
development has been designed so that, where possible, existing trees are 
retained.  In particular, it has sought to retain trees adjacent to the boundaries 
of the site, which have good screening value.  The original arboricultural report 
submitted with the application indicated that 36 individual trees, together with 
part of 34 groups of trees and part of the woodland edge and central woodland 
belt would need to be removed. 

 
123. Approximately 100 trees have been translocated from Phase 1 for future use 

across the site and a further 200 have been identified in the Phase 2 site as 
being suitable for relocation.  In addition to the relocated trees, 1000 new trees 
are proposed to be planted across the whole site. 

126



 

 

 
124. The Tree Officer has requested that some additional trees are retained, asked 

for confirmation that others are to be translocated and that at least a 15m 
buffer from the edge of the TPO woodland/SINC in the central open space is 
provided.  A revised arboricultural report has been submitted and is out for 
consultation.  Members will be updated at committee. 

 
125. The tree lined avenue approach along the spine road, approved as part of the 

infrastructure reserved matters approval (R/15/77552), is shown on the 
submitted plans.  Some additional street trees within the remainder of the 
development parcels have been requested, together with amendments to the 
other landscaped areas and proposed boundary treatments.  Amended plans 
have been submitted and are out for consultation.  Members will be updated at 
committee. 

 
126. In addition, as mentioned above, phase 2 also includes a sustainable drainage 

system.  The Council’s Landscape and Biodiversity Officers have requested 
some amendments to the landscaping of the above ground attenuation 
features to help integrate them more successfully into the surrounding 
landscape.  Amended plans have been submitted and are out for consultation.  
Members will be updated at committee. 

 
127. It is considered therefore that subject to the amended plans satisfactorily 

addressing these points it should be possible to ensure that the proposals 
would give rise to an acceptable form of development with respect to 
landscaping. 

 
Affordable Housing 
 
128. The S106 associated with the outline planning permission requires 30% of the 

dwellings to be affordable. This application seeks reserved matters approval 
for 889 dwellings, of which 280 are to be affordable dwellings (31.5%), made 
up as follows: 

 13 x 1-bed flats (7 of which are wheelchair accessible units) 

 136 x 2-bed (97 houses, 37 flats, 2 flats above parking spaces/entrance 
to parking courts) 

 106 x 3-bed houses 

 25 x 4-bed houses 
 
129. Housing has been consulted on the application.  In considering the original 

submission they were satisfied with the level of affordable housing proposed, 
plus, the mix and the location of the units.  Information on the tenure of the 
units has not been included with this application, but the S106 requires 65% of 
the affordable units to be affordable rent and 35% to be low cost home 
ownership dwellings. 

 
130. All of the affordable housing is to be built to Lifetime Homes Standards and 

the S106 associated with the outline permission states that 3% of the 
affordable homes should be built to wheelchair standards, equating to 13 
homes across the entire development.  Phase 1 is delivering 3 units built to 

127



 

 

wheelchair standards; therefore Phase 2 needs to provide a further 10.  In the 
original submission only 7 units built to wheelchair standards were identified, 
leaving a shortfall of 3.  In addition some amendments were required to the 
internal layouts of the wheelchair standard units that had been proposed.  In 
commenting on the amended plans Housing could see no increase in the 
number of wheelchair standard units so clarification has been sought from the 
applicant. 

 
Residential Amenity 
 
131. As indicated above there were some instances on the original layout where 

insufficient separation distance was being provided between dwellings, 
particularly where there was a noticeable change in levels.  In addition some 
improvements were required to the proposed garden sizes for the dwellings.  
Amended plans have been submitted and are currently being considered, but 
due to discussions held before the submission of these plans it is anticipated 
that the majority of these issues will have been resolved satisfactorily.   

 
132. As mentioned above a MUGA is proposed to the west of the community 

building.  As there is a minimum of 40m between the boundary of the MUGA 
and the nearest residential property, which is considered to be satisfactory to 
ensure no undue loss of harm to residential amenities. 

 
133. This phase of development stretches from the north eastern corner of the site, 

down to Maddoxford Lane in the south.  Along the southern boundary of the 
development, part of the site backs onto existing residential properties on 
Maddoxford Lane.  Following comments from local residents a plan showing 
this area in more detail was submitted.  This part of the site is to be used for 
the proposed allotments and associated car park, with a hedgerow and 
landscaped buffer separating the rear gardens from the allotments and a 
hedge on the boundary between existing gardens and the allotment car park.  
Land for allotments was shown to be located adjacent to existing gardens on 
the masterplan submitted as part of the outline application.  It is considered 
that the proposed layout would not lead to a significant detrimental impact on 
residential amenities given the activities taking place on the land. 
 

134. While the proposed dwellings and Community Building will be visible from 
Maddoxford Lane there is a minimum separation distance of approximately 
50m between an existing property and the nearest new dwelling and as such it 
is not considered that there would be a significantly detrimental impact on the 
residential amenities of existing occupiers. 

 
135. Subject to the amended plans satisfactorily resolving the concerns about 

some separation distances between dwellings and garden sizes then the 
proposed development would not have a significantly detrimental impact on 
residential amenities. 

 
 
 
 

128



 

 

Drainage and Flood Risk 
 
136. Drainage conditions were attached to the outline planning permission and a 

strategic drainage framework has already been submitted and approved. The 
drainage scheme proposed for this second phase follows the previously 
agreed strategic drainage framework.  A revised drainage strategy has been 
submitted and is out to consultation.  Members will be updated at committee.  
As this application is for reserved matters approval it cannot be refused on 
grounds related to the detail of the drainage proposals as this is covered by 
the conditions on the outline planning permission; however it is necessary at 
this stage to conclude that there is enough room on site to accommodate the 
necessary sustainable drainage system.  On the basis of discussions held 
before the submission of the revised strategy it is considered that there would 
be sufficient room on this site to enable an appropriate sustainable drainage 
system to be provided.  The attenuation basins are not intended to be wet all 
year round but where possible the gradients of the attenuation features have 
been reduced to make them shallower features that would not need to be 
fenced off.  The concerns of the Parish Council that the ponds should be 
fenced are noted.  A condition is suggested that requires a risk assessment to 
be undertaken after the attenuation features are complete and fencing erected 
if the results of the risk assessment indicates it is required. 

 
137. Concerns have been raised about the future management of the SuDS 

system.  While the details of who will manage the system are not yet finalised 
the applicants have confirmed that they are proceeding with house sales for 
Phase 1 on the basis that it would be managed by a private management 
company for which residents will have to pay a service charge.  The final 
details will need to be submitted under the drainage conditions attached to the 
outline planning permission. 

 
Ecology 
 
138. The Council’s Biodiversity Officer has requested some amendments to the 

proposed landscaping to ensure appropriate species are used and that good 
connectivity is provided throughout the green infrastructure network.  In 
addition they have requested amendments to the ecological mitigation 
measures to ensure that the species found on site are appropriately provided 
for.  Revised landscaping details have been submitted and are out for 
consultation.  Members will be updated at committee. 

 
Other matters 
 
139. While the Parish Council are correct in that there are oil and gas pipelines 

running through the site, they are not classified as Major Hazard Pipelines.  
The HSE’s comments that the site does not lie within the consultation distance 
of a major hazard site or major accident hazard pipeline are therefore correct.  
In such circumstances the consultation with regards to the pipeline should be 
directed to the pipeline operator.  They have been consulted and Esso have 
raised no objection, while Southern Gas Network has made no comment. 

 

129



 

 

140. As stated above reserved matters approval has already been issued for the 
spine road running through the site and this application includes these details.   
The spine road has been designed to enable a bus to travel along the road 
and is wide enough to allow two buses to pass each other should this be 
required.  At this stage it is too early to conclude on the exact route any future 
buses serving the site would take, but the proposed layout allows for all 
options, thus ensuring that a public transport route can be provided and that 
the Maddoxford Lane access does not have to be used. 
 

141. Due to a technical error with the website it was not possible to view the 
amended plans when the neighbour notification letter was sent out.  The 
publicity period is therefore extended to allow 14 full days for comment from 
when the website was working properly.  The publicity period now runs until 29 
March 2017 and the recommendation reflects the fact that this needs to expire 
before any decision can be issued. 

 
Other material considerations 
 
142. Also of relevance is the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, 

July 2014. The Submitted Local Plan has not been formally withdrawn and 
therefore remains a material planning consideration.  Whilst the weight that 
can be attributed to the policies in it is very limited, it nevertheless represents 
the most recent statement of the Council’s development strategy for the 
borough. As mentioned above this plan includes the site as a draft allocation 
for housing; however as outline planning permission is already granted the 
only issues to be considered with this application are matters of appearance, 
layout, scale and landscaping. With regards to these matters, the new policies 
essentially echo those of the current plan and are not considered to affect the 
recommendation put forward. 

 
Conclusion 
 
143. Subject to some amendments to the proposed scheme, as outlined above and 

the satisfactory completion of consultations and the expiry of the publicity 
period, this reserved matters scheme is considered to conform to the 
parameters identified at the outline permission stage and would be an 
acceptable form of development meeting the necessary standards.  Reserved 
matters approval is therefore recommended. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

130



 

 

© Crown copyright and database rights (2017) Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)

R/16/79470

Scale:

Map Ref:

Date:

1:10000

28/02/2017

SU5114

Title:

Land to the north and
east of

Boorley Green,
Winchester Road

 
 
 

131



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Funding for Local Projects
	8 Planning Application - Crows Nest Lane, Botley
	9 Planning Application - Land South of Maddoxford Lane, Boorley Green Botley
	10 Planning Application - Land to the north and east of Boorley Green, Winchester Road, Botley

